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CT Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the "Group”) is a professional
environmental plan and solution provider which offers one-stop centralized and customized environmental
protection services. The Group is substantially engaged in industrial wastewater treatment, industrial water
supply, solid waste (including regulated waste) and hazardous waste disposal and treatment, urban and rural
domestic waste detoxification, and environmental inspection services in the whole chain. The Group's service
packages cover all processes from planning, construction, operation to maintenance of the environmental
protection facilities.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of CT
Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you a brief review of the businesses
and financial position of the Group in 2015, as well as the outlook of the

industry.

Benefitting from the utmost effort and commitment from our management
and operation team, we recorded satisfactory results in 2015. The year of
2015 is an important and meaningful year during the development progress
of the Group. Beside the consolidation and expansion of existing advantages,
the Group also has achieved several milestone events during the year ended
31 December 2015:
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Chairman’s Statement
IEREE

The Group will continue to vigorously expand the advantage in the industrial
wastewater treatment and industrial water supply. The Group has
successively entered into investment agreements with the Yinghong
Government in Yingde, Guangdong Province, and Fumian District
Government in Yulin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region respectively to
obtain the exclusive right of construction and operation of local industrial
wastewater treatment and industrial water supply services under the build-
own-operate model ("BOO Model"]). The Guangxi project also includes
sludge treatment services and heating services. The Group also acquired
Ganghui Environmental Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. (BB RR)FKEE R
R A &) in Shunde District of Foshan, Hanyang Water Project Co., Ltd. (3%
K TR B R A B in Shunde District of Foshan and Zhongshan
Zhongtuo Kailan Industry Co., Ltd. (LTI R 4E 5L E B 2 B R A7) during
the year under review to further enhance its strength in the field of water
treatment.

The Group started to engage in the hazardous waste treatment and disposal
market since 2015. During the year under review, the Group completed the
acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste Reclamation Treatment Co.,
Limited (EIN&E AR TEREEZE Y LW EIE AR A 7l), which is considered to
be the city’'s largest enterprise engaged in the comprehensive treatment and
disposal of industrial waste. During the year under review, the Group also set
up the largest oily waste water treatment base in Nansha District, Guangdong
Province. In addition, a breakthrough has been made in the copper waste
treatment business through a series of commissioned operations and the
approval treatment capacity reached approximately 86,000 tons per year.
According to publicly accessible data, with regard to the annual treatment
capacity, the Group is the largest copper waste treatment enterprise in
Guangzhou, it has captured more than 50% market share of the copper waste
treatment in Guangzhou.

In addition, the Group also actively built sludge and industrial solid waste
treatment facility through acquisition and expansion and will provide a more
comprehensive range of sludge and solid waste treatment services.

In terms of capital operation, during the year under review, the Group
completed the allotment of shares to GIC Special Investments Pte Ltd —
one of the global leading sovereign wealth funds in 2015. We have also
entered into an equity subscription agreement and a cooperation framework
agreement with China Development Bank, and later a facility agreement
with Asian Development Bank on 22 March 2016. The Group has actively
discussed cooperative intentions with major international banks so as to
enhance the shareholding structure, capital base, financial position of the
Group, and improve the Group's industry position, brand image and market
competitiveness.
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The roadmap of the "18th National Congress” of the Communist Party of
China on "building a beautiful China" brought the environmental protection
industry to an unprecedented height. Looking forward to the future, in view
of increasingly stringent government supervision and measures, as well as
constant support by favorable policies on sewage, solid waste and
hazardous waste treatment and disposal industry, we believe that this
sector will generate more opportunities for expansion. The Group will
further develop and strengthen its own experience and advantages in
operational management and technology research and development, and
make use of the synergies of the Group's industrial layout generated from
cost efficiency, treatment scope and geographical coverage, and endeavor
to grasp and create more business opportunities to sustain long-term
growth.

Finally, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to our shareholders
and all the stakeholders for their support in our development and progress.
I ' would also take this opportunity to thank all my colleagues for their effort
and contribution to make our dream possible.

Tsui Cham To
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Management Discussion and Analysis

The particulars of the revenue comparison by business segment for

the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 were as

EEENWEDN

MBERE

AREBHEZE-_ZT—HF+_A=+—8H
F_E-—NE+-_A=+—BItFERXR

follows; B BEI D 2 WALLBFBETIE G0
T
Revenue
EERA
2015 2014 Increase/(Decrease)
—E-RFE —TNF 2/ ()
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR AR®TT AR®TT
Provision of water treatment services 12 40K B 12 AR 75 463,482 445,009 18,473 4%
Provision of heating services REHRRE 65,518 67,051 (1,533) (2%)
Provision of sludge and solid waste RS e A K B 88
treatment services & 1) i 38 AR 75 361,332 243,169 118,163 49%
Provision of wastewater project RHI5/KIE B
construction services ER R 180,049 50,282 129,767 258%
Provision of waste incineration project RN R EIRE
construction services ERRG 94,452 — 94,452 N/A TEMA
Finance income BE KA 13,972 12,605 1,367 11%
Provision of hazardous waste R ERED
treatment services B 22 AR 7% 256,154 — 256,154 N/A TEMA
1,434,959 818116 616,843 75%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESMN

2. BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK 2. ¥XOEREE

The Group is an expert solution provider in resolving environmental
pollution problems. It offers integrated one-stop services tailor-made
for its customers. The main business of the Group involves treatments
for industrial wastewater, sludge, industrial solid waste and
hazardous waste. The service offered by the Company ranges from
planning, construction, operation to maintenance of the environmental
protection facilities.

Ever since being listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”] in September 2013, the
Group has been developing its business and expanding its operation
areas swiftly and has become a leading pioneer among centralized
industrial wastewater treatment enterprises. It is also the largest-
scaled sludge treatment enterprise in Guangdong Province, the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC" or "China”), and a relatively
large-scaled hazardous waste treatment enterprise in Guangdong

Province.

In the year 2015, with the support of all favourable policies within
China and the growing demand in the market, the Group steadily
made progress in its development of different business sectors under
its banner with flying colours. 2016 is the 13th year since the Group
first entered into the environmental protection industry, and also
marks the beginning of the “13th Five-Year Plan” (FYP). The Group
believes that the blueprint of "Building a beautiful China”
implemented by The Chinese Communist Party’s 18th Congress will
promote the green industry to an unprecedentedly high status.
Looking forward to the future, the Group shall benefit from the
provision of support by Chinese Government’s increasing force in
supervision, measures and favourable policies. It is expected that the
Group will make an even greater contribution to the environmental
protection industry in China and the shareholders of the Group.

° CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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2.1 Water Treatment Services

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated a total of 13 water
treatment plants, comprising 7 industrial wastewater treatment
plants, 2 municipal wastewater treatment plants, and 4
industrial water supply plants. The total designed daily capacity
of wastewater treatment facilities in operation was 745,000 m®
representing an increase of approximately 45% compared to
the daily capacity of 515,000 m® as at 31 December 2014. The
total designed daily capacity of industrial water supply plants in
operation was 330,000 m® representing an increase of
approximately 57% compared to the capacity of 210,000 m® as at
31 December 2014. The additional total designed daily capacity
during 2015 was 350,000 m?, which was contributed by three
industrial wastewater treatment plants under the BOO model
with total designed daily capacity of 230,000 m®, two industrial
water supply plants under BOO model with the aggregated
designed daily capacity of 120,000 m®.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has completed the equity
acquisition of the two industrial wastewater treatment projects
and two industrial water supply projects that were originally
under the transfer-build-transfer ("TBT") model to transfer
them into the BOO model.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESMN

The analysis of projects held in 2015 was as follows:

Daily Designed

RERBZOWWT :

Municipal

Wastewater Industrial

Treatment Capacity Industrial Wastewater Treatment Water
(M*/Day) Wastewater Treatment Treatment Subtotal  Supply Total
BHRFEERD SRKEE I¥R
(XFK/K) I¥5KEE THEKEE INEF O OKEE et
Operational Model B &£ 3 BOO  Build- TBT BOO BOT BOO

Operate-

Transfer

("'BOT")
In Operation BEH 580,000 45,000 - — 120,000 745,000 330,000 1,075,000
In reserve fF 280,000 55,000* 4,500 10,000 — 349,500 300,000 649,500
Total mEt 860,000 100,000 4,500 10,000 120,000 1,094,500 630,000 1,724,500
Number of Water kK& & @
Plants/Each

In Operation EAH 6 1 - - 2 9 4 13
In reserve HEP 3 —* 1 1 - 5 2 7
Total Bt 9 1 1 1 2 14 6 20
* Expansion of productivity based on existing water plants was * R BKBEM FERERRA

considered as without increasing the number of water plants

2.1.1Industrial Wastewater Treatment Services

As at 31 December 2015, the Group owned 7 industrial
wastewater treatment plants which are in operation in
Guangdong Province, Hunan Province and Sichuan
Province, the PRC. The daily total designed treatment
capacity was 625,000 m® with the daily average
productivity utilization rate of approximately 68% during
the year under review. Industrial wastewater treatment is
the core business of the Group and will continue to be
explored and expanded in the third party centralized BOO
model over the years ahead to enhance the market share.
As at 31 December 2015, the total daily treatment
capacity for the reserve projects was 339,500 m’. We
expect industrial wastewater treatment will continue to
be the major core business of the Group.

g CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

TR EE

2INTETKEBERK

RZE—AF+=ZA=+—
A A&EEEERE HE
BERMIERNEREEE T X
SEIKEEIERTE - AR
88 h A& B 62500052 5 K
REBEERHEEFBE
) B68%e TEISKERA
RNEBZEOER KRB
BEEE =75+ AB0E
EEALTERERER E®
mBEEME - R-_FT—Hh
F+-A=+—"H £%£H
HEBEELRTEREENA
£ H339,50037 /5 K - & 978
HIxS5KEEREE RN
EENESZLER-



2.1.2Municipal Wastewater Treatment Services

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated 2 municipal
wastewater treatment plants in Guangdong Province, the
PRC. The daily total designed treatment capacity was
120,000 m” and these plants maintain stable utilization
rate. The Group expects that these 2 wastewater
treatment plants are able to provide a stable source of
revenue to the Group. In the future, the Group may not be
actively expanding in the municipal wastewater treatment
segment since the core business and the main strength
of the Group is in the industrial wastewater treatment
segment. With a designed capability of 10,000 m® per day,
the sole reserve project of the Group in this request
mainly assist on the treatment of municipal waste water
in the industrial park where the industrial waste water
treatment projects are located.

2.1.3Industrial Water Treatment and Supply

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated 4 industrial
water supply plants in Guangdong Province and Sichuan
Province, the PRC. The total daily designed treatment
capacity of these plants is 330,000 m® with an average
utilization rate of approximately 52% during the year
2015. These plants, located within an industrial park with
wastewater treatment plants operated by the Group, also
provide industrial water and wastewater treatment
services to customers who acquired waste water
treatment services. We regard such industrial water
supply service as an ancillary services to the customers
in the industrial park. The Group projects that there will
be steady growth in this segment.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESMN

22 S RR—RIXEEERE

2.2 Provision of sludge and solid waste treatment

services

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated a total of 3 sludge
treatment facilities, including one with the comprehensive
capability of treating and disposing of the general industrial
solid wastes. The daily total approved capacity was 3,142 tonnes
for sludge treatment, representing an increase of approximately
29% as compared to the daily capacity of 2,442 tonnes as at 31
December 2014. The increase in capacity was attributable to the
enhancement of the capacity of our existing Yonghe Haitao
sludge treatment facility ("Haitao Facility”]. Having commenced
operation in the second half of 2014, the treatment and
disposal of the general industrial solid waste has a daily total
approved capacity of 2,278 tonnes, thereby becoming a growth
point of the Group's solid waste treatment business.

The treatment capacity and utilization rate of the Group's solid
waste and sludge treatment business are increasing steadily.
The Group believes that, as a key move to getting through the
downstream of industry chain in wastewater treatment, this
segment has become one of the important contributors to the
operating revenue and one of the core businesses of the Group.
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The analysis of projects held in 2015 was as follows: BEEEZOHWT :
General

Industrial
Approved Treatment Capacity Sludge Solid Waste Total

—RI%¥
BRERERE 5 E g EY wat
Tonnes/Day g, A
In Operation EEH 3,142 2,278 5,420
In reserve fE 1,889 1,805 3,694
Total #Et 5,031 4,083 9,114
Number of Facilities/Each HrEEE A
In Operation Ee 1 4
In reserve f# 2 b
Total HET 5 3 8

a CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis
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2.2.1Sludge Treatment and Disposal 22215 REEEE
As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated 3 sludge RNZE—RF+_A=+—
treatment facilities in Guangdong Province, the PRC. The A AEBEERERNEE
daily total approved capacity was 3,142 tonnes and the VIREIEB R EREIE - AR
average utilization rate was approximately 93% during the HERIBRIERET A31420 -
year under review. The project strategically targeted the REOBEFERHERMNAX
Pearl River Delta region, providing sludge treatment 2 R93% - 18 B B W B IR
solutions generated from municipal wastewater AR AERBREEHX=
treatment in major cities in the Pearl River Delta region. A& KT 2 05 KR R
The Group believed that, with tighter regulation and EEZERIEBEBRSER
improvement in treatment rate of industrial wastewater, RAERMEE BEEXE
there will be huge potential growth in the market of EBBETESKEERN
sludge treatment and disposal. RA ITEXSRREEED

BHERENER

2.2.2General Industrial Solid Waste Treatment and 22— I XEBEREEEERE

Disposal

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated 1 general R-ZE—RFE+_A=+—
industrial solid waste treatment and disposal facility in A AEBTEERENES
Guangdong Province, the PRC. The approved annual —RIXEREVERIEES
treatment capability was 820,000 tonnes. The hazard-free R RERERERE
solid waste landfill in the facility is specially for detoxifying FRBEW - ZREANER —
Category | and Il general industrial solid waste and 2 & 5e px ¥ B =L e BIH 8
regulated waste. The annual treatment volume was %R IR IEES
100,000 m® with the constructed storage capacity of BEYMEBEIEEMETESREL
2,000,000 m* for Phase |. The construction of two general HIE FREEA0BILA
industrial solid waste treatment and disposal facilities is K- BHERKEZR2008 7
underway in Shaoguan and Huizhou of Guangdong FR-EEBRMENRERE
Province, the PRC for further expansion of market share. A B T B M T R —

AR T2 [B) % B 72 R IR AR MG
N —FIEMISMHE -

PEBREEERAT —T-HEER



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWESMN

2.3 Hazardous Waste Treatment Service 2.3

As at 31 December 2015, the Group operated 5 hazardous waste
treatment facilities in Guangdong Province, the PRC covering
22 types of hazardous wastes. The annual total approved
capacity was 330,000 tonnes. The Group expanded into the
hazardous waste treatment industry since 2015. Since then, a
full industry chain of industry waste treatment and disposal has
been formed, ranging from industrial wastewater and solid
waste to poisonous wastewater with high concentration as well
as hazardous solid waste, thereby the Group becomes a service
provider which offers integrated pollution treatment solution to
industrial customers.

fe B 2% ) B2 32 AR 7%

R-ZFE—RAF+-_A=+—8"
AEBEERENELRREY
BRIERMESE BERANERRE
Y BRAERERBEHSTFRE
-SEA-_T-—AFREHARIR
fEREMEETS NIt BRER
BETXBERYRERENEZE
X T HESKIERE BRI
mONEREASEKRERE R
BEY AKETER—BRIXE
EPFRUEERBESREENR
AR A5 B (7 o

The analysis of projects held in 2015 was as follows: HEBEBBE ZOMWET :

Types
Approved Treatment Capacity approved
(tonnes/year) Hazardous waste Total to treat

%

ORI R (B, E) B EY st EEER
Operation Mode BB BOO TBT
In Operation B 269,000 61,000 330,000 22
In reserve EEP 450,000 — 450,000 1%
Total st 719,000 61,000 780,000 22
Number of Facilities/Each BV
In Operation B 2 3 5
In reserve &+ 1 — 1
Total et 3 3 6

This type overlaps with one of the 22 types of hazardous waste
approved to treat in the facilities in operation.

° CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Financial Review

Turnover

The turnover of the Group increased by 75.4% to RMB1,435.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 from RMB818.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014. Such increase was primarily due to (1] the increase in
hazardous waste treatment businesses conducted during the year under
review which contributed RMB164.6 million to the turnover of the Group; (2]
the increase in revenue from construction of wastewater treatment projects
and waste incineration projects. As of the end of 2015, the construction of
wastewater treatment projects were substantially completed. The progress
of the construction of waste incineration project was completed by 24%; and
(3] the increase in revenue of entrusted operations for the year under
review.

Cost of sales

Our total cost of sales increased by 101.7% to RMB719.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 from RMB356.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, which were in line with the increased turnover.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately 55.1% to RMB715.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 from RMB461.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014, primarily as a result of the factors described
above.

Our overall gross profit margin decreased to approximately 49.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 from approximately 56.4% for the year ended
31 December 2014, primarily due to the reason that proportion of revenue
from BOT construction increased from approximately 6.2% for the year 2014
to approximately 19.1% in 2015. The gross profit margin from provision of
BOT construction services is lower than the average gross profit margin of
other projects.

Other net income/(loss)

Other net income for the year 2015 mainly included net foreign exchange
loss of RMB43.3 million (2014: RMB224,000) and gain on bargain acquisition
of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste Reclamation Treatment Company
Limited of RMB138.5 million. The net foreign exchange loss primarily arised
from receivables and bank loans that were denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant entities. The gain on bargain
purchase was attributable to the recognition of fair market values of net

assets acquired at higher values than the consideration payable.
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately 110.4% to
RMB139.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 from RMB66.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. This was primarily due to (1)
the increase in staff cost with the increase in the number of subsidiaries;
and (2] increase in professional fee relating to the acquisitions taken place
during the year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased by approximately 64.0% to RMB70.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 from RMB42.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2014, primarily due to the increase in bank borrowings in the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Profit before taxation

Our profit before taxation increased by approximately 79.4% to RMB670.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 from RMB373.9 million for the

year ended 31 December 2014, primarily due to the factors described above.

Income tax

Our income tax expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 increased
by approximately 100.7% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year, which was mainly due to the increase in profit before taxation in 2015.
At the same time, the effective tax rate has been increased from
approximately 9.2% to approximately 10.3%, which was mainly due to the
preferential income tax from Yinglong changed from interest free to interest

in half.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

Our profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company has been
increased by approximately 78.0% to RMB598.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 from RMB336.5 million for the year ended 31 December

2014, primarily as a result of the factors described above.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate to
acquisition of projects, construction of properties, plant and equipment and

operation expenses.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group's cash and bank
deposits was approximately RMB382.5 million (2014: RMB116.6 million),
representing an increase of approximately 228.0% as compared to that as at
31 December 2014.

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2015, our total amount of bank loans was RMB2,009.6
million (2014: RMB1,041.1 million],
denominated in RMB. All of the Group’s bank borrowings carry floating

in which approximately 58% were

interest rate. The unutilized bank facilities amounted to RMB259.7 million
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

As at 31 December 2015, the secured bank loans amounted to RMB1,925.2
million, and unsecured bank loans amounted to RMB84.4 million.

As at 31 December 2015, our debt to assets ratio, as calculated by dividing
our total borrowings by our total assets, was approximately 36.5% (2014:
36.5%).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities or guarantees.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group pledged certain of its property, plant
and machinery and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB133.7 million (2014: RMB92.5 million] to certain banks
to secure certain credit facilities granted to the Group. In addition, the
Group’'s equity interests in Qingyuan Lvyou Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited, Guangzhou Yinglong Wastewater Treatment
Company Limited and Guangzhou Liangang Vessel Wastewater Treatment
Company Limited were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group.

Capital Expenditures

Our major capital expenditures primarily consist of expenditures to acquire

lease prepayments and purchase of property, plant and equipment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, our capital expenditures (mainly
include additions in property, plant and equipment and additions in lease
prepayments) amounted to approximately RMB1,197.0 million (2014:
RMB982.4 million]). These capital expenditures were funded by bank
borrowings, funds generated from our operating activities and proceeds

from new issue of shares of the Company.

The Group expects to incur additional capital expenditures in view of the
various acquisition opportunities in the sector and in view of the scheduled
construction of facilities for the current project portfolio. These capital
expenditures are expected to be funded mainly by operation cash flows and

bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's assets, borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from receivables and bank loans that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant entities. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily RMB, USD and HKD. The Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term

imbalances.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 1,982 employees (2014: 1,077
employees). Employee costs amounted to approximately RMB98.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately RMB51.2
million). The Group will endeavor to ensure that the employees’ salary
levels are in line with industry practice and prevailing market conditions and
that employees’ remuneration is based on their performance.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Further details are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” of the "Report of the Directors” of
this annual report. Further, the Company also adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognize and motivate the
contributions made to the Group by its employees and to give incentives in
order to retain them for the continuous operation and development of the
Group. Further information in relation to the Share Award Scheme are set
out in note 24(a)lv) to the financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Below are material subsequent events which occurred after 31 December
2015:

On 1 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an asset operation
agreement with Guangdong Xinxi Environmental Protection Engineering
Company Limited* (BRI ARIIRLILEAR LA ("Guangdong Xinxi’),
pursuant to which, Guangdong Xinxi agreed to engage the Group to operate
and upgrade its wastewater treatment facility for a concession period
commencing from 1 January 2016. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 January 2016.
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On 22 March 2016, the Company entered into a facility agreement with Asian
Development Bank ("ADB"). The amount of loan granted to the Company
pursuant to the facility agreement shall be applied towards the financing of
the construction, acquisition or operation of industrial wastewater and
sludge treatment facilities in the PRC. According to the terms of the facility
agreement, the amount of the facility consists of ordinary loans equivalent
to USD100 million and supplemental loan equivalent to USD150 million.
Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
March 2076.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To, aged 49, is one of the founders of our Group, and the
Chairman and Executive Director of our Company appointed on 30 November
2010. He is a cousin of Mr. Xu Juwen. Mr. Tsui is mainly responsible for
leading the Board in setting the Group’s overall directions, strategies,
agendas and priorities. Mr. Tsui has approximately 13 years of experience in
the wastewater treatment and industrial water supply industry. Mr. Tsui was
the vice president of the Guangdong Foundation for Justice and Courage (f&
REARLESE]) From April 2000 to March 2001 and April 2002 to March
2006, Mr. Tsui was a director of Hong Kong Yan Chai Hospital. Mr. Tsui was
also an adviser to the Board of Directors of the Scientific Decision and
Promotion Association of Guangdong Province Village and Town Heads in
2004. Mr. Tsui was appointed as the chair professor at Faculty of
Management of Shenzhen University. Furthermore, Mr. Tsui was the vice
president of the Guangzhou Overseas Chinese Chamber of Commerce in
2006 as well as the vice president of the 10th, 11th and 12th Zengcheng
Federation of Commerce and Industry (32 T 284 2 (£ EE)). He
was an excellent member (& 55 Z &) of the Standing Committee of the éth,
7th and 8th Zengcheng City Chinese People’'s Political Consultative
Conference (M EN -+ - N\ BREARBEGHEERERTEE
ZEZ) He was also a member of the Standing Committee of the 9th
Huizhou City Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (I 173 2 /!
MENEZEEZEE) In addition, Mr. Tsui was an honorary citizen of the
Guangzhou Municipality and Huizhou Municipality as well as the honorary
chairman of the 8th Committee of the Federation of the Zengcheng City
Returned Chinese (1% T 55 R E BB & ).

Mr. Lu Yili, aged 41, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of our Company. He joined us in June 2010 and was appointed as an
Executive Director on 12 January 2011. Mr. Lu is in charge of leading and
overseeing the implementation of the Group’s long and short term
strategies set by the Board. He has to ensure the effective communication
with shareholders, employees, government authorities and other
stakeholders. Mr. Lu also has experience in corporate investment and
business finance and has involved in the listing of Chinese companies on an
overseas stock exchange. He also has six years of experience in the
wastewater treatment industry. From 1997 to 2009, Mr. Lu served as a
member of the management of various Singapore private companies,
responsible for venture capital investments and consultancy on initial public
offerings in China. Mr. Lu received a bachelor’'s degree in science majoring
in chemistry at the National University of Singapore in 1997. He also holds a
PhD in Economics from Jinan University (2 & A £), China.
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Mr. Gu Yaokun, aged 52, is the founder of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste
Reclamation Treatment Company Limited and Qingyuan Lvyou
Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited, the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Gu was then appointed as an Executive Director and Co-
Chief Operating Officer of our Group since 23 November 2015 and is now in
charge of the operation of our solid waste treatment and hazardous waste
treatment businesses. Mr. Gu has over 30 years of experience in the venture
capital and operation management of petrochemical engineering,
environmental protection and resource recycling industry. Mr. Gu is
currently the vice chairman of solid waste branch of Chinese Society for
Environmental Sciences (FEIIRIZERIE 8 2],

Guangdong Environmental Protection Association, a member of the Political

the managing director of

Consultative Committee of Nansha District in Guangdong province, the vice
chairman of manufacturers association of Panyu District in Guangdong
province, the vice chairman of Associations of Renewable Resources
industry in Panyu District. Mr. Gu was awarded the title of "2010 Excellent
Entrepreneur in Environment Protection Industry of Guangdong” (20104 /&
EREBRREXESLER) in 2011, Mr. Gu obtained the Executive
Master of Business Administration qualifications from Sun Yat- sen
University in 2009.

Mr. Xu Shubiao, aged 50, is one of the founders of our Group and an
Executive Director appointed since 12 January 2011. Mr. Xu has
approximately 13 years of experience in the wastewater treatment industry.
Mr. Xu is our Co-Chief Operating Officer, responsible for the construction
and operation of all the water projects the Company undertakes. Mr. Xu is
experienced in the engineering, trading and processing industries. Mr. Xu
was an assistant general manager at Guangzhou To Kee from 1995 to 2003.
Mr. Xu has led the development, operation and management of our
wastewater treatment facilities and industrial water supply facilities in our
Guangzhou Xinzhou Industrial Park since 2003. Mr. Xu is not related to other
Directors of the Company.

Mr. Xu Juwen, aged 41, is an Executive Director and Vice President of our
Group. He joined us in September 2003 and has served as an Executive
Director since 12 January 2011. Mr. Xu is a cousin of Mr. Tsui Cham To. Mr.
Xu is in charge of the Group’s business development and inter-departmental
coordination. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. Xu was the assistant general manager
of Guangzhou To Kee Enterprises Development Group Limited ("Guangzhou
To Kee’], a related company of our Group, where he oversaw its general
operation. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Xu was the general manager of
Guangzhou Zhugang Pier Company Limited (EMEKIAISEE R A 7)), a
private company in the PRC, and from 2009 to 2011, Mr. Xu has been its
executive director. In 2010, Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in
accountancy from Open University of China [ R E B 18 K &)
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Mr. XU Zi Tao, aged 46, resigned from the Executive Director on 23
November 2015. He joined us in September 2003 and was appointed as an
Executive Director on 12 January 2011. He is the brother of Mr. Tsui Cham
To and a cousin of Mr. Xu Juwen. Mr. Xu has approximately 11 years of
experience in wastewater treatment industry. Mr. Xu was responsible for
our Group's safety compliance and public services works. Mr. Xu was a
manager at Guangzhou To Kee from 1994 to 2003. He was an assistant
general manager at our wastewater treatment facilities and industrial water
supply facilities in our Guangzhou Xinzhou Industrial Park during the period
from September 2003 to November 2015.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent, aged 55, was appointed on 15 April 2014 as an
Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Lien is currently a director of Wah
Hin & Company, a Singapore incorporated private investment holding
company, an independent non-executive director of Viva China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8032) which is listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lien is also a director of The Maritime and Port
Authority of Singapore and a non-executive director of Primeline Energy
Holdings Inc. (a company listed in Canada). He has over 27 years of
experience in the banking industry, specialized in corporate finance and
capital management. Mr. Lien graduated from the University of New
Brunswick with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Lien
started his career in the financial industry first in Merrill Lynch & Company.
In the past years, Mr. Lien had been working in senior positions in prestige
financial institutions such as Swiss Bank Corporation and Bankers Trust &
Company. In year 2000, he became the director of Wah Hin & Company,
managing the financial assets of the group. He also served as the managing
director in the Financial Institutions & Public Sector division of ABN AMRO
Bank from 2007 to 2008.
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Dr. Du Hequn, aged 40, is our Independent Non-executive Director since 21
August 2014, currently also the managing director of Venture Markit
International Capital Management Group, a company mainly engaged in
growth capital investment in the Greater China region. Mr. Du was as well
the managing director and the Head of Greater China Private & Structured
Finance in Macquarie Group from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Du has approximately
17 years of experience in the finance industry, specialized in the debt capital
market and structured mezzanine debt investment. In the past years, Mr.
Du had been working in senior positions with international renowned
financial institutions and investment banks including Deutsche Bank, Credit
Suisse and the Commonwealth Bank of Australia. Dr. Du graduated from
the National University of Singapore and was awarded a Bachelor of
Business Administration (Hons] majoring in Finance and Banking. He also
holds a PhD in Economics from Jinan University (2 & KX £), China. Dr. Du
also held positions such as a council member of The China Federation of
Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs (A B & & B4 &), a council member of
Heilongjiang Overseas Friendship Association (BEETL/EIINBEZ), a
senior economic consultant of Nantong Municipal Government and an
economic consultant of Yaan Municipal Government, an investment
committee member of Shenzhen Zhongke Aiscent Intelligent Equipment

Research Institute associated to the Chinese Academy of Sciences [ Bl &}
2.

Mr. Liu Yung Chau, aged 62, was appointed on 14 June 2011 as an
Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Liu is a director of Huashang
Education Group Company Limited and Guangzhou Sun City Group Limited.
Mr. Liu was the chief president of the Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial
General Association, member of the standing committee of Guangdong
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, member of the standing
committee of Guangdong Federation of Industry, vice chairman of the
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors and chairman of the Zengcheng
Federation of Industry. In addition, Mr. Liu has been awarded the "World
Outstanding Chinese Award” (524 % A 42) in May 2010 and was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia (BBS) by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region on 25 October 2013. Mr. Liu has established
the Guangzhou Sun City Group Limited and its affiliates covers a wide range
of business areas including education, hotel and tourism, textile and
apparel, real estate and financial investment industry. Mr. Liu was given the
honorary title of "May 1st Model Worker” in 2009.
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Senior Management

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, aged 37, joined us as the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary since September 2015. He is mainly responsible for
overseeing our Group's financial and company secretarial matters. Mr. Ma
joined us in 2015. Mr. Ma graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ma worked in KPMG Huazhen LLP. He has over 10 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and has been involved in a number of

initial public offering transactions and capital market transactions.

Mr. Zhao Keyin, aged 41, is our Chief Engineer. Mr. Zhao joined us in March
2004 and is currently responsible for the daily operation, technical
supervision and implementation of the wastewater treatment business our
Group. Mr. Zhao implements national policies relating to technology and
advanced technology management policies. Mr. Zhao has approximately 12
years of experience in wastewater treatment, with a special focus on
industrial wastewater treatment technology. He also leads the technical
implementation aspects of our Group’s projects, devise work plans to make
sure the processing technologies and procedures are in sync with various
technical standards, regulations and legal procedures in the industry. Mr.
Zhao is our Group's key liaison with regulatory authorities. In 1998, Mr. Zhao
obtained a Diploma in Environmental Protection Monitoring and
Implementation from Shenyang Polytechnic University (;& 5 T 2 £63). He
also obtained a Wastewater Treatment Training Certificate issued by
Guangdong Environmental Association Environmental Protection Vocational
Training Centre [ERIRHIRREZ R EEEIIH 0. He has passed the
environmental protection training accredited by Guangzhou Environmental
Protection Promotion and Education Centre [[E M TR R EE EHE L)
and Guangzhou Environmental Protection Bureau (&M IR B R D) as

well.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEE

Mr. Lu Xiao'an, aged 52, is the Vice President of our Group. He is mainly
responsible for the daily operation of the Group's hazardous waste
treatment business. Mr. Lu joined the Group in August 2015 (after the
acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste Reclamation Treatment
Co., Limited by the Group). He graduated from Environmental Science
Department of Sun Yat-sen University in 1987. During 1987 to 2004, he
worked chronologically as an environmental impact inspector at Guangzhou
Environmental Monitoring Station, an environmental impact monitor at
Guangzhou Environmental Protection Bureau, then back to Guangzhou
Environmental Monitoring Station as a head of office, head of motor vehicle
emission inspection team, head of motor vehicle emission monitoring
division, the head of motor vehicle emission supervision division, and a head
of analysis office. In May 2004, Mr. Lu joined Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial
Waste Reclamation Treatment Co., Limited as an assistant to director, the
deputy manager, and then the general manager.

Mr. Gan Yongxiong, aged 47, is the Vice President of our Group. He is mainly
responsible for the daily operation of the Group’s sludge treatment
business. Mr. Gan has devoted himself to the sludge treatment industry
since year 2002, and has accumulated 13 years of experience in the sludge
and solid waste integrated resource utilization industry. Mr. Gan has
successfully developed technologies such as the Solar Reclaimed-water
Dual-Heat Source Heat-pumping Sludge Drying System (X [5 & 2 7K &
BRER 5L R4 H ) and Fully-enclosed Fertilizer Generating
Sludge Drum System (& & B =05 Je & & Hl AR £ 7). Not only has these
technologies been registered utility patents by the Intellectual Property
Office, but are also included in the National Key Model Environmental
Protection Technologies Project (BIZX 2 i3 SE (R & A B il n &8 TH2).
Besides, Mr. Gan owns several other registered patents for technologies
such as the High-pressure Sludge Drying System (& & j5 J& & 1t
applications of industrial waste residue and construction garbage and
sludge in green bricks baking system as well. Mr. Gan joined us in 2009 and
is currently responsible for the market development of our sludge
treatment business. He is the head of technical implementations of our
Group's sludge treatment projects, who devises work plans to ensure the
processing technologies and procedures comply with various technical

standards, regulations and legal procedures in the industry.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CT Environmental Group Limited. together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
has always been committing to being a responsible corporate citizen. The
Group pays close attention to the influence of its business on the
communities and environment around while pursuing a high operation
efficiency. Therefore, the Group has set up a complete set of environment
and society management system particularly for the management on
relevant environmental and social affairs so as to keep improving its
performance in such fields.

This Group will publish an annual Environment, Society and Governance (ESG)
Report starting from the next fiscal year in order to specifically and
systematically disclose our methods, strategic target and performance in
fulfilling sustainable development.

Environmental Protection

As a comprehensive environmental service program provider, the Group is
devoted to improving its performance in environmental protection.
Wastewater treatment is one of its core businesses, the Group possesses
respectively in both industrial wastewater and domestic sewage treatments,
a Class-A Certificate of the Operating Ability of Pollution Treating Facilities.

Meanwhile, the Group is concerned with its suppliers’ performance in
environmental protection. This part was taken into consideration during
supplier selection process. If necessary, the Group would invite independent
agencies to separately examine the suppliers’ products so as to ensure the
products meet the national safety and environmental protection standards,
other relevant product quality certification standards as well as the
equipment technical specification standards confirmed by the Group and

the suppliers.

Health and Safety

The Group placed an utmost emphasis on the health and safety of its
employees. By means of continuously improving relevant precaution
mechanisms and measures, the Group successfully reduced the risks and
dangers which may be hidden in operations as much as possible. In 2015,
no major industrial accident occurred in the Group accounts for the effort
made by all employees and the management of the Group on production
safety. In addition, the Group provided periodical trainings in occupational
safety and skill improvement so that the employees are able to master each
operation procedure and be aware of operation and production safety. The
Group also invites external experts and specialists for production safety

seminars, bringing its employees the latest safety information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - HERERES

Subsidiary companies of the Group prepared event security guidelines
based on their own conditions and circumstances so as to provide
instructions more specifically and effectively and improve the safety
management system of the Group. Under the guidance of the management
of the Group, all subsidiaries have established a Contingency Plan for
Environmental Emergencies to improve the capability of managers and
employees in coping with all kinds of environmental emergencies, and to
secure the life safety and health of the employees and the public. The
contingency plan has specified responsibilities of all departments and
covers every single stage in the production and emergency handling.
Therefore, it is complete and comprehensive.

Education Supporting

The Group has always valued the educational development that cultivates
more talents specialized in environmental protection. By setting
scholarships, establishing labs and cooperating with institutions of higher
learning, the Group provides a platform for learning and practicing to
students who major in environmental protection, thus boosted co-growth
and development of both the Group and such institutions and put forward

sustainable development of the environment-friendly industries of China.

The Group set CTEG Scholarships in a term of 10 years in School of
Environmental Science and Engineering of Sun Yan-Sen University and
College of Environment and Energy of South China University of Technology,
which respectively reward 30 outstanding students RMB10,000 each per
year. Besides, we concluded a framework agreement for all-round
cooperation with Guangdong Environmental Protection Engineering
Vocational College under Department of Environmental Protection of
Guangdong Province, aiming at cultivating technical talents and
strengthening our research and development capabilities. The agreement
includes offering "CTEG Class”, providing scholarships to the students of
the class and opportunities of practical work in the Group. These acts lead

to a professional and efficient access of transporting talents to the Group.

In November, 2015, the Group founded a Joint Lab of CTEG and College of
Environmental Sciences and Engineering of Peking University and set up
Peking University-CTEG Educational Fund to make a contribution to the
cultivation of professionals in environmental protection and to the
promotion of environmental protection for long-term development. The
Group plans to donate RMB15,000,000 during 2015 to 2024, to Peking
University, among which the scholarships of RMB7,500,000 will be rewarded
to 15 excellent undergraduates, postgraduates and PhD students each in
the form of RMB50,000 per year; the remaining RMB6,000,000 and
RMB1,500,000 will be put into the educational fund and for daily running and

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

maintaining of the labs respectively. Such moves have effectively
accelerated the cooperation between the business circles and the higher
education institutions, and offered more opportunities for both parties to
communicate in the fields concerning environmental protection,
development and public welfare.

The Group will be unceasingly devoted to nurturing talents in environmental
protection and contributing to the sustainable development of the

environment-friendly industries.

Public Benefit Activities

As one of the sponsors for the event of Cross the Zhujiang River 2015, the
Group hopes to further arouse the public concern on environmental
protection. Besides, the Group also donated RMBZ200,000 to the activity
called Charity into Communities (2% & # & [& ") of Charity Project
Promotion Show 2015 in Zengcheng District, Guangzhou. The fund will be
divided into halves, respectively for a day-care subsidy for the elderly in
Xintang Town, providing temporary care and day-care services to those who
have difficulties taking care of themselves, and for the disabled help project
of the town, relieving the economic pressure on the disabled who are
incapable of working.

As a leading environment-friendly corporate in China, other than playing a
role in the industry and field, the Group will continue to care for the society,
encourage employees to actively participate in voluntary services, and build

a closer and more harmonic link with communities.
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Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

Compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Company
focuses on maintaining high standard of corporate governance in order to
achieve sustainable development and enhance corporate performance. The
Board strives for adhering to the principles of corporate governance and
has adopted sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards, focusing on areas such as internal control, fair
disclosure and accountability to all shareholders to ensure the transparency
and accountability of all operations of the Company. The Company believes
that effective corporate governance is an essential factor to create more
values for its shareholders. The Board will continue to review and improve
the corporate governance practices of the Group from time to time to
ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimize

return for shareholders.

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company has adopted the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”] as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance. The Board
considers that the Company was in compliance with all applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Board of Directors

The Board comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Directors who held office during the year and up to

the date of publication of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To
Mr. Lu Yili
Mr. Gu Yaokun

(Chairman]
[Chief Executive Officer]
[appointed on 23 November 2015)

Mr. Xu Shubiao
Mr. Xu Juwen

Mr. Xu Zitao [resigned on 23 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent
Mr. Du Hequn
Mr. Liu Yung Chau

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the Company and
the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from

time to time.

The Board has a balance of skill, experience and diversity of perspectives
that are essential to and would promote the business of the Group. The
Board, with the assistance from the senior management, forms the core
management team of the Company. The Board takes the overall
responsibility for management of the Company, formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Company, decision making on
important issues, including but not limited to substantial mergers and
acquisitions and disposals, directors’ appointments and significant
operational and financial matters. The senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing the Board policies and strategies, including
the provision of updates of the Group’s performance to the Board to enable
the Board to deliver and discharge their duties. Daily management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated to the senior

management of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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Gorporate Governance Report
EEERRE

During the year under review, the Company has fully complied with all
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules and the CG Code.

The Board at all times met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2] of
the Listing Rules that, (1) it included at least three independent non-
executive directors; and (2] at least one of the independent non-executive
directors possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Board considers that all its
independent non-executive directors have appropriate and sufficient
industry or finance experience and qualifications to carry out their duties so

as to protect the interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are Mr. Tsui
Cham To and Mr. Lu Yili respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are segregated and assumed by two separate
individuals. It is aimed at striking a balance of power and authority so that
the job responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual. The
Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to

manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from all existing
Independent Non-executive Directors and considers them independent, in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have a term of
office of three years and are required to retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in accordance with the articles of association of

the Company.
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Board Meetings

It is intended that the Board should meet regularly so that all Directors are
kept updated with the business development of the Group. Special meetings
of the Board will be convened if the situation requires so. For the year ended
31 December 2015, the Board had convened eight Board meetings and four
general meetings. The individual attendance record of the Directors is
tabulated as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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5978 - V4 HERE

EEE8E RRE=
HWRY R
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Tsui Cham To (Chairman) RAEEEE (FE) 8/8 4/4
Mr. Lu Yili (Chief Executive Officer) EENEE(EEHNTTE) 8/8 4f4
Mr. Xu Shubiao REREE 8/8 0/4
Mr. Xu Juwen BRIEX & 8/8 3/4
Mr. Xu Zitao (resigned on 23 November 2015] %R F B % & (R20154F 11 H 23 H § 1F) 6/7 0/4
Mr. Gu Yaokun (appointed on 23 November 2015) T #2185 & (R 20154 11 H23 H EZ L) 11 N/A
TE A

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent HERIELAE 8/8 2/4
Mr. Du Hequn MESE L E 8/8 3/4
Mr. Liu Yung Chau Btk E 8/8 2/4
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the "Model Code”] as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms that the Directors
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Relationship among the Directors

Among the members of the Board, Mr. Tsui Cham To, the Chairman, is a
brother of Mr. Xu Zitao and is a cousin of Mr. Xu Juwen (therefore Mr. Xu

Zitao is also a cousin of Mr. Xu Juwen).

Audit Committee

The Company has set up an audit committee (the "Audit Committee”] in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process and
internal controls. As of the date of publication of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises the three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (the chairman of the Audit
Committee). Mr. Du Hequn and Mr. Liu Yung Chau. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial information for the year
ended 31 December 2015, including the accounting principles adopted by
the Group, with the Company’'s management. The Audit Committee,
together with the management, has reviewed constantly the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters and reviewed the financial results of

the Group.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the website
of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee had held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015 for considering the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2015. All the members (Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent,
Mr. Du Hequn and Mr. Liu Yung Chau) of the Audit Committee have attended
the above meetings.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the "Remuneration Committee”) are to make recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure of the Company for remuneration of all
Directors and senior management, to assess performance of executive
directors and to review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Director and senior management, by reference to the
duties, responsibilities, experience and qualifications of each candidate.

In accordance with the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, majority of members of the Remuneration Committee should
be Independent Non-executive Directors, and the chairman must be an
Independent Non-executive Director. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’'s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange. As of the date of publication of this report,
Mr. Du Hequn (Chairman] (Independent Non-executive Director], Mr. Liu
Yung Chau (Independent Non-executive Director]) and Mr. Tsui Cham To
(Executive Director) are members of the Remuneration Committee. One
meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
31 December 2015 to review and approve the remuneration packages of
certain executive Directors. All members (Mr. Du Hequn, Mr. Liu Yung Chau
and Mr. Tsui Cham To) of the Remuneration Committee have attended the

meeting.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the Group
by band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

FE AR B (8 T)

Remuneration bands (HK$)
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Nil to 500,000

500,001 to 1,000,000
1,000,001 to 2,500,000
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5,000,001 to 5,500,000
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500,001 % 1,000,000
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2,500,001 % 3,000,000
3,000,001 £ 5,000,000
5,000,001 £ 5,500,000

PEREREEBRAR ZE-—HFFR a



Gorporate Governance Report
EEERRE

Nomination Committee

The Board had set up its nomination committee (the "Nomination
Committee”] to, among others, review the structure, size and composition
of the Board to determine the policy for the nomination of directors and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors. As at
the date of publication of this report, Mr. Liu Yung Chau (Chairman)
[Independent Non-executive Director], Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent
(Independent Non-executive Director] and Mr. Tsui Cham To (Executive
Director] are members of the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee has also adopted a policy of diversity for memberships of the
Board which aims to achieve diversity in the Board against a range of
different perspectives, including but not limited to professional and industry
experience, skills and knowledge, cultural and educational background.
These criteria will be considered in determining the optimum composition
of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately. In
reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider all different perspectives, including the aforesaid
criteria, in order to maintain a diverse Board. And when recommending new
appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
candidates on merit against objective criteria including the ones set out
above, with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee had been held during the year
ended 31 December 2015 to consider and approve the nomination of Mr. Gu
Yaokun as a member of the Board. All members (Mr. Liu Yung Chau,
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Tsui Cham To] of the Nomination
Committee have attended the meeting.

Training and Support for Directors

The Company recognizes the importance of keeping the Directors updated
with latest information of duties and obligations of a director of a company
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and the general regulatory
requirements and environment for such listed company. To meet this goal,
each newly appointed Director would receive an introductory training
regarding the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company in Hong Kong. As part of the continuous professional development
program, the Company has also updated the directors of the Company of
any material changes in the Listing Rules and corporate governance
practices from time to time. All directors of the Company are provided with
reading materials summarizing the duties and responsibilities in acting as
directors from time to time to keep the directors of the Company abreast of
such duties and responsibilities.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, the company secretary appointed by the Board and an
employee of the Company, in the opinion of the Board, possesses the
necessary qualification and experience, capable of performance of the
functions of the company secretary and the Company will provide fund for
Mr. Ma to take not less than 15 hours of appropriate professional training in
each financial year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with an overall responsibility of devising the
Company’s system of internal controls and conducting an annual review of
its effectiveness. This ensures that the Board oversees and monitors the
Group's overall financial position so that the interests of the shareholders
are well protected and covered. The system of internal controls covers the
areas of financial, accounting, operational, compliance and risk
management of the Group's business. The Board was not aware of any
irregularities or material deficiencies found for the year ended 31 December

2015.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

This section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group.
This is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and uncertainties

further to the principal areas of risk outlined below.

Business development risk

Each of the Group's projects has been or will be built to a specified designed
capacity. The utilization rate of its treatment facilities depends on a number
of factors including the size of the population, the types of industries of its
customers, the general economic conditions and the level of
industrialization in the area served by the relevant facilities. If the facilities
the Group operates are not utilized to their designed capacity, the Group
may not generate the turnover and profit it had expected from the relevant
projects, which could have a material and adverse effect on its business,
financial condition and results of operations. It is therefore important that
the Group perform careful market research and project planning before

implementing with any investment decisions.
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Credit risk

The Group may suffer from financial loss if a customer or counterparty fails
to meet the obligations under a contract. Customers requiring a credit over
certain amount must undergo an individual credit evaluation. These
evaluations are based on a customer’s records of payment due and current
ability to repay. The corporate information and economic situation of the
customer are also taken into account. Debtors with debts expiring more
than 12 months are requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted.

Change of regulatory environment risk

The Group's business and operations in the PRC are subject to the PRC
government standards, rules and regulations. Change of regulatory
environment risk means the risk of failure in response to change over
government regulations, which may have a negative impact on the Group's
business. Changes in regulatory environment are monitored regularly in

order to respond to the changes on a timely and effective manner.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Acknowledgement on
Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the accounts of the
Company in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board is accountable to the shareholders for a
clear and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position and

prospects.

The management provides all relevant information and records to the
Board, which enable it to prepare the accounts and to make above
assessments. The Audit Committee had reviewed and recommended the
Board to adopt the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events
or condition that may undermine the Company’'s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the auditor of the Company on its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Auditor’'s Report on pages 57 and 58.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees payable to KPMG in
respect of its audit services provided to the Group was RMB3.9 million (2014:
RMB2.3 million]. The total fees paid and payable to KPMG during the year
for the reporting accountant service in respect of certain notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules was approximately RMB1.2 million (2014:
RMB2.9 million).

Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

The Company’s shareholders” communication policy is to maintain
transparency and provide timely information of the Group’s material
developments to shareholders and investors. General meetings of the
Company are formal channels for communication between shareholders
and the Board. The chairman of the Board is invited to attend the general

meetings to have direct communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
situated at Room 804, 8/F, Empire Centre, 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meeting of the Company
may by written requisition request to the Board convene an extraordinary
general meeting. There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association governing shareholder’s right to put forward proposals at
general meetings. However, the shareholders may follow the procedures as
stated below to put forward proposals in general meetings. The procedures
for shareholders to convene extraordinary general meetings and put
forward proposal are as follows:

1. The requisitionist(s) must sign a written request stating the objects of
the meeting to be convened, and deposit the same at the principal
place of business of the Company situated at Room 804, 8/F, Empire
Centre, 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The written request may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more

requisitionist(s).
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2. The Company will then verify the particulars of the requisitionist(s) in
their written request with the Company’s share registrar, and upon
confirmation from the Company’'s share registrar that the written
request is in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in accordance with
all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the articles of association of the Company.

3. In the event that the written request has been verified as not in order,
the shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will not be convened as
requested.

4. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the written request proceed duly to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the requisitionist(s)] may themselves convene an
extraordinary general meeting, but any extraordinary general meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the date of deposit of the written request.

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting investor
relations and communications by conducting analysts” briefings, road
shows, participating in investors” conferences and making corporate
presentations during the conferences, arranging company visits to the
Company and maintaining regular meetings with institutional shareholders
and analysts. The Company's annual general meeting provides a good
opportunity for communications between the Board and its shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to express their view and make enquiries on the business or

operation of the Company.

The investor relations department of the Company maintains regular
communication and dialogue with shareholders, investors and analysts. It
can be accessed during normal business hour by phone (Telephone
number: 86 (20) 8883 6077). Shareholders and investors can also visit the
Company’s website at www.chongto.com and the Stock Exchange’s website
for the Company’'s announcements, circulars, financial information,
corporate governance practices, annual reports, interim reports and other

corporate information and updates of business development and operations.
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Constitutional Documents

The annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2015 approved
the amendment of the existing articles of association of the Company. The
amendments include that Board meetings will be held at least once every
financial quarter and will be held to discuss and decide on any matters that
could reasonably be expected to have a material impact on the business and
financial condition of the Group. The purpose is to enhance the corporate
governance aspect of the Company.

The latest memorandum and articles of association of the Company are
available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

The Company has entered into a deed of non-competition dated 4
September 2013 (the “Non-competition Deed”] with Keen Vast Holdings
Limited and Mr. Tsui Cham To, both being the controlling shareholders of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”), and pursuant to which the
Controlling Shareholders procure its/his/her associates (other than
members of our Group] not to, engage in any business involving the
development of wastewater treatment facilities and the provision of
wastewater treatment and industrial water supply services. Details of the
Non-competition Deed are set out in the paragraph headed “Non-competition
Undertaking” in the section headed "Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September 2013.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in compliance with the terms of the Non-competition Deed.
The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the annual
confirmation from the Controlling Shareholders relating to the compliance
with the non-competition undertaking by the Controlling Shareholder under
the Non-competition Deed and are satisfied that the same has been
complied with by the Controlling Shareholders under the Non-competition
Deed.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments
is set out in note 2 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss on page 59. The Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK0.73 cents per share and a special dividend
of HK1.01 cents per share (based on the number of the shares after share
subdivision) (2014: final dividend of HK3 cents per ordinary share and
special dividend of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share before share subdivision)
for the year ended 31 December 2015, to the shareholders whose names

appear on the register of members of the Company on 7 June 2016.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves

The Company’'s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, shares held under Share Award Scheme, accumulated losses,
translation reserve and capital reserve which in aggregate amounted to
RMB1,531.8 million as at 31 December 2015 (as at 31 December 2014:
RMB665.8 million]. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 [Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its articles of association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or payment of dividend the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results for the year ended and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and for the previous four financial
years are set out on page 180.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
publication of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To (Chairman]
Mr. Lu Yili (Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. Gu Yaokun (appointed on 23 November 2015)

Mr. Xu Shubiao
Mr. Xu Juwen
Mr. Xu Zitao (resigned on 23 November 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent
Mr. Du Hequn
Mr. Liu Yung Chau

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers such directors to be independent.

In accordance with Article 83(3) and 84 of the Company's articles of
association, Mr. Gu Yaokun, Mr. Tsui Cham To, Mr. Lu Yili and Mr. Xu
Shubiao will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors Terms of service contract

EERBEN

BTES BR % & 2 5 PR

Mr. Tsui Cham To 3 years from 4 September 2013 to 3 September 2016
%%E/éf‘ﬁi _EEEE i——ihﬂmﬁi_j /\ﬂzjlﬁ H
Mr. Lu Yili 3 years from 4 September 2013 to 3 September 2016
EEMKE =FRZT-=FNANANBE_ZFT-R"FHLA=H

Mr. Xu Shubiao

REREE =FH-_T-=FAAM@BEZ

Mr. Xu Juwen

REXEE

Mr. Gu Yaokun

3 years from 4 September 2013 to 3 September 2016

—~"FNLA=AH

3 years from 4 September 2013 to 3 September 2016
=FRAZ-=FNANANBE-_Z—

RENLA=H

3 years from 23 November 2015 to 22 November 2018

Az-_E—N\F+—A=+=H

Z—tFWOA+EA

4 4 2 =Em-F-nET-A=t=
Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent 3 years from 15 April 2014 to 14 April 2017
HRIERAE =FH-_FE-NFHA+AEEZ

Mr. Du Hequn 3 years from 21 August 2014 to 20 August 2017
RSB E A =FH-_T-NFEFNAT-HEC

Mr. Liu Yung Chau
BrmEE

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service agreements with the Company or any other member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year except as disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and note 28 to the financial

statements.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management as of the

date of publication of this report are set out on pages 23 to 28.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and
its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code:
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Approximate
percentage of

Total number of shareholding

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares in the Company
LR NN §

EEnR B4 HEEMtE R 5EE BHAED

Mr. Tsui Cham To Corporate Interest'” 3,525,500,000 (L) 55.81%

IRAEE S E A A ER"

Mr. Lu Yili Corporate Interest” 41,600,000 (L) 0.66%

EE A AAEERY

Mr. Gu Yao Kun Personal Interest 226,060,000 (L) 3.58%

o R O A (PN ¥
(L} denotes a long position in the shares
Notes:

(1) Mr. Tsui Cham To is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 3,525,500,000
shares of the Company held by Keen Vast Holdings Limited.

(2) Mr. Lu Yili is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 41,600,000 shares of the
Company held by Great Nation Finance Limited.

U HERBHRHFRE
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Great Nation Finance Limited Ff # A 2 & f% {7
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFOJ], which had been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code. At no time during the year was the Company, or any of
its holding companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporation.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 4 September 2013. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive to motivate, attract and retain eligible persons, and to
encourage them to optimise their performance efficiency, enhance the value
of the Company and promote the long-term growth of the Company. This
scheme will provide the eligible participants, including employees,
consultants, executives and officers of the Company, to have a personal
stake in the Company to achieve its intended purpose.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from 4 September 2013 subject to the early termination provisions
contained in the Share Option Scheme, after which no further options will
be granted or offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of any subsisting options granted prior to the expiry of the 10- year
period or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
544,000,000, being 10% of the shares of the Company in issue immediately
after IPO on the Listing Date (i.e. 25 September 2013) which is the effective
date of such scheme and representing approximately 8.6% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report. An option shall
be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee and to have
taken effect when the duplicate offer document constituting acceptances of
the options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favor
of our Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is

received by our Company on or before the relevant acceptance date.
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The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to the issue of a circular and
shareholders’ approval in general meeting. The period within which an
option may be exercised under the Share Option Scheme will be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the particular option. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the exercise price in relation to each option shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of such option, {ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of such option, and [iii] the nominal value of a share on the

date of grant of such option.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed, and there was
no outstanding option under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2015.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, the Group has complied with relevant laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.
Further, any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business partners
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its
business partners. The Company provides a fair and safe workplace,
promotes diversity to our staff, provides competitive remuneration and
benefits and career development opportunities based on their merits and
performance. The Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate
trainings and development resources to the employees so that they can
keep abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their

positions.
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The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers and provide the services in a way that satisfy needs and
requirements of the customers. The Group has also established procedures
in place for handling customers’ complaints to ensure customers’
complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers and
contractors as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the
Group's business. We reinforce business partnerships with suppliers and
contractors by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective manner

so0 as to ensure quality and timely delivery.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2015, the persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who have interests in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Approximate

Total number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares shareholding
IR &

E=EW 5 EatE R 17 48 BMAED

Keen Vast Holdings Limited"” Beneficial owner 3,525,500,000 (L) 55.81%

EARERAR AR BEmEAA

(L) denotes a long position in the shares L EBRROPHEE

Note: Mt sE -

(1) Keen Vast Holdings Limited is controlled by Mr. Tsui Cham To. (1) EAREAR AR A T M IS B e E Sl S A o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors are not
aware of any other person having an interest or short position in shares and
underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company.
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Management Contracts

During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract in respect of
the management or administration of the entire business or any significant

business of the Group nor any such contract subsisting.

Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed "Continuing Connected

Transactions” in this report of the Directors:

(i) no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries subsisted during the year or at the end of the year;
and

(i} no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during the year or at the
end of the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 26.8% (2014:
32.5%) of the Group's total cost of purchase for the year ended 31 December
2015. The largest supplier accounted for approximately 16.4% (2014: 21.8%)

of the Group's total cost of purchase for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 25.6% (2014:
26.2%) of the Group's total turnover for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The largest customer accounted for approximately 7.5% (2014: 7.2%) of the

Group's total turnover for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed under the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital] had an interest in these major suppliers or

customers at all times.

Report of the Directors

ESEHE

EEAME

0 RATEEAEBERAATAEE
BREBAEAEALBHD T LA B E
LR

EXEXN

BRAEZEREFEWERS | —MMEE
Eoh

) MNEAXFEEMBEBERNDFHEER
MBARRARRKEEABEARZ
ERBRRTLEREL R

(i) MEALFEAMEERNDF L EEM
MBARRARRKEEAMEAFTZ
ERBRRAAIEHZRBITLERAL -

TERFRHER

(2T —RF+-A=Z+—HLFE XK
EERAHERGAEELARER AN LD
268% (- —PU4F :325%) BE_T—RHEF
TZAZT+—HBUEFE EAHEIEASE
BARBRAN164%(ZFB—MHF :21.8%) °

HE-_Z-—RAF+-_A=+—RHBLEEE &
EEAAREPHAEEBEEETEN5.6%(=
T—UF:262%) BHEZFE—RAF+-A=
T HEFESEARFHASEREEED
75%(ZZF—MHF :7.2%) °

BRTITXIHERERS IZEH2REN BHE
BEx RENBBAIBRR(BEEMAHESA
BBARRRARSNE)RNEMREREZSEEE
HEFAEFPHEE#ES -

PEREREEBRAR ZE-—HFFR



Report of the Directors

ESEHE

Competing Business

None of the Directors had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2015.

The Controlling Shareholders of the Company have confirmed to the
Company that they have complied with the non-competition undertaking
under the Non-competition Deed.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into the
following connected transactions with its connected persons:

(i) On 28 August 2015, the Company and Mr. Gu Yaokun entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Connected Subscription Agreement”)
pursuant to which Mr. Gu conditionally agreed to subscribe for and
the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue 200,000,000 new
Shares [the “Connected Subscription Shares”) in cash at the
subscription price of HKD2.575 per Connected Subscription Share.

The gross proceeds from the subscription was HKD515,000,000. Net
proceeds from the subscription, after deducting related expenses in
connection with the subscription which was borne by the Company,
was approximately HKD513,550,000, which was intended to be used
by the Company for financing mergers and acquisitions, capital
expenditures, partial repayment of bank loans and for working capital
and general corporate purposes. The net proceeds raised per
Subscription Share upon completion of the subscription was
approximately HKD2.568.

Mr. Gu is a director of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste Reclamation
Treatment Company Limited M4 M T XEZEEYEKREEFR
2 7A], a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and therefore a
connected person under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the subscription of shares by Mr. Gu constituted a non-
exempt connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules and was subject to the reporting, announcement and
Independent Shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the Connected Subscription Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 August 2015 and the circular
of the Company dated 9 October 2015.

(i) On 2 July 2015, Guangzhou To Kee Enterprises Development Group
Limited BN ERE BEEERE SE AR A 7 ("Guangzhou To Kee') as
vendor and Guangzhou Xintao Wastewater Treatment Company
Limited F& M #7 8 /K & ¥ (£ B R 2 & ("Guangzhou Xintao”] as
purchaser, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an acquisition agreement (“Acquisition Agreement’], pursuant to
which Guangzhou To Kee agreed to sell and Guangzhou Xintao agreed
to purchase 100% equity interest of ER B ERBRCEER AR A
Al (Guangzhou To Kee Enterprises Development Group Limited) (the
“Target Company”) at the consideration of RMB10 million (equivalent

to approximately HKD12.67 million) payable in cash.

As at the date of the Acquisition Agreement, Guangzhou To Kee is
owned as to 89.63% by Mr. Tsui Cham To, an executive Director.
Guangzhou To Kee is therefore a connected person of the Company
and the acquisition of the Target Company by the Group constituted a
connected transaction for the Company. As all the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules] in respect of the
acquisition is less than 5%, the acquisition was only subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements and was exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

Details of the Acquisition Agreement are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 2 July 2015.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 28 to the financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules which are required to be disclosed in this report in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(ii)
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As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September 2013,
Guangzhou Haitao Environmental Protection Technology Company Limited
("Guangzhou Haitao”), a subsidiary of our Group, has been providing
wastewater treatment services to Guangzhou Tian Tian Cleaning and
Washing Company Limited (a company controlled by Mr. Tsui Cham To who
is a Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company) (“Tian Tian"] as
part of its ordinary and usual course of business. The agreement was
entered into on 4 September 2013. The transactions under this agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our Company which are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but are exempt from the independent shareholders” approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the amount of wastewater
treatment services provided by Guangzhou Haitao to Tian Tian was
approximately RMB5.5 million (2014: RMB4.8 million).

The Directors (including all independent non-executive Directors] have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that

the transactions have been entered into:
(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(3)  in accordance with the agreement entered into on terms which are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised] “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For the propose to Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules, the auditors of the Company has provided a letter to the
Board, confirmed that nothing has come to their attention that causes them

to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions:
(il have not been approved by the Board;
(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing

policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of

services by the Group;
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(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with

relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
(iv]  have exceeded the cap.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2015, there is no
related party transaction or continuing related party transaction as set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements that falls under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the laws of Cayman lslands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
EZEHE

Sufficiency of Public Float ZENARERE

Based on the information available to the Company and within the RIEBAQXARAJESHNERNLREBEEEMM 8
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained adequate public float HE-Z—-—HAFE+_-_A=+—BIHFEZ K&
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this annual ZEARFHRAH ARG —HEFTEHLAR

report. BFRE -

On behalf of the Board RREEE

Tsui Cham To FE

Chairman #®EH

29 March 2016 —E-XF=ZA=-+NH
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
CT Environmental Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CT Environmental
Group Limited [the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 59 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
R TESES
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of
the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2016
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss
[— R4

W, \é?ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi

BE_Z-—HEF+-_A=T—RLEFEUUAREZ?)

2015 2014
—E-RF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®T ARBT T
(Restated)*
(&5 *
Turnover = %] 2(a) 1,434,959 818,116
Cost of sales $H & B AR (719,459) (356,826)
Gross profit ER 715,500 461,290
Other revenue H 4 W = 3(a) 68,701 19,549
Administrative expenses TBAX (139,257) (66,159)
Other net income/(loss) H b FW s (BE) 3(b) 94,312 (1,433)
Profit from operations mERR 739,256 413,247
Finance costs B & PR A 4(a) (70,157) (42,766)
Share of profits of associates pakian: X-WNCIlc bkl 1,115 2,916
Share of profit of a joint venture DIE—REECEMNEF 361 461
Profit before taxation B B A % A 670,575 373,858
Income tax Frig %t (69,323) (34,542)
Profit for the year FREF 601,252 339,316
Attributable to: AN IEEN
— Equity shareholders of the Company —ARAEEEEA 598,916 336,478
— Non-controlling interests — FEYE R = 2,336 2,838
Profit for the year F % F 601,252 339,316
Earnings per share (RMB) BREF(ARYE) 8
Basic and diluted EARR#EE 0.10 0.06
*  See Note 1(c](i). * BRI e

FENIEMBMEFAZEYHHRERA—I0
DoERETARNAE=FTAEAZREEN
F @ FI B SR M RE24(d) ©

The notes on pages 66 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 24(d).

PERREBARAA —Z-HFFR Q



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

mEBREREMZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

E-E-FFE+-A=+-BILEEAAREZE)

2015 2014
—E-FF —E-MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR T T
(Restated]*
(FEE5)~
Profit for the year FRER 601,252 339,316
Other comprehensive income for the year FAHEME2E KR
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently HigngesHoHEEamIEn
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial #EWIFAARE ([ARE])
statements of entities not using Renminbi TERIIRE B MM B BEB 7%5 =
("RMB") as functional currency EEMEHEZR 8,858 1,651
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEZERZLE 610,110 340,967
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LTEEREGMCZEKEEE:
Equity shareholders of the Company AABIERFEAA 607,774 338,129
Non-controlling interests FE 5 AR 2,336 2,838
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHE W= L5 610,110 340,967

* See Note 1(c](i).

The notes on pages 66 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mERBRRE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREEZ75)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2015 2014 2013
—E-FEF —E—mF —ET—=
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mo 3E AR®T AREFIT ARET T
(Restated)* (Restated)*
(& E5)* (&5 *
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -WMEREE 9 2,150,651 1,248,808 402,210
Lease prepayments AT & FRIB 10 294,128 112,617 37,074
Intangible assets EREE 11 1,150,611 233,860 39,342
Goodwill S 12 144,331 76,566 9,587
Interest in associates i RN ROk e 14 4,534 = 146,979
Interest in a joint venture R—RELPENRER 15 2,323 1,962 =
Gross amounts due from customers BUEFALHTITE
for contract work TRIE 48 5 16 231,302 188,935 193,686
Other receivables H b fE U 18 18 277,604 348,930 65,872
Deferred tax assets RIERIEBE E 22(b) 2,958 2,958 3,011
4,258,442 2,214,636 897,761
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 17 29,914 7,407 1,038
Trade and other receivables 5 RkE A EWRIEA 18 794,340 495,961 220,689
Gross amounts due from customers BREFE#H IR
for contract work FAIA 4258 16 33,971 17,357 17,357
Deposits with a bank with original FHRRIETREBRHAR
maturity date over three months BE="EAZEFEX 5,626 — 40,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 19 382,500 116,593 310,341
1,246,351 637,318 589,425
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H b &~ RIE 20 321,551 221,942 108,251
Bank loans RITERK 21 642,276 298,429 40,620
Current taxation B HARE 18 22(a) 22,642 19,537 14,414
986,469 539,908 163,285
Net current assets REBEEFE 259,882 97,410 426,140
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBAERS 4,518,324 2,312,046 1,323,901
*  See Note 1(c](i). * B o
PEBREEARAT —Z-—HEER



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBRRR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARBEZ75)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2015 2014 2013
—E-FF —E—mF —E—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
Mo 3E AR®T AREF T ARET T
(Restated])* (Restated)*
(& E5)* (&5 *
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Bank loans RITER 21 1,367,290 742,705 393,532
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 22(b) 239,360 62,880 31,434
Deferred income P IE WA 23 15,119 11,832 11,832
1,621,769 817,417 436,798
Net assets EEFE 2,896,555 1,494,629 887,103
Equity = 24
Share capital % A 125,392 114,403 109,629
Reserves E1E 2,757,300 1,356,992 775,339
Total equity attributable to equity EATAEZHEA
shareholders of the Company iR 2,882,692 1,471,395 884,968
Non-controlling interests JE R M 2R 13,863 23,234 2,135
Total equity B 2,896,555 1,494,629 887,103
*  See Note 1(c](i). * RHEE1C) °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March

2016.

Mr. Tsui Cham To

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. LuYili

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 66 to 179 form part of these financial statements.

a CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

RZBE-REF=ZAZTABEEFSHAER

T

EFERBITEF

BB %A

BITEFREFENTTE

FOENERMEMERZSTHRRO —

N

5 o



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi
BE_Z-—HEF+-_A=T—RLEFEUUAREZ?)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AARREREARENTEE
Shares held
under the Non-
Share Share Capital  Statutory Share Award Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve Scheme reserve profits Total interests Total equity
SiEA]
EEBH  HEET F2R
RA RGEE EARE ARE  BERG EREE RKRZEA i Bi  #ER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFRT
(note 24(a))  (note 24(b)) (note 24(bl) [note 24(bl)  [note 24(al)  [note 24(bl)
(Ftzkoalal) (Fezk2alo)) (Pizkalo)) (Bizkalo)  (BHEE24(a))  (PIEE2400))
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZ2-ME-A—H

[restated) & (L E7) 109,629 285,241 (75) 59,390 - 4,249 426,534 884,968 2,135 887,103
Changes in equity for 2014 E-MENERSD

Profit for the year FREF (EE5])

[restated) = - - - - - 336,478 336,478 2838 339,316

Other comprehensive Hth 2 EYE (EE5))

income (restated) - - - - - 1,651 = 1,651 = 1,651
Total comprehensive income RN SR (LE7)

[restated) - - - - - 1,651 336,478 338,129 2,838 340,967
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FERBAR

(restated) (BE75) = = = = = = = = 18,261 18,261
Shares issuance [restated) BRiA %17 (B E5) 4776 276,439 = = = = - 28121 - 281213
Transfer to statutory reserve BREEREWES)

[restated) - - - 19,909 - - 19909 = - -
Dividends approved in respect of  SEBAFEEHEMRE

the previous years [restated (BE35) - (32.915) = = = = = (32,915) - (32.915)
Balance at 31 December 2014 ~ RZ-Z—M&

[restated) +ZA=t-H

Hie (B &) 114,403 528,765 75) 79,299 - 5900 763,103 1,471,395 23234 1,494,629
Balance at 1 January 2015 WZE-n%-f—-H

bt 114,403 528,765 (75) 79,299 - 5900 763,103 1,471,395 23234 1,494,629
Changes in equity for 2015 “E-IEMERED

Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 598,916 598,916 2336 601,252

Other comprehensive income Hip2mes - - = = = 8,858 = 8,858 = 8,858
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - - - 8858 598916 607774 233 410,110
Acquisition of subsidiaries KRB AR

(note 13(b)) (M &E130b) = = = = = = - - 13,473 13473
Acquisition of non-controlling W88 FER AR AE RS (155 25)

interests (note 25) - = - - - - (3,620) (3.620) (25180)  (28,800)
Shares issuance [note 24(alfil) R {7 %17 (Bt & 24(allii) 10989 896,346 - - - - - 90733% - 90733
Share purchased under the BN REHEET

Share Award Scheme G IGEYIE )

[note 24[al(v)) - - - - (8.411) - - (8.411) - (8.411)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEAERE - - - 20,494 - = (20,494) = - -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ SBAFEEHEMRE

the previous years note 24(d))  (Fit 3£ 24(d)) - (9781 - - - - - 9781 - (91781
Balanceat31 December 2015 ~ R-Z—H%F

TZA=t-RBHakH 125392 1333330 (75) 99,793 (8,411) 14,758 1317905 2,882,692 13,863 2,896,555

The notes on pages 66 to 179 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE_ZT-HAF+-_A=T—"RLEFEUUARKEZ7)

2015 2014
—F-IHfF —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR®BT T ARBFT
(Restated)*
(&)~
Operating activities REED
Cash generated from operations KEEEIFRE 19(b) 559,641 498,983
Income tax paid BT ER 22(a) (59,420) (25,720)
Net cash generated from operating RETEHEBRESFE
activities 500,221 473,263
Investing activities RETE
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, net Y B8} B 2 &1 7% - FIBR UK
of cash acquired BRe 13(b) (832,251) (293,421)
Prepayment of acquisition deposit W i 12 & 78 T 318 18 (88,124) (100,000}
Investment in a joint venture R—HaErENRE — (1,500)
Repayment of loans from former equity == N =N e =S/ s
owners of the Group's subsidiaries =B AER 13(b)(xi) (126,976) =
Payment for purchase of lease prepayment T8 & T84 3 & 38 B ¥ 2 -
and property, plant and equipment BE KA R (580,722) (420,757)
(Placement)/withdrawal of deposits witha (77 1%),/tR BN R 2 #3 B
bank with original maturity date over HiE =18 A 8 R1T 17 3K
three months (5,626) 40,000
(Payment)/proceeds from disposal of HEME  BELKRE
property, plant and equipment (M), B8 s0E (49) 533
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARSFE (1,633,748) (775,145)
Financing activities Al & B
Proceeds from bank loans RITE TS HIE 1,016,572 418,239
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (311,163) (114,940)
Net proceed from share issuance % 0 B 17 P15 3R I8 F 58 24(alliii) 907,335 281,213
Payment for purchase of shares under HEEE RN REEFEIET
Share Award Scheme B& 19 2 1~ 5% 24(a)(v) (8,411) =
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Yo i FEHE AR 2 25 (28,800) =
Advance to related parties ] 8 Bk 75 A 5K 28(c] (58,506) (536,122}
Repayment from related parties =Nl R 40,465 135,172
Finance income received B R & WA 483 279
Interests paid 2 7 & (67,181) (42,173)
Dividends paid B E (91,781) (32,915)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
REREREXR
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE-_Z-—HF+-_RA=T—RUEFEUUARKEZ7)

2015 2014
—2-AfF —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR¥ET T ARETT
(Restated)*
(FEE5)~
Net cash generated from REETHAESRESEHE
financing activities 1,399,013 108,753
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRRALEEY
cash equivalents #Bh,/ CRd) 8 265,486 (193,129)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—BA—BHNEBELRES
ZEY 116,593 310,341
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNGE [ R BB & 421 (619)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—HH
31 December ReRBELEEY 382,500 116,593
*  See Note 1(c)i). * BHEE1) ©
The notes on pages 66 to 179 form part of these financial statements. BEIEMEMT RZSHBHRERN — I
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

it G

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AAREEDIR -

1

WS BERAERIN

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs),
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong

which collective term includes all applicable

Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
[HKICPA), the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

“Listing Rules”]). A summary of the significant

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c]
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest in
associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial

statements is the historical cost basis.

o CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 31.

Changes in accounting policies

(i] Changes in presentation currency

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong have their functional currencies in Hong
Kong dollars ("HKD") and subsidiaries established in the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC”) have their
functional currencies in Renminbi ("RMB”). For the year
ended 31 December 2015, along with the successful
acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou Industrial Waste
Reclamation Treatment Co., Limited ("Guangzhou
Lvyou”), the Company determined to change its
presentation currency from HKD to RMB, which is the
functional currency of the Company’s major subsidiaries
in the PRC. The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 with the additional
consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013 have been re-translated
into RMB from HKD. All financial information presented
in RMB has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Notes to the Financial Statements

g e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

g E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1T EXRSTBEw

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EFFBEREE @

(i) New and revised HKFRSs that are first effective i) RASFHEEIERK
for the current accounting period TR R EIEBTE B Y
% 3R & 2 Al
The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to ERCMASCEMUT
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting AEBRAGHEERE
period of the Group: ey &I S LERMEET
. Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: . BB EUNFI9H 2
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions EEIT R E | A E&
& 8 #KU

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle . SR BRELEN -
—EEE_T-—FR

B2 FEBUE
o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle . EAEUBRELEL -
——FE_T—=FH

B2 FEBGE
The amendments do not have an impact on the Group's ZEAEE] I R ¥ AN & B B A
financial statements. The Group has not applied any new WMEREKRTE AEEIL K
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the ERRAgBHERERZ

current accounting period. R 2RISR -

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests d MWBARRFZERES
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group MEARIEREBEZEHE TR
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable AEBEFEBHEE-HERNH
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability RESSERESTZERRITAF
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When I BRHEYEBEEEANR N
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights B2Z2%50%HK BEEZEBAOIES
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered. EoHEMNBREBRREAENK

EeERE(AKEREMALRSA
B EERER -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the KRB RAAMEEGEH G Z
consolidated financial statements from the date that control BEEEHGERZBHHFALSE
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group MBEHRExA - RE ARG RS
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised BHoRHGRBEEREUREMESE
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in BEXEARAIBRXINARER R
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. FMREBEGETBERERE TUS
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are FHE SEARRARIEEN
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the FHREREERERKZER
extent that there is no evidence of impairment. B 5 TLAE S - B A AT
BEREERR -
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group measures any non-
controlling interests at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the cost of
combination is the aggregate of the consideration paid at the
acquisition date and the fair value at the acquisition date of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree. The Group
remeasures its previously held equity interest in the acquiree to
its fair value at the acquisition date, with any difference between
its fair value and its carrying amount being recognised in profit
or loss for the current period.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(k]).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

g E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the

arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (k]). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit

or loss.

In the company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(k]).
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When [ii) is greater than (i], then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and

is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k]).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

g E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

BEARETHE@
() ME BERRE

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1

(g) Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(k]):

— Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases

(note 1(i)); and
= Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see note 1(x]).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(g)

(h]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Buildings and other infrastructure held for own use which
are situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being 20-25 years after the date of

completion.
— Machinery 5-15 years
= Office equipment and others 3-10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs, where applicable (see note 1(x]). Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k]).

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a service
concession arrangement when it has a right to charge for use
of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset received
as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services
in a service concession arrangement is measured at fair value
on initial recognition with reference to the fair value of the
services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (see note
T{k]).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life. The
estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service
concession arrangement is the period from when the Group is
able to charge the end user for the use of the infrastructure to

the end of the concession period:

—  Wastewater treatment plants operation 20-25 years
rights
—  Sludge and solid waste treatment 20 years

operation rights

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid to the
PRC’s government authorities. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (note
1(k)). Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the respective period of the rights which are 35

years to 50 years.

o CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

1

BEARETHE@
(h) BEEE @

RE B PR BB HEE A
FAF B 60 B 2 8 B DA B AN ORL 2 5
B OB EBEIR(RHEIK) -

AEERERMERAKCEERR
B - ARG ELETHE
ENBVEE - ERRRBEER
ZHPRERZRIABREHK
EMESHELEERTHER
B2EMBEHERRENAFERA
FEFE RKERR  GHEE
B ERKRANR R # &R
WEERGE(RMEK) -

BREENBHENGHAIERF
HAABEREEBR TG - BR
BREBLFNELEENME
ERAFEFRASAAXAKEEAMKKA
FRERAEREMRRKERE 2K
ERKEREmLL

—  SKERERME 20-254F
g

- SREKEBEY 204F
B PP AR A

B R R R R
Wit o

RAAHEERE

BNHEHERBEEXN FTHERA
HRAM T ERERAR - L ER
R AR R # i MR EE R
5 B (B RE1(K) = B 85 T3 A B AROK
ZEHABFEROFHAERNIE

IR



1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(j)

(k)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating

leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit

or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods

covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is

more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived

from the leased asset.

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investment in an associate, a
joint venture, trade and other receivables and
gross amounts due from customers for contract
work

Investment in an associate, a joint venture, other current
and non-current receivables and gross amounts due from
customers for contract work that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investment in an associate, a
joint venture, trade and other receivables and
gross amounts due from customers for contract
work (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

= For investments an associate and a joint venture
(including those recognised using the equity
method (see note 1(e])), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 1(k](ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1(k](ii).

= For trade and other current receivables, gross
amounts due from customers for contract work
and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investment in an associate, a
joint venture, trade and other receivables and
gross amounts due from customers for contract
work (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1T EXRSTBEw
(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EERME @
(i) Impairment of other assets li) HhEERE

REBEHREEHNA R
SNRPTISE R SAMEE T3
BERBHBRIME :

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired:

property, plant and equipment;

intangible assets;

lease prepayments; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets [Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or
value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,

recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of

the financial year (see notes 1(k](i) and (ii)).

Impairment loss recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill carried at cost is not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the

impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial

year to which the interim period relates.

() Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are consumed or sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the profit or
loss. The amount of any writedown of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as

an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(m) Construction contracts

(n)

(o)

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group of
assets under a service concession arrangement. When the
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts [see note 1(k]], except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any

interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(t)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturity at acquisition.

(r) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(jii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial free model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued] or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continuedl 1T EXEFBE®

(s) Income tax (s) FrEHi
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements AKEFZHE/HIEREHIERE
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and ERMBEENMBENEE - A
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised HEELERBEERBENEF
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items HEBERAER HERNEME2E
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, Wb ERIEERETRER
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in WIEEBEM BIHEBEHRRED R
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. EmrEBZPERKEEZDE

CLETE

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income BIEARIIE RIZAF EERTMA -
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at MR BREPREAREZHRAD
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax MEGENTEREMTIE  REM
payable in respect of previous years. ERANTEEEARIBFE -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and BELEHEEEREBETDREEMB
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the HKEFABRMNEENBERmEAEHSR
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and EHERARHNEERBERAEE
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. M & B R] T 300 & FE GR FR B B RS
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and EZRMEL - BRLERIBEEI A B
unused tax credits. REFEANRBEE R REER

BRI R PTE A -

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, BTETERBFIINMG RN BTH
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that BERBEELAMEEEHIEER
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset E (2 BR 7 #8 2K R 7] g HL15 JE R 72
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may wHMSZEEESAERS
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from D) TFHER - AFERBT TN
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise HMEREZEMEANELCHESE
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, ENARERHEEZMNBREELEH
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority BEAMERHEREZERODELE
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either MED MZEEEREAR B
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible ERMA—ERHREMBK WA
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising B ] TR A = B 7B H [
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The FE —HABARELENEREER
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing THE EE A MRS B 18 st B B 5k
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of EBAMBBAER - T E B AR
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, AR ENEZERCRATERA
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to AEFEANREEBRIRRTE
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and EHEERBEEERER a8
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax FREE . IZETEEERRE—
loss or credit can be utilised. B E B R — R B AL

YEMERBEERERERR
WHEARLTAEER -
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t} Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)  Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t} Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value of
financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on

initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 1(t)(ii] if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and [(ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(t} Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent Lliability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(u)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, excludes value added tax or other sales

taxes. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i)

(ii)

(jii)

(iv)

Service concession arrangement

Revenue relating to construction services under a service
concession arrangement is recognised based on the
stage of completion of the work performed. When the
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue and expenses are recognised in
profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of
the contract. The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to
date to estimated total contract costs for the contract.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. An expected loss on a contract is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Operation or service
turnover is recognised in the period in which services are
provided by the Group. When the Group provides more
than one service in a service concession arrangement,
the consideration received is allocated by reference to the
relative fair values of the services delivered when the

amounts are separately identifiable

Finance income
Finance income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Revenue from supply of industrial water
Revenue from supply of industrial water is recognised

when industrial water is supplied to customers.

Revenue from provision of other services
Revenue from provision of other services is recognised
when the service is rendered.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1T EXEFBE®

[v) Government grants (v)] BUFF#5Bh

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial fix ] & 32 T 7E B S LER BUAS # B -
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they i A & B & & & BT 8 BY B Y A
will be received and that the Group will comply with the &1 - BB I 0 B 15 ) 25 72 B1 76 AR
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the NEFPER ERBEAEENE
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit ERTOME  DREARIHNE
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the —HE A ZG N B ER @
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for BAREBEERAMNEE - JhEM
the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of BEEREESRNLR  HERZE
the asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit ENAAFRERANBDITERX
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced FTRRIBFER -

depreciation expense.

(w) Translation of functional currencies (w) BREIhNGEE
Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at FANMNEZZERHANEX
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. B PINEHENEEEERE
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign BAERERROERRE - EH
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling BENRBmTER-

at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms AN EE IR E S K ARt ERIEE
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the BENMBEBEIIVEBRX S HHEX
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. b=
The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the BOIMNREEBEBEREATHEH
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling MEXHENEZRREARARKE -
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position RN KRBEERREH RO
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange TMERBRE S AR - FTEHNE
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange HEEER S REREEME2E
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and WaEkEEsTFNELRERR
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve. &

(x) Borrowing costs (x) EERE
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition EEBABEXER —ETEM
or construction which necessarily takes a substantial period of EREMAIEARETERENE
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of ENEERAE  ERNMLIERZIEA
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in BEMIBAKAE - HEEK AR
the period in which they are incurred. EFHFEERSER-
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued

(x)

(y]

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a

qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is

being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and

activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its

intended use are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs

is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities

necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use

are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member):

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued

ly)

(z)

Related parties (Continued)

b)  (Continued)
(iv]  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi]  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vl a person identified in (alli) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the group or to the group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Turnover and Segment Reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are organised by
business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
seven reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

— Supply of industrial water: this segment supplies industrial

water.

= Provision of wastewater treatment plants operation services:
this segment operates wastewater treatment plants under
Build-Own-Operate ('BOQ") arrangement.

—  Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT"] project construction and
operation services: this segment constructs and operates
wastewater and solid waste treatment plants under BOT
arrangement to generate turnover from construction, operation
services and finance income.

= Provision of heating services: this segment provides heating

services.

— Provision of sludge and solid waste treatment services: this
segment provides sludge and solid waste treatment services.

= Provision of entrusted operation services: this segment
operates and maintains industrial water supply, wastewater
treatment, sludge and solid waste treatment and hazardous
waste treatment facilities in return for service fees (Notes).

= Provision of hazardous waste treatment services: this segment

provides hazardous waste treatment services.
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2 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 31 March 2015, the Group entered into an entrusted operation
agreement with Guangzhou Lvyou. Under the terms of the agreement,
the daily operation and management of Guangzhou Lvyou were
performed by the Group for the period from 1 April 2015 until the
completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou as the Group’'s
subsidiary. The acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou was completed in
August 2015 (note 13(b)]). No control was obtained by the Group over
Guangzhou Lvyou under the entrusted operation agreement.

On 23 September 2014, 23 September 2014 and 10 February 2015, the
Group entered into entrusted operation agreements with Zhongshan
Zhongtuo Kailan Company Limited ["Zhongtuo Kailan”), Foshan Shunde
Ganghui Wastewater Treatment Company Limited (“Ganghui Huanbao")
and Shunde Hanyang Industrial Water Supply Company Limited ("Hanyang
Shuiwu”) respectively. Under the terms of the agreements, the Group
operates the supply of industrial water and the wastewater treatment
facilities and derive operation income based on agreed unit price and
actual processing volume. No control was obtained by the Group over
the counterparties under the entrusted operation agreement. The
provision of entrusted operation services were ceased upon the
completion of the acquisitions of Zhongtuo Kailan, Ganghui Huanbao
and Hanyang Shuiwu as the Group's subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2015 (note 13(b)).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into another
three (31 December 2014: Two) entrusted operation agreements with
Guangzhou Menghui Technology Company Limited ("Menghui
Technology”], Guangzhou Jimei Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited ("Guangzhou Jimei”) and Zengcheng Zhongling
Chemical Plant Company (“Zhongling Chemical’). Under the terms of
the agreements, the Group operates the wastewater treatment and
sludge and solid waste treatment facilities for a period of 20 years and
derive operation income based on agreed unit price and actual
processing volume. No control was obtained by the Group over the
counterparties under the entrusted operation agreement.
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

2 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

(a)

2 WAKRDEREH @

Information about profit or loss (a) ER@ENTEEZ2E R
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as REBSAEERBFEERSE R
provided to the Group's most senior executive management for DEEBTHAIEEZAI 2R D
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment HBEBzEREINNWMOT -
performance is set out below.
Provision of
wastewater Provision of Provision of
treatment  BOT project sludgeand Provisionof  hazardous
Supply of plants construction Provision of  solid waste entrusted waste
industrial operation and operation heating treatment operation treatment
water services services services services services services Total
A5 K REFER R#ERRE
HETE RERE BEHER B EY RHEZTE BYEE
K EERY REERY REBRE BERY EERB R #% B
For the year ended 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
BEER “2-1f ZZ-H5f -B-Ef CZB-1f -B-1Hf C-E-EF C-B-If -T-EHf
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR¥TR AR®BTR AR¥TR AR¥T:R
Revenue from external RENDEFH M
customers 40,204 353,077 318,869 65,518 361,332 131,356 164,603 1,434,959
Inter-segment revenue ok L - 36,212 - - 21,970 - 8,383 66,565
Reportable segment AERS BKE
revenue 40,204 389,289 318,869 65,518 383,302 131,356 172,986 1,501,524
Adjusted EBITDA FABZEBITDA 29,471 262,472 79,389 4,325 210,963 130,945 106,791 824,356
Share of profits of AEBERR/ R
associates/a jointventure A& EHEF - 361 - - - - 1,115 1,476
Depreciation and nEREHE
amortisation (2,678) (52,365) (555) (1,220 (54,534) - (33,224) (144,576)
PERREBERAT —FT-AFEH
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

2 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continves 2 W A K 2 2P 2 3 @)

(a) Information about profit or loss (Continued) Q) EEEFAIEBEBZ2ER
()
Provision of

wastewater  BOT project Provision of Provision of

treatment construction sludgeand  Provisionof  hazardous

Supply of plants and  Provision of  solid waste  entrusted waste

industrial ~ operation  operation heating ~ treatment  operation  treatment
water services services services services services services Total

RETK REFTER RELR

HE BRERE HEAERR EREN RHEET BEOER
IRk 2ERE REERE RUBRE BERE LERB R Fx
For the year ended 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014
HEFER “E-mF —E-MF —T-MF —T-NF —T-mOF —E-mOF —Z-mE —T-MF

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRE ARKTRT AREFT ARBTRT ARBTT
[restated)  [restated)  [restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated]  [restated)

(g=y) (BE5) (KEH) (KEF) (KBH) (KEH) (KEF) (KE))

Revenue from external RENDE P 8z
customers 41,469 352,496 113,931 67,051 243,169 - — 818,116
Inter-segment revenue Rl = 22,478 = = 17,506 = = 39,984

Reportable segment PER: VR 6

revenue 41,469 374,974 113,931 67,051 260,675 - — 858,100
Adjusted EBITDA A EBITDA 31,167 269,178 42,479 6,399 139,574 - - 488,797
Share of profits of AE—RBERR/ R

an associate/a joint venture RELEMET = 3377 = = = = = 3377
Depreciation and nEREH

amortisation (2,566) (31,129) (387) (1,220 (31,751) = = (67,053)
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2 WAKRDEREH @
(a) EEEANIGEE 2ER

2 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

(a) Information about profit or loss (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted profit before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group's
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’
remuneration, finance costs and other head office or corporate

administration costs.

The Group has transactions with the PRC local government
authorities (under common control from the PRC government]
which in aggregate exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover.
Turnover from provision of wastewater treatment plants
operation services, BOT project construction and operation
services and provision of sludge and solid waste treatment
services derived from local government authorities in the PRC
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB226,437,000 (2014: RMB103,184,000). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out
in note 26(a).

(%)

ARHESHBRMNMFTERTRXAE
[ 38 2 %% EBITDA] - B[ & 5t & #
B FBIE WEREHEMHARE
Ao BEBAEIREBITDA - &
SEZRBADEHITRETEBR
BRI BzBEELE—THE
MEEHH BEKARE MBS
W FEITHA A -

AN 5 B £8 AR B b 5 BT A R (AR
BB ERES)ETHRZE %
HRAEEEEENI0N HEZ
E-—AF+-_A=+—BItFE"
RS KERREEERL - HE
BELEERBRERSEAR
EEEMEIERGMEEERA
FEMAFBFEBORABAR
#6226,437,0007C( =& — M F : A
R %103,184,0007T) - KRB BEF K
FEERBFBEHIINHE26(a)

PERREEERLAR —E-HFEFR o
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(AARBIIR -

2 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued

(b)

(c)

WS BERERIN)

2 WAKRDEREH

Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) TE2EF I HWARERH
revenues and profits ¥T,EE
2015 2014
—E2-1F —E-MF
Note RMB’000 RMB000
Bt 5 AR¥TF T AR®ET T
(Restated)
(&)
Reportable segment profit A 2 o & A 824,356 488,797
Elimination of inter-segment profits ] 2 3} 9 &5 & )i F1) ¥7 88 (3,070) (33)
821,286 488,764
Share of profits of associates/ DIEBERE, —REE
ajoint venture b 2 69 ) A 1,476 3,377
Finance costs A& AR 4(a) (70,157) (42,766)
Interest income FEBA 3(a) 483 279
Depreciation and amortisation k=08 3 4(c) (144,576) (67,053)
Gain on bargain acquisition of ZEWRE BB QA
a subsidiary 2 WaEs 3(b) 138,461 =
Net foreign exchange loss SN BT 1R R AR 3(b) (43,254) (224)
Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses F vl S NG T (33,144) (8,519)
Consolidated profit before taxation 42 & & B¢ B & K 670,575 373,858
Geographic information c) HEER
Analysis of the Group’s turnover and assets by geographical BERAEBEBABOREREE
market has not been presented as substantially all of the EEXERRURFBIEA - T R2
Group’'s revenue and assets are generated and located in the FIAREBIZETHE DM EE

PRC.
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

3 Other Revenue and Other Net Income/(Loss) 3 H it It #& & H b /F I
=,/ (E#8)
Other revenue (a) Hftzukz=
2015 2014
—g-sn%F —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
(Restated)
(Fg&E5))
Government grants T 40 BY
— Unconditional subsidies * — G 1 i A 11,313 430
— Conditional subsidies (note 23 — B 1w b (T % 23) 110 =
Value-added tax refund ** EETRT 55,652 -
Interest income FEWHA 483 279
Gain on remeasurement of previously-held ~ RKIEEIRAFEEHTE
equity interests in an associate at fair ZEIFRA M — K E QA
value upon acquisition A&t T 2= A 2 W s = 18,114
Others Hit 1,143 726
68,701 19,549

(b)

Government grants represent various forms of incentives and

subsidies granted to the Group by the local government

authorities in the PRC.

*k

The Group was entitled to value-added tax refund of

RMB55,652,000 (2014: Nil] during the year ended 31 December
2015 in relation to the provisions of wastewater, sludge and solid

waste treatment services of the Group in the PRC. There were no

unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the

receipts of such tax refund.

*x

BB EL T RARTASRETR
WAZREREB -

BHE-_Z—AF+=-A=+—HLHF
B -AEBBERAEBMNFREREHE
B975 7K ~ 5 I (B B8 FBE W) R 32 AR 75 & 35
B ERH AR55652,0007C (= F—M
Fom) MEEHKMZSER KA
ZARER G E R AREIE -

Other net income/(loss) (b) HiFhaz  (FE)
2015 2014
—E-AF — M
RMB’000 RMB000
ARBT T AR T T
(Restated)
(&E5)

Gain on bargain acquisition of a subsidiary EZEWE-—RHWBARZ K=
(note 13(b)) (H$3E13(b)) 138,461 -
Net foreign exchange loss bE X B8 F 5 (43,254) (224)
Others H1th (895) (1,209)
94,312 (1,433)
PEHRREEBRAR —ZE—HEFF® Q



Notes to the Financial Statements

RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

4 Profit before Taxation 4 BR¥ AT R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BR B AT s Rl IR, (GFA) T3 &8
(a) Finance costs (a) ®E KA
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE—MOF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
(Restated)
(&=5)
Interest on bank loans RITEFF S
— wholly repayable within five years —HARAEFRNEHEE 39,930 13,068
— other bank loans —HEMIRITER 35,908 36,039
Sub-total Nt 75,838 49,107
Less: interest expenses capitalised into B BREARBERYE
properties under development* RPN (5,681) (6,341)
Total finance costs BB R A AR 70,157 42,766
& The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.23% per * BERAERFNE6L2%E R
annum [2014: 6.55%). fE(ZF— % : 655%) °
(b) Staff costs (b) & TEA
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
(Restated)
(&E75)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TENRHMEF 93,369 48,737
Contributions to defined contribution plan FE M RET B R 5,380 2,460
98,749 51,197
The employees of the companies in the PRC participate in a RPAERRINES2EMRM T K
defined contribution retirement scheme operated by the local JiT # B 8 E ) ROE R FOR K R A
government authorities whereby the Group is required to E AEEARAGEREERR
contribute to the scheme at rate of 13% to 15% of the eligible ¥ & M13% 2 15% M & 8 7E B
employees’ basic salary (2014: 12% to 15%). (ZZF—WF  12% % 15%) °
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4 Profit before Taxation (continued)

(b) Staff costs (Continued)

(c)

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund ("MPF") are
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The Group and its employees in Hong
Kong make monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
contributions from employees and employers are subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HKD30,000 (HKD25,000 prior
to June 2014).

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

4 BRBATRF @

(b) BT A @)

EXEHEAESEIGARTE
maas AR ([BES]) /EH #t
Ko AEBREREBEET AiRA
FlIMERBERTEGHNTAENRE
S 8B W A KI5% (A 38 18 £ 5T 8l
gt EER - REREEHAE
ERReEcEWNMEERTINE A
U A LBR A30,008 (==
— P4 N A Z A 25,0008 7T) ©

The Group has no other material obligations for payments of & bt 4 FRON - AN & [E A 48 B S A

retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees B BRI & H MR KEE R RAE
other than the contributions described above. HMEBEBKREME-

Other items (c) HfhEH

2015 2014

—E-EfF —T—mF

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B 7 AR® TR AREF T

(Restated)

(&= E3)

Cost of construction service BRI 216,329 40,670

Cost of inventories* TFERA* 17 78,214 64,594

Depreciation and amortisation e R 9,10, 11 144,576 67,053

Operating lease charges KEHERX 7,087 3,568

Research and development expenses  fff 2% & 2,013 1,460

Auditors’ remuneration % B B & 5,096 5,336

< Cost of inventories represented raw materials consumed during * FERANIEME X RBKREH

the supply of industrial water, provision of wastewater treatment
plants operation services, provision of sludge and solid waste
treatment services and provision of hazardous waste treatment
services.

75 7K B B AR Bt B AR TS A e 4R it
75 e B [E] #8 BE W) B 3% AR 75 M he ¢
1B I RE 22 ) 5 32 AR 75 PO B RO IR
M

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR @
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

5 Income Tax in the Consolidated 5 HREERRANAEM
Statement of Profit or Loss
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) MEBBRRAMNBIERE
profit or loss represents:
2015 2014
—®B-5fF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R AR T T
(Restated)
(&=5)
Current tax — PRC income tax BB — B BH
Provision for PRC income tax o B TS A B 62,525 30,843
Deferred tax I BiE
Origination and reversal of TRMEENEERED
temporary differences 6,798 3,699
Income tax expenses Fri5fipE 69,323 34,542
(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b) REBABRBIFAENRE
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: MXEEFT SRR
2015 2014
—E-EfF —Z-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
(Restated)
(L&E:5)
Profit before taxation B Bt A s A 670,575 373,858
Notional tax on profit before taxation EZREMBRIEEREAD
calculated at the standard tax rates EERERBRANE A E
applicable at the jurisdictions concerned (i) #)% 3& % 1A (i) 175,123 95,386
Effect of non-deductible expenses TR0 A S 8 5,244 8,458
Effect of non-taxable income FERBMANTE (34,985) (5,373)
Effect of preferential tax treatments [ii) EEHIEFBNFE) (86,127) (59,745)
Effect of tax losses not recognised {iii) RERBIEE BN ZZ() 10,093 952
Use of previously unrecognised tax losses FRLAAERHIEABRE (25) (5,136)
Income tax expenses IR X 69,323 34,542
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5 Income Tax in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group
did not earn income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

The statutory income tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Some of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to the
following PRC preferential tax treatments:

Guangzhou Xintao Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
("Guangzhou Xintao”) was approved as a High and New
Technology Enterprise in September 2015, which entitled it to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017 (2014:
15%).

Guangzhou Lvyou was approved as a High and New Technology
Enterprise in September 2015, which entitled it to the preferential
income tax rate of 15% from year 2015 to 2017.

Guangzhou Haitao Environmental Protection Technology
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Haitao”], being an entity engaged
in wastewater treatment and sludge treatment, is entitled to a tax
holiday of 3-year exemption and 3-year 50% reduction on income
derived from such activities (the "3+3 tax holiday”] starting from
the year in which the project starts to generate operating
revenue. Guangzhou Haitao Phase | and Phase Il of the Yonghe
Haitao wastewater treatment facility are subject to income tax at 0%
from 2010 to 2012, 12.5% from 2013 to 2015, and 25% from 2016
onwards; and Guangzhou Haitao Phase Il of the Yonghe Haitao
wastewater treatment facility and Yonghe Haitao sludge
treatment facility are subject to income tax at 0% from 2013 to
2015, 12.5% from 2016 to 2018, and 25% from 2019 onwards.
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Income Tax in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iii)

Huaihua Tianyuan Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
("Huaihua Tianyuan”]) and Guangzhou Yinglong Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Yinglong”), being entities engaged
in wastewater treatment, are each entitled to the 3+3 tax holiday
starting from the year in which the project first generates
operating revenue. Huaihua Tianyuan is subject to income tax at 0%
from 2010 to 2012, 12.5% from 2013 to 2015, and 25% from 2016
onwards; and Yinglong is subject to income tax at 0% from 2012
to 2014, 12.5% from 2015 to 2017, and 25% from 2018 onwards.

Qingyuan Lvyou Environmental Protection Technology Company
Limited (“Qingyuan Lvyou”) and Heyuan Solid Waste Centralised
Disposal Centre Company Limited ("Heyuan Solid”), being entities
engaged in solid waste treatment, are entitled to the 3+3 tax
holiday starting from the year in which the project starts to
generate operating revenue. Qingyuan Lvyou is subject to income
tax at 0% from 2014 to 2016, 12.5% from 2017 to 2019, and 25%
from 2020 onwards; and Heyuan Solid is subject to income tax at 0%
from 2010 to 2012, 12.5% from 2013 to 2015, and 25% from 2016
onwards.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries located in Hong
Kong and subsidiaries on the PRC of RMB9,344,000 (2014:
RMB244,000) and RMB749,000 (2014: RMB708,000), respectively.
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6 Directors’ Remuneration

The details of directors’ remuneration are disclosed as follows:
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6 EEME
AREEEWEHHBERBMT -

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_Z-A5+-A=+-HLEE

Contribution

Salaries, to defined
allowances  contribution
Directors’ and benefits retirement Discretionary
fees in kind plans bonuses Total
REMR
A= 4:1 RRGE
ESHe REVEA H MiERA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥BTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR®Tx
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Tsui Cham To REEEE - 4,105 14 8 4,127
Mr. Lu Yili EEVEE - 2,022 15 — 2,037
Mr. Gu Yaokun [notelii)) R sk A (KT RE() - 688 17 - 705
Mr. Xu Shubiao HEREE - 117 15 13 145
Mr. Xu Juwen REXS%E = = = = -
Mr. Xu Zitao (notef(i)) s (M) - 63 7 — 70
Sub-total e - 6,995 68 21 7,084
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent BERIEEE — 243 — — 243
Mr. Du Hequn HEEREL - 162 - - 162
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BRELE - 81 - - 81
Sub-total INE - 486 - - 486
Total et - 7,481 68 21 7,570
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6 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

6 EEMWEw

Year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)
HE_ZT-NF+_A=+T—HLFEEE)

Contribution

Salaries, to defined
allowances  contribution
Directors’ and benefits in retirement  Discretionary
fees kind plans bonuses Total
REHRR
Fo 2Bk RIKETE
Lok EYRN #’R BB A #Et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE ARMTE ARNTE ARMTE ARETE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Tsui Cham To HEBLE — 2,021 14 10 2,045
Mr. Lu Yili BB %E = 951 13 — 964
Mr. Xu Shubiao HEREE - 116 13 9 138
Mr. Xu Juwen BENXEE - - - - -
Mr. Xu Zitao hFEEE - 62 7 5 74
Sub-total INF — 3,150 47 24 3,221
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BRtxE - 78 - - 78
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent R 1F S A (MEEEGi)

(note (iii) - 149 - = 1649
Mr. Du Hequn (note (jii)} 86 B 5 A (BT 5F (i) - 58 - - 58
Mr. Xu Zhencheng [note (iv)) AR A 5T A (R (V) - 58 - - 58
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MR B 5 A (B EE (iv)

(note (iv)) - 147 - - 147
Sub-total INE — 510 - — 510
Total Bt = 3,660 47 24 3,731
Notes B &

(i) Mr. Xu Zitao was resigned on 23 November 2015.

(ii) Mr. Gu Yaokun was appointed as executive director on 23 November
2015.

li) ~ Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent and Mr. Du Hequn were appointed as
independent non-executive directors on 15 April 2014 and 21 August
2014 respectively.

(iv) Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr. Xu Zhencheng were resigned on 15
April 2014 and 6 June 2014 respectively.

There were no amounts paid during the year ended 31 December

2015 (2014: Nil] to the directors as inducement to join or upon joining
the Company or the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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7

Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three (2014: Two) is
the director whose emolument is disclosed in note 6. The aggregate

of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2014: Three)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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7 REHMAL

hEZERFMALTNEF=2(=F
—MF:MB)MRARABES  E
BERME HMmA(ZF —MF:

individuals are as follows: —HR)ATHBSBEDT
2015 2014
—E-—FE —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARBT T
(Restated)
(se&E3)
Salaries and other benefits FeREMETR 1,071 1,193
Contribution to defined contribution plan FEH ARG 8 R 15 20
Total @t 1,086 1,213

The emoluments of these remaining individuals with the highest

BRTIREFMALTOMECIN AT EHE

emoluments are within the following bands: A
2015 2014
—E-FF —E—-MF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) B (Exl) A AE
Nil-1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 2 3

PERREEERAT —E-—EEFH @
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8 Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic earnings per share

8 BEREF
(a) BREXRF

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HEzE_ZT—NFE+=-A=+—8H
purpose of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 IEFESRERZF I EA M
December 2014 has been retroactively adjusted for the share HEEHHEE MR D IFAETTE N

subdivision (note 24(a)(iv)).

8% (Bt s 24(a)liv) ©

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the R EARBFEOFTEFETRIE
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of F RN R R EE LR ARE
RMB598,916,000 (2014: RMB336,478,000) and the weighted 598,916,000 (ZE — WM F : AR
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. #5336,478,0007T) LA R B 1T L 3B

Pz nEFI B ERBHT

2015 2014

—E—EEF —E—MF

000 ‘000

T8 T

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BERTERK 5,768,328 1,382,082

Effect of issuance of shares (note 24(a)liii)] AR 17 %17 &) 72 22 (FfI 5% 24(a) iii)) 109,535 24,329

Effect of the share subdivision i v 40 1) 2 2

(note 24(alli) & (iv)) (Bt 3 24(a) () &(iv)) 223,399 4,219,233
Effect of purchase of shares under RERNDZBAEREERSD

the Share Award Scheme (note 24(a)(v)) 52 2 (P 5 24(a)(v) (387) =
Weighted average number of ordinary RTZA=Z+—BEBER

shares at 31 December niEFHEH 6,100,875 5,625,644

(b) Diluted earnings per share

(b) BR#EFRF

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were REEZZE—AFRZT—HEF

no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued.

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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Property, Plant and Equipment
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9 X BERRE

Buildings Office
and other equipment  Construction
infrastructure Machinery and others in progress Total
BFREM BARE
HE@fRin g8 REf HEIR @et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTL ARMFT ARBTE ARETT ARET:
Cost: RA:
At1 January 2014 (Restated) HR-T-—NE—F—H
(EE5) 213,829 140,314 6,737 122,636 483,516
Additions through acquisition & BKEH B R FETRE
of subsidiaries [Restated) (E=50) 296,184 228,701 27,130 102,240 654,255
Additions (Restated) AE(EED) 576 7,082 4,783 237,851 250,292
Transfer from constructionin  EERIEEL (KEF))
progress (Restated) 123,395 50,862 242 (174,499) =
Disposals (Restated) REMED) (79) (204) (780) - (1,083)
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) RZZE—ME+-A=1+—H
(BE7) 633,905 426,755 38,112 288,228 1.387,000
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—-H§¥—A—H 633,905 426,755 38,112 288,228 1,387,000
Additions through acquisition ~ BEBKEMNBRRETRE
of subsidiaries [note 13(b)) (PR 13(b)) 229,338 164,680 14,019 240,344 648,381
Additions NE 14,410 9,356 5,870 332,683 362,319
Transfer from construction BERIRES
in progress 346,903 196,074 - (542,977) -
Disposals RE - - (346) = (346)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+ZRA=+—H 1,224,556 796,865 57,655 318,278 2,397,354
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RFTIFE:
At 1 January 2014 [Restated) H-ZT—NFE—F—H
(BE7) (34,664) (44,500) (2,142) - (81,306)
Charge for the year (Restated) F Rk (L EF) (22,175) (29,640) (5,601) - (57,416)
Written-off on disposals BRI (K E5)
(Restated) 11 147 372 - 530
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) R ZE—NE+-f=+—H
(Z=7) (56,828) (73,993) (7,371) - (138,192)
At 1 January 2015 RZT-—AF—F—H (56,828) (73,993) (7.371) = (138,192)
Charge for the year FRMB (40,229) (58,882) (9,733) - (108,844)
Written-off on disposals IR B B - - 333 - 333
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-AF+=-A=+—-H (97,057) (132,875) (16,771) = (246,703)
Carrying amount: REME :
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—AF+-A=1+—H 1,127,499 663,990 40,884 318,278 2,150,651
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) R —ZE—NE+-A=+—H
(BE50) 577,077 352,762 30,741 288,228 1,248,808
RERAEEERAT ZZ—HFER
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9 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 9 ME BEERZRE®

Certain property, plant and equipment with carrying value of
RMB69,991,000 were pledged to secure the Group's bank loans as at
31 December 2015 (2014: RMB43,322,000] (note 21).

R-_ZE—HFE+_-_A=+—H FHEE
BARMEE 991000 E TYE  BE

BRECEREALAEEZRITERD
BER(ZZE—0F : AR¥43,322,0007T)
(MF7E21) ©

10 Lease Prepayments 10 A HENKE
Land use rights
T i fE AR
RMB'000
ARBT T
Cost: o N
At 1 January 2014 (Restated) RZT—MFE-—A—B =) 38,222
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries (Restated) BRARBEWBAREITRE (KES) 32,270
Additions (Restated) RE(KEF) 45,617
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) RZTE—ME+_A=+T—HEEE3]) 116,109
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—hAFE—HA—H 116,109
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 13(b))  FE B U BB M B 2 a7 A E (K sE13(b) 186,338
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RF+-_A=+—H 302,447
Accumulated amortisation: E-g 5
At 1 January 2014 (Restated) RZTE—MOFE-—A—R(KE) (1,148)
Charge for the year (Restated) FAMKEEES) (2,344)
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) RZTE—ME+-_A=+—HBEE7]) (3.492)
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hF—H—H (3.492)
Charge for the year F AN (4,827)
At 31 December 2015 R-F-—RF+=-_A=+—8 (8,319)
Carrying amount: BRTEE :
At 31 December 2015 RZTE—AF+-_A=+—H 294,128
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) R-ZZB-OFE+-_A=+—RHEE5) 112,617

Certain lease prepayments with carrying value of RMB63,753,000
were pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans as at 31 December
2015 (2014: RMB49,202,000) (note 21).

Amortisation of lease prepayments for land use rights is included in
the administrative expenses and cost of sales.

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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. 5
11 Intangible Assets M BREEE
Wastewater Sludge and
Supply of treatment solid waste Hazardous
industrial plants treatment waste
water operation operation treatment
operation right rights rights operation right Total
5k R E
RETER FSAEERL BYERE BB
KEERE =L RS ER RELEE @
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT ARETFR AREF T ARBETT
Cost: PO
At 1 January 2014 (Restated) RZZ-—NE—A—-HEEF) = 8,100 32,658 = 40,758
Additions through acquisition of BRNEETRE
— Yinglong (Restated) —BEEE7) - 59,000 - - 59,000
— Qingyuan Lvyou (Restated) —BREA(BEY) — = 92,288 = 92,288
Additions (Restated) RE(RES) = 50,523 - - 50,523
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) R-ZZE-NE+-A=1+—H
(m=3) - 117,623 124,946 - 262,569
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZ—HF—HA—H — 117,623 124,946 — 242,569
Additions through acquisition of FERWEEITRE
— Hanyang Shuiwu (note 11(a) — 8k (M 1(a) &
and note 13(b)(x)) P 7 13(b)(x)) 40,000 - - - 40,000
— Guangzhou Liangang Vessel — BT A A
Wastewater Treatment Company BmABR DA
Limited ("Guangzhou Liangang”) (TR M 1) (B 211 (b) &
(note 11(b) and note 13(b(il} B 5 13(b)(i1) - 57,000 - - 57,000
— Ganghui Huanbao (note 11(c) - BERRK
and note 13(b)(v) (P &E11(c) B2 Bt = 13(0) ) - 16,000 - - 16,000
— Zhongtuo kailan (note 11(d) — R E (T EE110d) R
and note 13(b)(vi]) B £ 13(b)(vi)) = 10,000 — — 10,000
— Guangzhou Kangxiang Metal —BNRANEEBEK
Reclamation Company Limited ARAR(TEMEARD)
("Guangzhou Kangxiang”) (PR3 11(e) B B 2 13(b)(iii))
(note 11(e) and note 13(bl(iii) - - 17,000 - 17,000
— Guangzhou Lvyou (note 11(f) — B ke (P EE 110 &
and note 13(b)(viii)) Bt 5 13(b)(viii)) - — = 696,000 696,000
— Guangdong Longtao Circular -BRERARLCERR
Economy Development HRAR(EREE]
Company Limited (P 11(g) R B E13(b)(V)))
("Guangdong Longtao”)
(note 11(g) and note 13(b)(iv)) - - 33,613 - 33,613
— Foshan Haoying Solid Waste —BILTEREREY
Centralized Treatment Centre BRERLAERADR
Company Limited ("Haoying (MERERE])
Solid’) (note 11(h) and (PR EE11(h) B2 B =2 13(b)Mvid)
note 13(b) vii]) = — 7,000 - 7,000
— Foshan Sanshui Zhaofeng Energy — BT = KELER
Company Limited (“Sanshui BRAR(T=KESE])
Zhaofeng") (note 11(i) and (B2 110) B B &5 13(b)(ix))
note 13(b)(ix)) = = 14,000 - 14,000
— Xinfeng Lvzhi Industrial Waste —HEGRGBEIXEYD
Reclamation Treatment Co., WREEERA A
Limited (“Xinfeng Lvzhi") ([Fress | (HEn)k
(note 11(j) and note 13(b]il) Bt 3£ 13(b)(1)) - - 23,900 = 23,900
40,000 83,000 95,513 696,000 914,513
Additions (note 11(k]) NE (FHEE11(k) - 121,384 81,284 - 202,668
Derecognition upon acquisition of R B D RER ERER
subsidiaries (note 11(l)) (BF&E1100) - [171,898) - - (171,898)
At31 December 2015 R-Z-HAF+-A=1+—H 40,000 150,109 301,743 696,000 1,187,852

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR 0
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11 Intangible Assets (continued)

1M1 BEEE @

Wastewater Sludge and
Supply of treatment solid waste Hazardous
industrial plants treatment waste
water operation operation treatment
operation right rights rights  operation right Total
- 5 R E i
REIXR FSAEEELZ BYEE EREY
KSR EE RiELE R EERER @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTR ARETFR ARBTT ARBTR

Amortisation 5

At 1 January 2014 (Restated) RZZ-NE—-F—-B#EEF) — 1,260) (156) = (1.416)

Amortisation (Restated) B (EES = (2.327) (4,966) = (7,293)

At 31 December 2014 (Restated) RZE-mEF+-A=+—H

(BE) = (3,587) (5,122) = (8,709)

At 1 January 2015 R-Z—aF—A—H = (3,587) (5,122) - (8,709)

Amortisation 4 (222) (8,283) (7,900) (14,500) (30,905)

Derecognition upon acquisition of R BN B A R R IE R

subsidiaries [note 11(U) (1) - 2373 - - 2373

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-HAF+-A=+—-A (222) 9.497) (13,022) (14,500) (37,241)

Carrying amount: BREE:

At 31 December 2015 R=Z-RAF+=-A=+—H 39,778 140,612 288,721 681,500 1,150,611

At 31 December 2014 (Restated) RZE-HmF+=-A=+—H

(& E35) = 114,036 119,824 — 233,860

Notes: B 5

(a)  The amount represented the supply of industrial water operation right (a) ZSEABOOLHIET 2 HETTEKE
under BOO arrangement without an expiry date. The directors expected B EIHA EERTEBOORHIE
that the operation right under BOO arrangement could generate net THREERARBEEEFHRESRA
cash inflow to the Group for a total period of 15 years. BEHRISEF -

(b)  The principal activities of Guangzhou Liangang are provision of vessel b) BEBMEBZTEZEBANTHREHM
and port waste mineral oil treatment services, and production of MRBOEEYREERE - AREE
biodiesel in the PRC. The licence of this operation right will be expired EYLEh c REBREBER_Z—N
on 12 September 2018. The directors expected that the licence can be FARA+ZBIH -EEFFHHBERARN
renewed upon expiry and to generate net cash inflow to the Group for a IMEEE WAAKEEEFRER
total period of 15 years. A HBEHARI5F -

(c)  The amount represented the wastewater treatment operation right (c) ZeEABEBOOLHET 2RHEI5K
under BOO arrangement without an expiry date. The directors expected REEERE ®BIHE - EETEFBOO
that the operation right under BOO arrangement could generate net ZHETHRERSAEBRELEFR
cash inflow to the Group for a total period of 15 years. EmA BEHRIGE -

(d)  The amount represented the wastewater treatment operation right (d  ZEEABOOLHE T ZFKEEEE

under BOO arrangement without an expiry date. The directors expected
that the operation right under BOO arrangement could generate net
cash inflow to the Group for a total period of 15 years.
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11 Intangible Assets (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

(k)

The principal activities of Guangzhou Kangxiang are provision of sludge
and solid waste treatment services in the PRC. The licence of this
operation right was renewed on 13 January 2016 and will be expired on
13 January 2021. The directors expected that the licence could be
renewed upon expiry and to generate net cash inflow to the Group for a
total period of 15 years.

The principal activities of Guangzhou Lvyou are provision of hazardous
waste treatment in the PRC. The licence of this operation right will be
expired on 29 July 2016. The directors expected that the licence could be
renewed upon expiry and to generate net cash inflow to the Group for a
total period of 20 years.

The amount represented sludge and solid waste treatment operation
right under BOT arrangement (note 11(k)) with an operation period of 30
years.

The principal activities of Haoying Solid are provision of sludge and solid
waste treatment services in the PRC. The licence of this operation right
is without an expiry date. The directors expected that the licence could
generate net cash inflow to the Group for a total period of 15 years.

The principal activities of Sanshui Zhaofeng are processing and sales of
biomass fuel in the PRC. The licence of this operation right will be
expired on 8 June 2016. The directors expected that the licence could be
renewed upon expiry and to generate net cash inflow to the Group for a
total period of 15 years.

The amount represented sludge and solid waste treatment operation
right under BOO arrangement without an expiry date. The directors
expected that the operation right under BOO arrangement could
generate net cash inflow to the Group for a total period of 15 years.

In 2015, the Group entered into several service concession agreements
with grantors to construct wastewater treatment and sludge and solid
waste treatment facilities in the PRC. Under the terms of the
agreements, the Group will operate the facilities for a period of 20 to 30
years. The construction of the facilities started in 2015 and the Group
has recognised revenue of RMB215,836,000 and profit of RMB42,883,000
on construction of the facilities for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The revenue recognised in relation to construction represents the fair
value of the construction services provided in constructing the
wastewater treatment and sludge and solid waste treatment facilities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

g e
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

1M1 BEEE @

Bt - ()

le) BEBMNEIAZEBEBARTEIREMES
EREEEMERRS - ZEBEEE
RZE—AFEF—A+=-HEBRIR=
T - —F—F+=BEH - BEEBEYRE
BEMEEE TAASEELFES
A BFERISEF -

(f) BMNGZBzEEEZBARPEIREMHSE
EEMERIE - ZERBEEREBR T —
ANELAZTNAEH EBEHEE
BB EE WAAESEEEFESR
A HFHR20F -

(g) ZLFEABOTRHHE T (MIFE11K)HS
Ve b B B RE I BE IR A = - R HIR30
£ o

(h HREBEZEZXEBARFEREHRS
TR EEERERS - CEEHFITE
WHEDEA SEEPEREELFR
EMA - BEHRISE -

(i) SKEEZFEEBRARTHRERER
HELEMRE - ZCEHEBER=F
—A~NEANANBERE - EERHAERA
REBPEEE TAAESEELFERS
MA - HBEFEHRI5EF -

(j) ZEHEABOOLHBE N5 KEEEY
RIEEERE BB HA - EETEEBOO
THETHEERARAEBELEFR
ERA HBEHBISE -

k) R-ZZ—AF FAEEFEAETFATILS
DRBELERZ ARRNRPEZ
55 K BE 3 R e RS R K [ BE R W) B 32
B REBBEER AEEKLEER
BEAI0ENF - ZERERN T —
AEMKRER BBEE-_T—RHE+=
A=+—BILHM AEECHEER
e TR A R 215,836,000 7T K UL A
R ¥ 42883,0007T K i Fl o Bt T 32 M R
ZHBRZAERSKERERERS
R E B R IR R e AT IR R R
B2 RFE -

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

11 Intangible Assets (continued)

12

Notes: (Continued)

(k)

l

(m)

(Continued)

The Group has the right to charge the grantors a fee for using the
facilities. At the end of the concession period, the facilities will become
the property of the grantors and the Group will have no further
involvement in its operation or maintenance requirements.

These service concession arrangements do not contain a renewal
option.

Derecognition upon acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group had operating rights under service concession agreements
with Ganghui Huanbao, Zhongtuo Kailan and Hanyang Shuiwu, for which
intangible assets were recognised. These pre-existing relationships
were effectively settled when the Group acquired 100% equity shares of
Ganghui Huanbao, Zhongtuo Kailan and Hanyang Shuiwu during the
year ended 31 December 2015 (note 13(b)). The Group has adjusted the
consideration for these business acquisitions by RMB169,525,000 (note
13(b)), which represents the off-market element of the pre-existing
relationships from the perspective of the acquirer. No material
settlement gain or loss has been recognised after the derecognition of
the relevant intangible assets.

The income approach was used for measuring the fair value of the
intangible assets acquired. The recoverable amounts of these intangible
assets were estimated based on its cash flow forecast and using after-
tax discount rates ranging from 14% to 16%.

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in the cost of sales.

Goodwill

11

BEEEw@w

Bt - ()

(k)

(m)

(&

AEBMERAEAAEARERNK T A
WEER - RIFFFRR  BRRES
KRETANME MAKEKTHE
—SREARBYMEE -

E A

R BREENBRE -

TR UK BB B /BB & IR 4% L FERR

HREFEEEBRR BRERBKLE
Wi NEBEBERR PRIER
BEKGEBEELCERE-BE-Z—1
F+-_A=Z+—BHLEE EAEME
W HERR  PHRINEREFKE
D ES AR RERE - LRI TEE R BR R B R
R(HTEE130)  c AEBMELABRZEE
HBWERE A AR 169,525,000 7T (H
FE13(b) © AKX B W EE 5 kA7 R 3E
TIHHE -  EECHERBBELEEZ
B UWBEBALERS B BEER -

W 2T AR EMEBETLEEZ
ANFE-ZERVEEZAILRSET
BREERSREBFNLER14%E16%
ZBBIRBBRREITMEE -

BREEBHEFAHERAE -

12 B&

The Group
rEE
RMB'000
ARBF T

Cost and carrying amount RARKREE
At 1 January 2015 (Restated) RZE-—RAE—-—A—RAEEY) 76,566
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 13(b)] @B UK B& B B 2 B4R B (M #£13(b)) 67,765
At 31 December 2015 R-ZF-—RAF+_-_A=+—8 144,331
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

12 Goodwill (continued) 12 B8 @

Goodwill acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries is allocated to BRAWENBATESZEERNRNE
the Group's cash-generating unit ("CGU") identified as follows: ZEHNReELESEN(BHeELSE
) ETHBEIT ¢
2015 2014
—E-HfF —ZE-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARET T
(Restated)
(&)
Water supply services HEIZEAK
— Hanyang Shuiwu — B KT 13(b)(x] 23,141 =
Wastewater treatment services 75 7K B2 12 AR 75
— Yinglong — A& 17,034 17,034
— Guangzhou Liangang — B ES 13(b) (i) 24,248 —
— Ganghui Huanbao —BERR 13(b) (v} 4,879 —
— Zhongtuo Kailan —HhIRHE 13(b) (vi) 6,422 =
Sludge and solid waste treatment 75 e K (B 8 R 1) BE 3R AR 7%
services
— Qingyuan Lvyou — B R 49,945 49,945
— Heyuan Solid — AR E EE 9,587 9,587
— Guangzhou Kangxiang —BEMEA 13(b)(iii) 5,172 —
— Haoying Solid —ERERE 13(b){vii) 1,877 =
— Sanshui Zhaofeng —=KEg 13(b)(ix) 2,026 —
144,331 76,566
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in- ReEEBM 2 RESEHRIEGEA
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based BEMET ZIAERETEEMNE
on financial budgets approved by management covering a period from ZUBEEFRAESRELN A +HR
15 to 20 years with an estimated increase in selling prices and costs E-TF HHEEEEREXNATFR
of 3% per annum and no growth in sales volume. The rate used to FHIER3% - M iH S 2 WARIE 10 o TR
discount the forecast cash flows is from 14% to 16%. The discount EREZMBENTF14%ZE16% ° FT AR
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the WELBA  WHBHEDLEEE
relevant segments. No impairment is considered necessary at 31 TR R_T-—HWNFR-_ZF—AF+
December 2014 and 2015. “A=+—8 UEREGSAKLE-

PERREEERLAR —E-HFEFR @
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

13 Investments in Subsidiaries

(a)

List of subsidiaries

13 RITBEARNKRE

(a) MHEABEE
TRESRIEYERAEEESE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

BN BT RS -

Group.
Proportion of
ownership interest
BERERLH
Group’s
Place of incorporationand  Particulars of issued effective Held by a
Name of company business and paid up capital interest  subsidiary Principal activities
BEIR FEEN B S
NE AR BRI AN S BEREAEE ERER LAFRBE XEEER
Guangzhou Kaizhou Guangzhou, the PRC HKDZ20,000,000 100% 100%  Supply of industrial water
Water Supply Company
Limited {i)(ii)

BMEN B RKERAA0  HE - EM 20,000,000 7t 100% 100% fREtTEMK

Guangzhou Xintao (i)(ii) Guangzhou, the PRC HKD730,000,000 100% 100% Provision of wastewater
processing and heating
service

&M B )l HE - M 730,000,0007% 7T 100% 100% REFREER
HAR

Guangzhou Haitao i) Guangzhou, the PRC RMB80,000,000 100% 100%  Design, construction,
operation and
maintenance of
wastewater treatment
plant

&M () FE BN AR 80,000,0007T 100% 100% it HEEER
®ETKEER

Heyuan Solid (i) Heyuan, the PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of sludge and
solid waste treatment
service

O i ] R ) FE AR AR #5,000,0007T 100% 100% REFEREEED
BRI PR 5

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

List of subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

13 RB AT MNEKRE @
(a) Bt/ R E @

Proportion of
ownership interest

BEERERLA
Group’s
Place of incorporationand  Particulars of issued effective Held by a
Name of company business and paid up capital interest  subsidiary Principal activities
BRAR AKEHN mHE
AEER MR IRE £ BEREAEE BREZ QAFRBF TEER
Yinglong (i) Guangzhou, the PRC RMB80,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of wastewater
treatment plants
operation services
B HE - EM AR #80,000,0007C 100% 100% $RE5KERREERS
Qingyuan Lvyou i} Qingyuan, the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of sludge and
solid waste treatment
services
BEEA FE - FE AR #10,000,000 7T 100% 100% RETERELEY
BB R%
Guangzhou Lvyou (i)ii) Guangzhou, the PRC RMBS81,870,000 100% 100%  Provision of sludge and

(note 13(b)(viii)

& 145 e (i) i) (PR 3 13(b) (vii)

Guangzhou Liangang (i)
(note 13(b)(ii))
B S (1) (B 513001 )

Guangdong Longtao (i)
(note 13[b)(iv))

JE R EE A (1) (B E13(b)iv))

RE R

Guangzhou, the PRC

R EMN

Huizhou, the PRC

solid waste and
hazardous waste

treatment services

AR #81,3870,0007T 100% 100% RS REBEY R
el BRI R
RMB60,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of hazardous
waste treatment services
AR #60,000,0007C 100% 100% RECBENEERS
RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of sludge and
solid waste treatment
services
AR #10,000,0007 100% 100% fREZEREREY
B2 PR 75

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 13 RB AT MNEKRE @
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FiEB AT REwum

Proportion of
ownership interest

BERERLE
Group’s
Place of incorporationand  Particulars of issued effective Held by a
Name of company business and paid up capital interest  subsidiary Principal activities
BETR  FEEN H
RREB AR E EREARE EBREE LERE TEER
Zhongtuo Kailan (i) (note 13(b)(vi)] Zhongshan, the PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Supply of industrial water
and provision of
wastewater treatment
plants operation services

o 0 S (1) (B RE 13(b)(vi) FE AL AR #20,000,0007C 100% 100% T EAKEERREH

KR IR R E B RS
Ganghui Huanbao (i) (note 13(b)(v)) Foshan, the PRC RMB3,000,000 100% 100% Provision of wastewater

treatment plants

operation services

BEIRR () (B EE13(b)V)) R L AR #3,000,0007C 100% 100% FRESKEEREERY

Note: 3T -

(i) These are private limited liability companies in the PRC. The (i) ZERNRARUARTENEREE
official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English NEl - ZERRANESEBARSD
translation of the names is for reference only. X BN EBEMRBA

(ii) These are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the PRC. The (ii) FZARRTENIIEBEERE-
official names of these entities are in Chinese. The English ZERARZEREBARAP XA
translation of the names is for reference only. BRNEREHRSE -
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 13 RE A NERE @
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) WEEHMIE D &)
The following summarizes the nature of consideration ATRBEat FreE B RE 2 E - L
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets acquired R W HE B B P U & B % P
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition dates. The details of BRaBEZERREHE  SWKEFHE
each acquisition are shown in note 13(b)(i) to 13(b)(x). 2B M T 13(b)(I) = 13(b)(x)
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
Iy B B
IREE 2QAFEAE CHEREE
Note RMB'UUO RMB'UUO RMB'UUO
MaE ARBTT ARBTRT ARKTT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 9 408,037 — 408,037
Construction in progress ERTRE 9 240,344 — 240,344
Lease prepayments & B 5% 10 66,842 119,496 186,338
Intangible assets B A E 1 33,613 880,900 914,513
Other deposits and prepayment Hiize RIEMNK 16,802 - 16,802
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E b EYFRIE 773,187 = 773,187
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEED 26,450 - 26,450
Inventories FE& 27,245 — 27,245
Gross amounts due from customers EWRF &4 T2
for contract work RIBABEE 5,279 — 5,279
Interest in associates A RN RO 3,419 = 3,419
Bank loans RITER (259,750) — (259,750)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H th f& 14 ;R (953,744) = (958,744)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 22(b) (1,665) (168,017) (169,682)
Deferred income iR IE Y 2= 23 (2,742) - (2,742)
Net identifiable assets AR B EFE 383,317 832,379 1,215,696
Non-controling interests JEFE IR M = 13,473
Cash consideration HeNRE 962,002
Settlement of pre-existing A HA & 1ERA R &2 1
relationship 1100 169,525
Total consideration HRE 1,131,527
Goodwill (S 12 67,765
Gain on bargain purchase ERE - 3(b) 138,461
Analysis of cash flow: RERED
Cash consideration ReERE 962,002
Less: cash deposit for acquisition R T —IMF
paid in 2014 [ERNELE
ReLe (100,000}
Less: cash acquired o PTREEIR & (26,450)
Less: consideration payable B ENRE (3,301)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of HZE_ZT—HF
subsidiaries for the year ended +—A=+—81t
31 December 2015 FEWEHBRA
BEeRtFE 832,251

PERREEERLAR —E-HFEFR
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

13 R B

NEANERE @

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WEEH B2 R @
Xinfeng Lvzhi i) #HEeHE
The principal activities of Xinfeng Lvzhi will be provision of BEZTEZEBHR/RSD
sludge and solid waste treatment services, and RS R & E B8 EE Y G B
production of ceramsite and eco-bricks in the PRC. In AR 7 - DA R A EE B AL R BR AR
January 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests BeRrZ—ZZE—RHF—RH K
in Xinfeng Lvzhi for a consideration of RMB24,000,000. 5 B AR (B A K ¥ 24,000,000
The acquisition was considered as acquisition of assets, JC Y B A% B 2 100% A% A A
including intangible assets, as the business of this meMRNEZ AR MKREZE
company has not yet been commenced. As at 31 % MBS EGEEER
December 2015, the production facilities were under BEEEREEE) - R_Z
construction. The directors expect that the relevant —RAFfF+=-_A=+—H8" &
license will be obtained in the second half of 2016 and to EXRENEREER -EF
generate net cash inflow for the Group in the foreseeable TREAMER R RER ZT — X
future. FTHFFRGF WHRA B
RAREEHFERFREMA -
The following summarizes the nature of consideration DA SRt e B R (E 2 M
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets g AR UEE B H P U BE
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BEMFAEEGEZEHER
ok
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
5 B B
IREE 2AVERE ERIAEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mz ARBFRT ARBFTT AREBTET
Intangible assets BAE 11 — 23,900 23,900
Other deposits and prepayment  E 1% & & F8 3% 16,802 — 16,802
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEZEEY 869 — 869
Other payables E h JE < 5RIE (17,571) — (17,571)
Net identifiable assets A BRI EERE 100 23,900 24,000
Cash consideration ReRE 24,000
Analysis of cash flow: WEMEBDN
Cash consideration Be&RE 24,000
Less: cash acquired o BT IR & (869)
Net cash outflow for acquisition EHZEZZT—HRF
of Xinfeng Lvzhi for the year +=ZA=+—8”
ended 31 December 2015 IR Y
MEREHR S
ikeepe 23,131
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

13 R B

ANENKRE @

(b) WEEHKE 2 B @)

Guangzhou Liangang lii) EMEB
The principal activities of Guangzhou Liangang are EMEBEBZEEEEAR
provision of vessel and port waste mineral oil treatment REEE MM RS O RERE
services, and production of biodiesel in the PRC. In April MHEERE UREESE
2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in MER - R _FT—AHFMNWE
Guangzhou Liangang for a consideration of A AEBUREARK
RMB134,352,000. The acquisition was considered as a 134,352,000 ¢ Y5 B& E M = 5
business combination. 2 100% i 78 #E 55 - % WORE 4
WEBEBED -
The following summarizes the nature of consideration DA SR preE R (E 2
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets g AR UEE B H P Uk BE
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BENMMAZERABEZCHER
Gk
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
g%
BREE DNFERARE BRE
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
i ARETT ARETT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment mE - -BEREZE 76,744 = 76,744
Construction in progress EEIR 31,544 - 31,544
Lease prepayments HEBNHIE 16,308 36,137 52,445
Intangible assets BRAE 11 = 57,000 57,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E W R 3,385 = 3,385
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 204 = 204
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMKIE (87,934) = (87,934)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBARE - (23,284) (23,284)
Net identifiable assets AEAEEFE 40,251 69,853 110,104
Cash consideration HerRE 134,352
Goodwill SRS 12 24,248
Analysis of cash flow: REeEREDN
Cash consideration ReRE 134,352
Less: cash acquired TR S (204)
Net cash outflow for acquisitionof ~ HE-_ZE—HF
Guangzhou Liangang for the year +-A=+—H1
ended 31 December 2015 FEWEEMNES
BB FE 134,148

PERAREEARATY —T-HFFH
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(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

13 R EB 2B HEE @

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) Y i& FfY B 2 7] @)
(i) Guangzhou Kangxiang liii) EMNEH

The principal activities of Guangzhou Kangxiang are EMEAzEEZXZB AR

provision of sludge and solid waste treatment services in PERERSRREREY

the PRC. In April 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity BEERE HN-_ZE—HFN

interests in Guangzhou Kangxiang for a consideration of A AXEBUREARK

RMB20,000,000. The acquisition was considered as a 20,000,000 7T 42 B & M EE A

business combination. 100% A% 7S 7 25 o 2% W HE 15 4R

REBEB -

The following summarizes the nature of consideration AT Bl s S ) R (B 2 1

transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets 2 AR UEE B I PR U R

acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BEMMAEABEZE®R

Gk

Recognised

Carrying Fair value values on

amount adjustments acquisition

W%

REE APERE BRE

Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

B ARBTT ARETRT ARBTR

Property, plant and equipment M - BER&E 115 - 115

Intangible assets ERAE 11 - 17,000 17,000

Inventories FE 5 _ 5

Trade and other receivables B 5 & E WA 2,249 = 2,249

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 255 = 255

Trade and other payables B 5 KEMENRIE (546) = (546)

Deferred tax liabilities BREREEE - (4,250) (4,250)

Net identifiable assets A EERE 2,078 12,750 14,828

Cash consideration BeRE 20,000

Goodwill EES 12 5172

Analysis of cash flow: ReEmEN

Cash consideration HeRE 20,000

Less: cash acquired A ER e (255)

Less: consideration payable BB (651]

Net cash outflow for acquisition of HEZZ-H1F

Guangzhou Kangxiang for theyear +Z=HA=+—H1t
ended 31 December 2015 FEWEREMED

BB F R 19,09
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(iv)

Notes to the Financial Statements

b E R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

13 R B

NEANERE @

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WEEH B2 R @
Guangdong Longtao livi ERHEE
The principal activities of Guangdong Longtao are BERESBZIEEEAR
provision of sludge and solid waste treatment services in FREHSEREREYD
the PRC. In June 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity BERB R=ZZFT—RHFX
interests in Guangdong Longtao from Guangzhou To Kee A AXEBUREARK
Enterprises Development Group Limited ("Guangzhou To 10,000,0007T - =R AR R A
Kee”), a company effectively owned by the controlling BEFEELE —BMNBLEE
shareholder for a consideration of RMB10,000,000. EREBBERARTEME
AC ) U B R R JE 100% Ak A
MEa o
The following summarizes the nature of consideration ATHprEEnRKE st
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets B PR AU EE B B BT U EE
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BELFAEEBEZEER
TR
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
Wi %
REE DNFEAE BRE
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
B 55 ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment M¥ - BE R&E 875 875
Intangible assets BVEE 11 33,613 33,613
Trade and other receivables 25 & H i fE Wik 17,921 17,921
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEEY 383 383
Trade and other payables H 5 REAMEN KA (46,4006) (46,406)
Gross amounts due from customers EWEF AL TR
for contract work FIE4EEE 5,279 5,279
Deferred tax liabilities BRERAEE (1,665) (1,665)
Net identifiable assets AHRIEEFE 10,000 10,000
Cash consideration HeRE 10,000
Analysis of cash flow: REREDN
Cash consideration ReRE 10,000
Less: cash acquired T ER (383)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of ~ BE_Z—AF
Guangdong Longtao for the year +=-—A=+—-H1t
ended 31 December 2015 FEKRBEEREH
ZBEEREFE 9,617
FERREERRAR —ZT-—HFFR
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

13 R B

ANENKRE @

(b) WEEHKE 2 B @)

(v) Ganghui Huanbao v) BERR
The principal activities of Ganghui Huanbao are provision BERRZEIBEBARF
of wastewater treatment services in the PRC. In BERESKEERE R =
November 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests T—RAF+—A KXEHEBN
in Ganghui Huanbao for a consideration of KB A K 25,000,000 7T U i
RMB25,000,000. The acquisition was considered as a IR R100% AR A HE 25 - 5%
business combination. WIERIR REB SO -
The following summarizes the nature of consideration AT Bt s B R R (B 2 1
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets 2 AR UL EE B O P U R
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BEMMAEABZE®RA
ok
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
Wi %
REE DNFERE BRE
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000
B 55 ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment M¥  BE L& E 128,872 - 128,872
Construction in progress EEIR 918 — 918
Lease prepayments HEBNFIE 5,026 4,974 10,000
Intangible assets BRAE 11 - 16,000 16,000
Inventories FE 174 - 174
Trade and other receivables B 5 K fE W R IE 63,723 - 63,723
Cash and cash equivalents e RkBReE5EY 2,241 - 2,241
Trade and other payables 25 REMEN KA (148,615) - (148,615)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHREAR = (5,244) (5,244)
Net identifiable assets AENEERE 52,339 15,730 68,069
Cash consideration HeHRKE 25,000
Settlement of pre-existing Al ER & fERR 4% 1E
relationship 47,948
Total consideration BARE 72,948
Goodwill GBS 12 4,879
Analysis of cash flow: REREDN
Cash consideration RBeRE 25,000
Less: cash acquired A ERE (2,241)
Net cash outflow for acquisitionof ~ EHEZZT—HF
Ganghui Huanbao for the year +ZA=+—HL
ended 31 December 2015 FRKEBERR
ZBEEREFE 22,759
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(vi)
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(b) WEEHKE 2 B @)

Zhongtuo Kailan (vi) e
The principal activities of Zhongtuo Kailan are supply of FHRIEZETEXEB AR
industrial water and provision of wastewater treatment B 4 e T 3 7K R R 55 7K
services in the PRC. In November 2015, the Group EERE M_ET—HF+
acquired 100% equity interests in Zhongtuo Kailan for a — A AEBUREARE
consideration of RMB25,000,000. The acquisition was 25,000,000 7T Y & + ¥A S B
considered as a business combination. 100% A% 7S 7 25 o 2% W HE 15 4R
REBEB -
The following summarizes the nature of consideration AT BEa preE R (E 2
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets g AR YRR B HA P U BE
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BELMAERBEZE®R
TR
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
W%
REE DNFERAR BRE
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5F ARETT ARBFT ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment M¥  BERRKRE 58,658 - 58,658
Construction in progress EEIR 132,307 - 132,307
Lease prepayments HEBEMNRIE 8,562 9,648 18,210
Intangible assets BERAE 11 - 10,000 10,000
Inventories & 339 - 339
Trade and other receivables 25 N E W R 53,613 = 53,613
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 3,075 = 3,075
Trade and other payables 25 REMENKIE (161,936) = (161,936)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEAR = (4,912 (4,912
Net identifiable assets AR EERE 94,618 14,736 109,354
Cash consideration ReHE 25,000
Settlement of pre-existing RIEA S (ERBR 4R 1E
relationship 90,776
Total consideration wRME 115,776
Goodwill kS 12 6,422
Analysis of cash flow: REREDN
Cash consideration HeRKE 25,000
Less: cash acquired A ER e (3,075)
Net cash outflow for acquisitionof ~ BZE_T—HF
Zhongtuo Kailan for the year +tZA=+—-Hik
ended 31 December 2015 FEWBTHIE
BB MR 21,925

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

13 R EB 2B HEE @

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WEEH B2 R @
(vii) Haoying Solid (vii) & 2 [ &
The principal activities of Haoying Solid are provision of EREECETEEBRAR
sludge and solid waste treatment services in the PRC. In FREHSEREREYD
November 2015, the Group acquired 80% equity interests BEERE R-_ZFTE—RHF+
in Haoying Solid for a consideration of RMB7,650,000. The — A AEBNUREBARK
acquisition was considered as a business combination. 7,650,0007T Y & & B & EE
80% Ak 7N #E &1 o 7% Ui B AR
REBEG -
The following summarizes the nature of consideration AT Bt s S ) R (B 2 1
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets 2 AR UEE B I PR U R
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BEMMAEABEZE®R
ok i
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
W%
BREE AFEAER H’RE
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
M AREFT ARBFT AR%TR
Lease prepayments MEENHIE 14,265 - 14,265
Intangible assets ERAE 11 - 7,000 7,000
Cash and cash equivalents HekBReE5EY 51 - 51
Trade and other payables 25 R E M EN A (12,350) = (12,350)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEAE — (1,750) (1,750)
Net identifiable assets Al BIE E R E 1,966 5,250 7,216
Non-controlling interests RS 1,443
Cash consideration HeRE 7,650
Goodwill (EES 12 1,877
Analysis of cash flow: ReREDN
Cash consideration ReRE 7,650
Less: cash acquired AP ER & (51)
Less: consideration payable W ERRE (2,650]
Net cash outflow for acquisitionof B ZE-_ZT—HF
Haoying Solid for the year ended +=-A=+—H
31 December 2015 IEFEHE
EREEZ
Remb FeE 4,949
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(viii) Guangzhou Lvyou
The principal activities of Guangzhou Lvyou are provision
of sludge and solid waste and hazardous waste treatment
services. In August 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests in Guangzhou Lvyou from Mr. Gu Yaokun, Mr. Gu
Jiatao, Ms Liang Yanxia, and other two parties (“the
Vendors”) for a consideration of RMB630,000,000. The
acquisition was considered as a business combination.
Mr. Gu Jiatao is the son of Mr. Gu Yaokun and Ms Liang
Yanxia is the spouse of Mr. Gu Yaokun. Mr. Gu Yaokun
was subsequently appointed as the executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 November 2015 [note 6).
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(viii) & N %% B
BEMHEBHZEBEBK AR
HESEREBED RER
BEYMEEBERE =2 —1
FNA XEEE B &R
AE-HRBRAE RUEB
ZrTREMBITHNATE
J 1) U BE & M &% B 2 100%
BAEDZS REAARE
630,000,0007T ° 7% Uz BE % 1%
BEBEH -ARBLER
TRHMEEZT MBS%E
T AORMEE RS-
oRMELAHBEZTAR
RAMITEE B2 — 1
F+—f =+ =8 8E (M
FE6) o
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(viii) B M 4&E B (&)
AT pre iR B2
B U RN B AT
BERFAEEE 2 E®BR

13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b)

(viii) Guangzhou Lvyou (Continued)
The following summarizes the nature of consideration
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

TR

Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
g%
REE DNEERE BRE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 100,387 - 100,387
Construction in progress rETE 44,341 = 44,341
Lease prepayments HEBEMNRIE 20,745 65,073 85,818
Intangible assets BREE 11 — 496,000 696,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 &E A fE YR IE 540,784 = 540,784
Inventories FE 26171 = 26171
Interest in associates AN RN OF - 3,419 = 3,419
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 17,819 = 17,819
Bank loans BITER (259,750) — (259,750
Trade and other payables 2o REMERZKIE (367,584) — (367,584)
Deferred tax liabilities EREBIEEE = (114,161) (114,161)
Deferred income BB A (2,742) = (2,742)
Net identifiable assets AR EEFE 121,590 646,912 768,502
Non-controling interests R = 41
Cash consideration RERE 630,000
Gain on bargain purchase* HEREERE" 138,461
Analysis of cash flow: REREDN
Cash consideration HeKE 430,000
Less: cash deposit for W R ZE—NF
acquisition paid in 2014 REREE-
Reke (100,000)
Less: cash acquired A TRER S (17,819)
Net cash outflow for acquisition of ~ BEZZT—HF
Guangzhou Lvyou for the year +ZA=+—HI1
ended 31 December 2015 FREWEREMNE B
ZBREM L HE 512,181
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(viii) Guangzhou Lvyou (Continued)

(ix)

* A gain on bargain purchase of RMB138,461,000 has been
recognized in “other net income/(loss)” (note 3(b)], in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, attributable to the
recognition of fair market values of net assets acquired at
higher values than the consideration payable.

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated 1
December 2014 entered into between the Company and
the Vendors, Mr. Gu Yaokun has provided the following
profit guarantee that the net profit after taxation of
Guangzhou Lvyou attributable to the Group for each of the
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2015 and 2016
(the “Guaranteed Period”) are not less than
RMB100,000,000 and RMB110,000,000, respectively. If
Guangzhou Lvyou fails to meet the aforesaid profit
guarantee in any of the two years, Mr. Gu Yaokun will,
within the first six months of the year immediately after
the year in respect of which a shortfall occurs, pay to
Guangzhou Lvyou a compensation in cash equal to 10
times of the shortfall provided that the total compensation
payable by Mr. Gu Yaokun will not exceed RMB100,000,000
in respect of each of the two years. For the year ended 31
December 2015, Guangzhou Lvyou has met the above
condition. The Group expected that Guangzhou Lvyou will
meet the above condition for the year ending 31
December 2016.

Sanshui Zhaofeng

The principal activities of Sanshui Zhaofeng are
processing and sales of biomass fuel in the PRC. Sanshui
Zhaofeng processed and treated waste oil to produce
biodiesel, which could be used to fuel boilers, vehicles
and ships. In October 2015, the Group acquired 70%
equity interests in Sanshui Zhaofeng from the third
parties [“the Transferors”) for a consideration of
RMB30,000,000. The acquisition was considered as a
business combination.
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(viii) BN A& B (&)

* ZEBEZREARE
138,461,000 R % & 18
HRATEAF R (B
18) 1 (B =E3(b) #ER + T
RERKBEBEEFEZR
hAmERREMRE-

(b)

BERARIHEE I LA
HAE-ZFT-—HNF+=A—H
ZREEEGE SRME
SEREUATRBFRSE
EZT—RHFERZT—RF
+ZA=+—BLEBRFE
EE(REBHED  A&H
FEAE B M A B BR B & A A 5
A 4R A R # 100,000,000
7T & A K #110,000,0007T °
4R BE M A% B oK BE PR 5% W (A F
A — FERK E s FIR
Fo A E R EBRER
THREBFERNFEE N
& A AR EMNEEBZHHEE
REBIOENES/HE "
OREEARZEREEE
Rz HERETSBEBA
R #100,000,0007C - & & —
E-—AE+-A=+—A1t
FE - BEMEBHEBERK L
115 - AN BI85 E N 4% &
REBEE-ZZ—R"F+=ZA=
T—BIEFEHRE LK
o

=kEE

SKEEZEFEEBER
FEEREREEEMRE -
—KEENEEHRERATE
BEHETNIEEELAEAS
W heom  ERR A ERIRIE
NEMBRE A R T —
AFE+AR AEBMEH IR
BHIEZAFDUAREARK
30,000,0007C Y g = K E &
70% A% 7N #E # o R2 UK OB AR
BEBEH-

(ix)
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(ix)
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(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WEEH B2 R @
Sanshui Zhaofeng (Continued) lix) =KEEE(
The following summarizes the nature of consideration J«/{TﬁﬁELFﬁEEEE’MJﬁTEZ’lE
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets g AR U EE B H AT BB
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BEENEAEGBEZEHER
TR
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
REE AFERE WBEEERIE
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARB T ARB T ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment M¥  BEL&E 29,348 - 29,348
Intangible assets BREE 11 - 14,000 14,000
Inventories FE 2,513 — 2,513
Trade and other receivables H 5 R E WA 66,435 = 66,435
Cash and cash equivalents RehBReEEY 115 = 115
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H A ENKIE (68,948) - (68,948)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAR - (3,500) (3,500)
Net identifiable assets ARAEERE 29,463 10,500 39,963
Non-controlling interests Iz 11,989
Cash consideration HeNE 30,000
Goodwill HE 12 2,026
Analysis of cash flow: REREDN
Cash consideration HeRE 30,000
Less: cash acquired AP ER e (115)
Net cash outflow for acquisitionof ~ HEZZT—HF
Sanshui Zhaofeng for the year +tZA=+—H
ended 31 December 2015 FFEERE=K
3 gk
yinkeee:s::l 29,885
Pursuant to the share purchase agreement, if the net RIEWEE = R R - B =K
profit after taxation of Sanshui Zhaofeng for the three EER_ZT-—RF ZF—
years ending 30 September 2016, 2017 and 2018 are less +tERZZE-NFRLA=T
than RMB20,000,000, RMB22,000,000 and RMB25,000,000 A=FKBHELLEND A D

respectively, the Transferors will compensate the Group
for any shortfall. The Group expected that Sanshui
Zhaofeng will meet the above condition for the year
ending 30 September 2016, 2017 and 2018.
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

(x)
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(b) WEEHKE 2 B @)

Hanyang Shuiwu (x) EIFKK
The principal activities of Hanyang Shuiwu are provision BIFEKEZEBEBARF
of industrial water supplication services in the PRC. In RETERKEERE -
November 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interests R-ZE—RF+—A &%
in Hanyang Shuiwu for a consideration of RMB56,000,000. AR B A K #56,000,000
The acquisition was considered as a business T UK B B2 0¥ 7K 75 100% A% 72N 4
combination. mo RWBHRREBKSH -
The following summarizes the nature of consideration LAt g g s (R (B 2 1
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets B AR UEE B B AT UL R
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date: BELFAEGBEZERER
TR
Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount adjustments acquisition
Wi %
REE DNFERE BRE
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B 55 ARETT ARETT ARETT
Property, plant and equipment M- BEKEE 13,038 - 13,038
Construction in progress FrIRE 31,234 — 31,234
Lease prepayments ME N FE 1,936 3,664 5,600
Intangible assets BREE 11 - 40,000 40,000
Inventories FE 43 = 43
Trade and other receivables B 5 N b e WK IE 25,077 - 25,077
Cash and cash equivalents HRehkBReEEY 1,438 - 1,438
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERTRIE (41,854) - (41,854)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAERRE = (10,916) (10,916)
Net identifiable assets A EERE 30,912 32,748 63,660
Cash consideration ReKE 56,000
Settlement of pre-existing R EA S (ERR 4% 1E
relationship 30,801
Total consideration wRME 86,801
Goodwill kS 12 23,141
Analysis of cash flow: ReEmEN -
Cash consideration ReaRE 56,000
Less: cash acquired B KER € (1,438)
Net cash outflow for acquisitionof B E-ZE—HF
Hanyang Shuiwu for the year +ZA=+—H1Lt
ended 31 December 2015 EHE L
ZBEEREFE 54,562

PERREEERLAR —E-HFEFR
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13 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) WEEH B2 R @
(xi) Repayment of loans from former equity owners xi) EERBEAIREEE A
ZE TR

The repayment of RMB82,470,000 and RMB44,506,000
were for the loans from former equity owners of Ganghui

EEABEIRRMAP A E R
BRIREEBAZERS A
B AR82,470,000 8 A R
44,506,0007T © Z E RN W EE

huanbao and Zhongtuo Kailan respectively. The loans
were issued by the former equity owners before

acquisition. Al ATARREE B AN BE BT ©
[C] The following table lists out the information relating to Sanshui [C] TREIWR=—ZZE—FRF+=-_A=

Zhaofeng, the only subsidiary of the Group which has material
non-controlling interest (NCI) as at 31 December 2015. The
summarized financial information presented below represents

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

T-REH=KEE(—HERE
RIEZERER 2 A KB — KB
RA)WBEER - TXEHZH

BEMBEZREMARMBEHEA
ZEH e

From the date
of acquisition to
31 December

2015

RBBEHE

—E-HF

+=A

Er—/5

RMB'000

ARBFTT

NCI percentage FEERERAEB DL 30%
Current assets MBEE 16,356
Non-current assets EMBEE 42,949
Current liabilities BB & (16,895)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3.461)
Net assets BEFE 38,949
Carrying amount of NCI JEEIRE R BREE 11,685
Revenue A 1,789
Loss for the year FARE (1,015)
Total comprehensive income ZH W s 425 (1,015)
Loss allocated to NCI R ER D B EE (305)
Cash flow generated from operating activities KETEHELEZRER 58

Cash flow generated from investing activities
Cash flow generated from financing activities
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2015 2014
—E-—m& —E—pE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARSBT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Share of net assets DI EEFE
— Guangzhou Huayue Environmental —BMEMIRREMER A A
Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (TEMZEMD
("Guangzhou Huayue”) 1,840 -
— Guangzhou Suigin Dangerous Waste —BEMNBHEREWESR
Transportation Co., Ltd. BRAT(TEMNEE])
(“Guangzhou Suigin”) 2,694 =
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ 4R & MR EREEE
statements 4,534 —
The following list contains the particulars of the associates, both of TREIIME DG 2 FFE -
which are unlisted corparate entities whose quoted market price is MEHRIFELETAREEE
not available: I T (E
Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERESELLG
Place of Particulars of Group’s
Form of business incorporation and issued and effective Held by a
Name structure operation paid up capital interest  subsidiary  Principal activity
A K EBAR  AKEH i
TtEEE EBEBRES XY BEREAFEE BREZR QAFBF IZER
Guangzhou Huayue (i) Limited liability Guangzhou, RMB3,000,000 1% 41%  Provision of environmental
company the PRC protection consulting
service
BME L) BREERA B EM AR #3,000,0007C 4% “%  RERREHRSE
Guangzhou Suigin (i) Limited liability Guangzhou, RMB5,000,000 1% 41%  Transportation of
company the PRC hazardous wastes
BEMES() BRAGAR  PEEM AR #5,000,0007C 1% N% BHEBENHR
Note: B
(i) Guangzhou Huayue and Guangzhou Suigin are private limited liability (i) & N ZE AN E%J‘H BYNRFPEBEA/TLA
companies in the PRC. The official names of the entities are in Chinese. BEREMERA EZ EREFEWAT
The English translation of the names is for reference only. 3 e ﬁXug%E LR
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method PR ERBE R RN E SRR MR
in the consolidated financial statements. RAE R AN o

PERREEERLAR —E-HFEFR
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15 Interest in a Joint Venture 15 R—REELEHESR
2015 2014
—E—FHF —E—-E
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT T ARETF T
(Restated)
(&&EZ)
Share of net assets PTIEEESE 1,906 1,545
Goodwill SRS 417 417

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ #RA M SRR E@EE

statements 2,323 1,962
Details of the Group's interest in the joint venture, which is accounted LR AEERANEZREET BRI
for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, REZEAR  FEBOT:

are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest

EEREREZL A
Place of Particulars of Group’s
Form of business incorporation and issued and effective Held by a
Name structure operation paid up capital interest  subsidiary  Principal activity
TR YK BERTRES Z&EEN it
RELEER EBLEBREL  ERME BEXR¥E EBREZ QNABEF TEZEHR
Guangzhou Haigin Limited liability Guangzhou, RMB3,000,000 50% 50%  Pollutants measurement
Tiancheng Technical company the PRC
Testing Services
Co.,Ltd. ("Haigin
Tiancheng”) (i)
BB RBRMEDY  BREERE  RE BN AR 3,000,000 50% 50% AAMEE
RBAER DA
(L RFD )
Note: B aE -
(i) This is a private limited liability company in the PRC. The official name (i) ZARRFBEAMAGREEAR - Z
of the entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the name is for EREFEBRPN - B ELEMRS
reference only. e
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16 Gross Amounts due from Customers for
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16 BIREFEH TREMIE

Contract Work 48 =5
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBT T
(Restated)
(k&%)
Gross amounts due from customers EBREFAA IIERIAEEE
for contract work
— Non-current — 3EBNHA 231,302 188,935
— Current — B HA 33,971 17,357
265,273 206,292

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession
arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to the service concession
arrangements, the Group has to design, construct and operate
wastewater and solid waste treatment plants in the PRC for a period
of 20 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain the
wastewater and solid waste treatment plants in good condition. The
grantors guarantee that the Group will receive minimum annual
payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of the
concession periods, the wastewater and solid waste treatment plants
and the related facilities will be transferred to the local government
authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options.
The standard rights of the grantors to terminate the agreements
include failure of the Group to construct or operate the wastewater
and solid waste treatment plants and in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of the Group to
terminate the agreements include failure of the grantors to make
payment under the agreements and in the event of a material breach
of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in constructing
the wastewater and solid waste treatment plants is recognised as
“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” in the

financial statements.

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work” represent
revenue from construction under BOT arrangements and bear
interest at rate range from 5.94%-6.8% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: 5.94%-6.8%). The amounts are not yet due
for payment and will be settled by revenue to be generated during the
operating periods of the BOT arrangements.

AREFEBNETHBERARESERF AR
URBETRETE BERESTESR
B AEEARTPEES BE L&
EAKNEEEYRIERE BH20E30
FoAREEBEBHEFSKREBEDY
BEEREERBITKE - BT ARER
SERRRELTHRRERFEFEER-
REFTRAERE  SKREBEYE
BHEkEBREGERTH T BT
1 o

RBHFERETATER - BT AFT
ERERME LHBEOBRAEBE : A%
BIARERERKE KK EBEYREE
B AEBHEGREERER - AKE
ATREEERNZ L HENBRLERE:
B P A RBEAR IR 5 5 S 5RR - DA K 13
HHEREERER -

B 52 46 05 7K I [ B8 & W0 Be FE AR e 1 £ fit
BERBHASNABREETHERERRT
HRARIRBKREFPAENTEFIAMLR] -

HE-_Z—AF+_-_A=1+—HItF
B IEREREFANIRIIBATEIER
ABOTLHE FTEREEH MG Wik
FERNE594%E6.8% (- F— P4 : 5.94%
£6.8%) T8 o AHEEUEBE KRB B
WHERBOTZBEEE A B EE LN
mE Ao

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR
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RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

17 Inventories 17 78
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—-E
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBT T
(Restated)
(&Z&E7)
Raw materials e 18,081 2,628
Work in progress TEER 1,239 A
Finished goods RIEK @ 7,282 197
Low value consumable EEBEERES 3,312 3,938
Total et 29,914 7,407

Inventories mainly comprise materials consumed during the sludge
and solid waste treatment and the hazardous waste treatment

process.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
and included in profit or loss is as follows:

FEXTREBENISEREBEY RER
& ¥ B2 12 3B A2 P AT FE A RO B L

BRARXILHABSE EELBEIN
mF :

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZE—OF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBT T

(Restated)

(k&%)

Carrying amount of inventories consumed EEREEREE 77,367 64,594
Write down of inventories GFERE 847 —
Total FEE 78,214 64,594
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b E R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

. +
18 Trade and Other Receivables 18 EF K H tt EWFKIE

2015 2014

—®-5fF —T-mF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT

(Restated)

(FE7)

Current BN &A

Trade receivables B 5 R T IE 411,363 244,285

Prepayments and other receivables FEAT B R E At W B 155,348 113,540

Amounts due from related parties (note 28(d)(i)) & Uk B8 Bt 75 5 38 (Bif 5 28(d)li)) 227,629 138,136

794,340 495,961

Non-current Ik BN A

Prepayments for purchase of lease prepayments % B & 8 1 FA &

and equipment RETENRIE 189,480 248,930
Prepayment of acquisition deposit* T A U B KR ¢ 88,124 100,000
277,604 348,930

Total Bt 1,071,944 844,891

All of the prepayments and other receivables (including amounts due FT 8 T8 508 I B Ath JE IR TE (B 15 B

from related parties), apart from those classified as non-current W B B 75 ) TE B A8 7 — F A U [B] ok TE R

portion, are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within RAX ENBESERIEANHNED -

one year.

* For the year ended 31 December 2015, prepayment of RMB36,254,000, * BE_ZTZ—RAF+-_A=+—8HLHF
RMB31,870,000 and RMB20,000,000 represents acquisition deposit paid B ERES B A AR #36,254,000
to Menghui Technology, Guangzhou Jimei and Zhongling Chemical, 7T AR ¥31870000C & A R ¥
respectively. 20,000,0007C *© AT T EMEHIE - &

MEXRPECTZHBRS -

As at 31 December 2014, prepayment of RMB100,000,000 represents RZTE-—mOF+ZRA=+—H BHR

acquisition deposit paid to Mr. Gu Yaokun for the acquisition of 18 & A R #100,000,000 7T A U BE B M

Guangzhou Lvyou (note 13(b)(viii)). AN TR Az RS (T
£ 13(b)viii)) .

PERREBARAA —Z-HFFR @
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RIS R M

[Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

18 Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 18

[a] As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on the date of revenue recognition, is

v}
=]

-~

(a)

2 & H i B W FRIE @)

BERSHR  BHRKFIRRK
SEREHANREITOT ¢

as follows:
2015 2014
—E-0F —ZE—OF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETF T
(Restated)
(eE3)
Within 1 month —@ AR 201,508 89,449
1 to 3 months —Z=M@A 111,216 84,277
Over 3 months but within 1 year ZR=ZEAB—FR 98,639 70,525
Over 1 year —FLE — 34
411,363 244,285

Trade debtors are usually due within 30 days from the date of
billing. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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18 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that the
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not record any
impairment losses in respect of trade receivables (2014: Nil).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as

Notes to the Financial Statements

RISk M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

18 E 5 Kk H it FE UK IE )

(b) BEZEWRERE

B 5 REFENRERSRB AR
B BRIFAKEREKRE AR K
HHEERM RZBERT  RE
BEREEEKREE S RERERAELE B
E_F-AF+-_A=t—HL
FEAKEY EE S E KA
BREEMREBR(ZT—MOE:
&) e

TEMENXEERERENE S
FEWRIARRE D ATANT ¢

follows:
2015 2014
—E-REF —E-E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR F T
(Restated)
(=50
Neither past due nor impaired B R 18 HA 75 AR BB 201,508 89,449
Less than 3 months past due BEA=EANURA 111,216 84,277
Over 3 months but within 1year past due BHZR=EABE—FA 98,639 70,525
Over 1 year —F — 34
411,363 244,285

PERREEERAT —E-—EEFH @
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RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

18 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

Past due trade receivables are mainly due from certain
governments and state-owned enterprises. Based on
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as these
balances are usually settled within one year from due date.

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

18 EZ R H A EWFEIE @

(b) B S EWFRERE @

BHESERFBIERERSE
THRANKEBEADENKE - RE
BERLR HRREEHRBEED

19

HAR-—FANGEE -

TEERAD

AR HERE LB -

BERREFEY
(a) RERASEBEYEE:

2015 2014

oy WY —=_—ms

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARETF T

(Restated)

(Z&E7)

Cash on hand FHEESE 4,356 2,061
Cash at bank RITIR&E 378,144 114,532
382,500 116,593

At 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in
the mainland China amounted to RMB287,812,000 (2014:
RMB63,731,000). Remittance of funds out of mainland China is subject
to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control

promulgated by the PRC government.

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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19 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

RISk M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

19 BERBEEEY @

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRFBEAIEF EELEESFT
generated from operations: BRENYHER:
2015 2014
—E-REF —ET-EF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET T ARETT
(Restated)
(FgE5))
Profit before taxation B 753 A S A 670,575 373,858
Adjustments for: KAEBAT&IE :
Depreciation e 9 108,844 57,416
Amortisation of lease prepayments &1t 2 & 7k 78 # 4 10 4,827 2,344
Amortisation of intangible assets | A E " 30,905 7,293
Finance costs Bl & B AR 4(a) 70,157 42,766
Foreign exchange loss HNEE 5 18 11,710 4,987
Interest income MEMA 3(a) (483) (279)
Share of profits of associates pak oy AN L= obigl (1,115) (2,916)
Share of profits of a joint venture DE—REEBENRA (361) (461)
Net loss on disposal of property, BEME BWER
plant and equipment HEEEFE 62 -
Provision for inventories FERE 17 847 =
Gain on bargain acquisition of HEWBEHRB AR 2 W 130)
subsidiary (138,461) =
Gain on remeasurement of RBEREATEEN 3(al
previously-held equity interests in HEZARAEN—X
an associate at fair value o X B AR ORE i 2 A
upon acquisition 2 Wz = (18,114)
Changes in working capital: EEBEERED
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,891 784
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 Rk H b fEYFRIE
other receivables (), @ > (59,049) 11,474
(Increasel/decrease in gross BREFA# TREKEA
amount due from customers for #EE (), R
contract work (53,702) 5,492
Increase in deferred income iR E YA SE N 545 -
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and B 5 Rk E A ENRIE
other payables Cr ), /1 (89,551) 14,339
Cash generated from operations KEEBRRERS 559,641 498,983

FERREBEAERA A

—B-HETH
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RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

=+
20 Trade and Other Payables 20 EZRHMWENNKE
2015 2014
—®-5fF —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®BT R AR®ET T
(Restated)
(FE5)
Trade payables (note (il B 5 amE (s ) 81,384 47,210
Other payables and accruals H e 58 K e AT B A 235,449 102,175
Amounts due to related parties (note 28(d){ii)) & 15 A Bt 5 3R3A (B 5 28(d) (i) 4,718 72,557
321,551 221,942
Notes: Bt 5
(i) ALl of the trade payables, other payables and accruals are expected to (i) BB SRINKIE EME S ENKIE
be settled within 12 months or are repayable on demand. REABEAEHER T _HEARNEE
(i) The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 30 days to 90 (il HEFREHEERNFI0BEE90H
days. &

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade BHEREHR R BHEMNRBEIREZH

payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HAMEEBS DT T -
2015 2014
—EB-EF —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(FeE7)
Within 1 month —fEAA 37,920 25,898
1 to 3 months —E=EA 24,434 16,284
Over 3 months but within 1 year ER=AE—FR 11,236 4,709
Over 1 year —F L E 7,794 319
81,384 47,210
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

/= £ &
21 Bank Loans 21 BITER
As at 31 December 2015, the bank loans were repayable as follows: R-_ZTE—HRF+-_A=+—8' EEEZ
RITERAT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBT T
(Restated)
(Fg&E5))
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIZEK 642,276 298,429
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRBREMERN 417,137 171,728
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRFA 751,848 351,510
After 5 years HF% 198,305 219,467
Sub-total NE 1,367,290 742,705
Total @t 2,009,566 1,041,134
Notes: B -

(i) Bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2015 were floating-rate (i)
loans which carried interest rates ranged from 1.79% to 7.38% (2014:
3.01% to 7.38%).

(ii) An analysis of secured and unsecured bank loans is as follows: (ii)

R-ZE—HFE+=-A=+—0 K&EH
ZHRITERBZEER BN TF1.79%
2£738% (=& — 0 4F :3.01%%7.38%)
2R R B o

BEERAREERRTERDONOT

2015 2014

—E—-HEF —E—MmF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T ARBFIT

[Restated)

€:3=270))

Secured s 1,925,209 1,010,564
Unsecured 4 41 1 84,357 30,570
2,009,566 1,041,134

Secured bank loans as at 31 December 2015 were secured by certain of
the Group’s charge rights of water supply and wastewater processing,
lease prepayments (note 10), property, plant and equipment (note 9) and
the equity interests of Qingyuan Lvyou, Yinglong and Guangzhou
Liangang (2014: secured by certain of the Group's charge rights of water
supply and wastewater processing, lease prepayments (note 10),
property, plant and equipment (note 9] and the equity interests of
Qingyuan Lvyou).

RZE—RAF+-A=+—8 A&
WERTERDUAREES FHAKRS
KRB EE - HEEMSKHE0) -
M BE REE T U RIE R
B RAEREMNESREEEFR(ZS
—OF: UAEBEE THKRERSKE
Bl ERE HEEMREEIONEY
¥ BEKEEME) U RBEERSEAR
P& (R K 4 o
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RIS R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

/= 4 =
21 Bank Loans (continued) 21 SRITER @
Notes: (Continued) M EE - (48D
li)  (Continued) (il (&)
Bank loans amounted to RMB2,100,000 as at 31 December 2015 were RZE—RAF+_A=+—H ¢8EA
guaranteed by former shareholders of Heyuan Solid (2014: AR #2,100,0007T 2 R1TE Z B AR E
RMB52,900,000 were guaranteed by former shareholders of Qingyuan BEZAERRETER(ZT —MEF:
Lvyou and Heyuan Solid). A R #52,900,0007t 2 RITEFRABAER
#% B BOR R [E BE 2 R R R EFTHAR) -
[ii)  Bank loans amounted to RMB1,967,098,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: il ARE-—REANDTEEBERTH
RMB715,676,000) are subject to the fulfillment of covenants as are R-ZE—RE+-_B=+—"HB&£%EA
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. The A R #1,967,098,000T( — & — PO 4 :
drawn down facility would become payable on demand if the covenant AR ¥715,676,0007T) 2 IRITE R AR
was breached. Pursuant to the terms of the bank loan agreements, TR#F-MEREH ERIMEREA
certain subsidiaries are not allowed to distribute profit and/or to obtain BREREE - BEBBRTERBZIGER
other external financing prior to the lender’s approval and/or to exceed/ ETHBAREERSE SR ENTSE
below the financial ratio. As at 31 December 2015, none of the covenants #1705 9 B &3k % B HE i Hh 5 A
of the Group had been breached. As at 31 December 2014, one of the ER/HBH BERBLER - R=F
covenants relating to current ratio of the Group had been breached. —hAF+A=+—"H BEERAK
Accordingly, such bank loans amounted to RMB56,098,000 became SEZ2Z#F R-_ZT—HNFEF+=_A=
payable on demand and has been classified as current liabilities. T—B —HEBELAEERBLEZ
RHEETER - At ROTERARE
56,098,000tk AR ERKEE BB
HESBEZERBAEE-
22 Income Tax in the Consolidated 22 mEMBRREKNAE
Statement of Financial Position 5
(a) Cur_rent t_axatiop_in the consolidated statement (a) ZEHBERRRETPWENE
of financial position represents: MIEA
RMB'000
ARBETTT
At 1 January 2014 (Restated) RZZ—mMFE-—H—BE&EF]) 14,614
Provision for PRC income tax (note 5(a)) (Restated) Hh Bl P 15 B 48 (BT 5 5la)) (e 2 51)) 30,843
PRC income tax paid (Restated) H B PSS A (e & 5)) (25,720)
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) R-ZB-EFE+_A=1+—B &) 19,537
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hFE—H—AH 19,537
Provision for PRC income tax (note 5(a)) R B P A5 A5 B 4 (T 5T 5(a)) 62,525
PRC income tax paid B PT A5 A 2 A (59,420
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+_A=+—H 22,642
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RISk M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

22 Income Tax in the Consolidated 2 MAEMBRARNAE
Statement of Financial Position (continued B )
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EEIBEEHRELEERE
ﬁ
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised REEBVERRRAERHNEL
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the BE(BE) EEAKIS RFA
movements during the year are as follows: BN :
PRC
dividend
withholding Revenue Intangible Government Unused tax
Deferred tax arising from: tax recognition assets grant loss Total
HERE AEA
REEMEBEEHE: AR WEER  EKEE IR BEER #st

RMB'O00  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTL ARETT ARBTR ARBTL ARETT

At 1 January 2014 [Restated) RZE-mE—A—H

(m=31) (11,494 (9,122) (10,818] 2958 53 (28,423)
Credited/(charged] to profitor ~ RBZERFT A/ (k)
loss [Restated) (BE5)) = 10 (3,656] - (53) (3,699)
Additions through acquisition of ﬁﬁiﬂu& BHWBARAZ
subsidiaries (Restated) E(&E5) = = (27,800) = = (27,800]

At 31 Decemnber 2014 [Restated] RZZ—MFE+= A

=+—B(EE) (11,494) (9,112) (42,274) 2,958 - (59,922)
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1F—F—A (11,494) 9,112) (42,274) 2,958 - (59,922)
(Charged|/credited to profitor B A(HNK),/FFA
loss - (6,850] 52 - - (6,798)
Additions through acquisition ERRERBERA
of subsidiaries [note13(b)) AE (M E13(0)) - (1,665)  (168,017) - - 169,682)
At 31 December 2015 E"_'; iF
TZA=1- (11,494) (176271 (210,239) 2958 - (286,402)

PERAREEARATY —T-HFFH @
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RIS R M

[Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

22 Income Tax in the Consolidated 22 &8

Statement of Financial Position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(Continued)

The deferred taxation is recognised on the consolidated

i a)

MBRAKRBE

(b) ERBELERAEEERE

& @

RER & B 7R 0 3K 3% &Y R FE 7R

statement of financial position as follows: AT ¢

2015 2014
—E-RF —mE
RMB’000 RMB000
ARBT T AR®EF T
(Restated)
(&)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised on the RERE B ISR R R
consolidated statement of financial position EL%RIEE & (239,360) (62,880

Deferred tax assets recognised on the RERE B ISR R HER
consolidated statement of financial position ~ IEIEFIIB & & 2,958 2,958
(236,402) (59,922)

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



22 Income Tax in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

(i)

(ii)

Cumulative tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries
located in Hong Kong and subsidiaries in the PRC of
RMB58,108,000 and RMB10,400,000 as at 31 December
2015 (2014: loss of RMB1,479,000 and RMB7,505,000),
respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable
income against which the losses can be utilised will be
available. As at 31 December 2015, tax losses for these
PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB341,000,
RMB1,391,000, RMB2,891,000, RMB2,780,000 and
RMB2,997,000 will expire, if unused, by the end of 2016,
2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. The tax losses of
subsidiaries located in Hong Kong do not expire under
current tax legislation.

Dividend withholding tax

According to the CIT Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC corporate residents
from PRC enterprises are subject to withholding income
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.
Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement
and the related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for a reduced withholding tax rate
of 5% on dividends from a PRC enterprise if the Hong
Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner™ and holds 25%
or more of the equity interest of the PRC enterprise. As
all of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are directly or
indirectly owned by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary
which is the qualified Hong Kong tax resident, a rate of 5%
is applicable to the calculation of the PRC dividend
withholding tax.

Notes to the Financial Statements

g e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARESIR -

HREERERIN)

22 ZEUBURRRNFE

Bt ()

(c)
(i)

(ii)

PEHRRKEEERQF

ABRIELEHBEEE

EirBIEEIE

RIEMT FE1(s) TS & 5T BUR
AEBYERETEERF
BfBATNR _ET—AE+
—A=+—RBA&EIRAA
R #58,108,0007T & A R #
10,400,0007C ( — & — PY £ -
AR BE14790007T & A R
7,505,000t &5 8 ) ) R & B
EEERRECHEBEE
HAEB®BESAERENES

B ERT U A B T] g8 M
TR -RZE—RF+=ZA
=t+—H8 ZE+EHEKHBA
ABBEEBEESER=-_Z—X
F - *”—ti Z—Z—N
F-ZZ-—NEFR=ZZT=Z

FH EIJZ%/\E%'&M,OOUE
AR #1391,0000 AR
2,891,0007C - A % 2,780,000
7T R AR 29970007 % &
BIE(AWER) - BAW
ENR R EEBEBERAN
MBERETHETIBEH -

R EFEH
BECEMSHEZREER
HAEG - FRFREERERA
FREAEERMKESARS
ZETENF-A—HBHER
79 5 FIl 88 49 10% B9 78 30 BT 15
B BRIEEMBHERLH
R e BB B F B
CE ERB B REEE
Ao —BRERBEBB
EREIBE=EBAINLEAE
H25%sk A £ M A% # - Rl 3%
EERBERAREKRGF
Bl AR BIRE R E5%
BMAMTENT - AR AN B AT
BREMMNBERAAFE —HARE
BEMKIZMNE AR (HEA
GERBERUMBER) EEK
MEEs BEEFBERE
TR IR E AR E B5% o

—B-HETH



Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

22 Income Tax in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued)

(i) Dividend withholding tax (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, deferred tax liabilities in respect of
the dividend withholding tax relating to the undistributed
profits of the Company’s subsidiaries were not recognised
as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries. Based on the assessment made by
management as at the end of each reporting period, it
was determined that certain of the undistributed profits
of the Company’s subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future. The amounts of undistributed
profit of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out below:

22 %a?;ié‘,\ﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬁi'éﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ?%

(&)

(c) RERELEHIEEE @

(i) FREFEMH @)
RZE—RF+ZA=+—
H - I KR EAR A 7 KB
RN AR DR E F A e RS
BENHNEEHEEE 1
HRARRIEHZEWB A
AMBRERKR REERE
& RSB ARED AT
AARIHBARIE T ARDE
wHERETERI R KRR
BITDIR ARGEHWEBRQA
Rk e F & REESN AT ¢

2015 2014
—E-REF TN
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Distributable profits earned by PRC RN PN
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2008 —EENEFE-—H—H3
Z A& BREZ F] 2 I g A 1,160,023 627,599
23 Deferred Income 23 IR WA

2015 2014
—E-RF —ET-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(FeE7)
At 1 January Rn—H—H 11,832 11,832

Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary BAKE -—FHNBRARZAE
(note 13(b)) (B3 13(b)) 2,742 -
Other additions HEMRE 655 =
Credited to profit or loss (note 3(a) s AB = (HEE3(a)) (110) =
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 15,119 11,832
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24

Notes to the Financial Statements

RISk M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Deferred Income (continued) 23

Deferred income consists of deferred government grants. The grants
from local government was conditional and the conditions would be
fulfilled upon the completion of construction of certain fixed assets of
Guangyuan Xizhou Environmental Enterprises Company Limited and
Guangzhou Lvyou. The grant will be recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the fixed assets. The
deferred income was not yet amortised as at 31 December 2015.

Capital, Reserves and Dividends 24

(a) Share capital

(i) Authorised share capital of the Company

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

IEE WA @

EEWABIREERRATMA - KA T
B RE GRS BEZFHREBR
BETOMNRREXZAR AR KEMAES
ETEEEEMNERTREREK - &M
BERNEEEENAERFHANRRES
EERBRRERRBA -R_FT—F
FTHA=1t—8 BERALEHH-

EX - -HEEKRE

(a) BRA
i) ZAQFEERK
2015
—EBE-REF

Number of

Shares

B&H8E
‘000 HKD’000

F® FEx

Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.025 each FREARR0025B T

16,000,000 400,000

2014
—E -

Number of
Shares
& 15 2 8
‘000 HKD’000
T FET

Authorised *
Ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each &=

4,000,000 400,000

PERREEERAT —E-—EEFH @
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

Authorised share capital of the Company (Continued)
The par value of the ordinary shares of the Company was
initially at HKDO.10 per share. With effect from 22 July
2015, each of the then existing issued and unissued
shares of the Company was subdivided into four
subdivided shares of HKD0.025 each (each defined as
“Subdivided Share”),
passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 21 July 2015 (the “Share Subdivision”).
Upon the share subdivision became effective, the

after an ordinary resolution was

authorised capital of the Company became
HKD400,000,000 divided into 16,000,000,000 Subdivided
Shares of HKD0.025 each. The other rights and terms of
the shares remain unchanged as at 31 December 2015
(2014: 4,000,000,000 shares at HKDO.10 per share, which
are the numbers before the effect of the share
subdivision].

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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KRB EERK (#)
KRR ERRKR 2EEDD
BT R0I10E T 8RN A
REAE_ZT—HAFLAZ
+—BRITZEFREKX
TLrEBETBEARERE
ALARERRABEZB BT
MERETKRMHE DK ALK
& % ™ {H0.0257% T 2 #F 40
RO (EEERIFHEBKMDD
([BEmiFE]) RZF—1
FHA-+T-_BAE®- KK
WHEBRE  RRBZEE
A% AN A 400,000,0005 JT 0 5
/%16,000,000,000% & & ™
B0.0257%% T 2 i B 15 »
B& 1n 2 E b 5 B R & 5k R
—T-HF+-_A=1+—
H@ERTE(ZT —MmF:
4,000,000,000 f% & % 1 1E0.10
BT BRDIFAE A 2
#HAE)-
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continuea) 24 B - HE R K E @

(a) Share capital (Continued) (a) MR (@)
(i) Issued share capital of the Company li) XARCEBITRA
Number of shares
RBEE
‘000 HKD000 RMB'000
Fhiz FET ARETT
At 1 January 2014 (Restated) RZZE—N
—H—B(&&E7) 1,382,082 138,208 109,629
Shares issued by share offer BRROBEEETH
(Restated) Mt (4 E5) 60,000 6,000 4,774
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) HR=—ZT—M4E
and 1 January 2015 +-A=+—-H
(&= &
—E-H4— A0 1,442,082 144,208 114,403
Shares issuance (note 24(alliii)) A% £ 377 (Pt &L 24(a)liii)) 287,116 13,712 10,989
Share subdivision (note 24(a)(ivl) AR 3 #5 48 (P 5% 24(a)(iv)) 4,587,59% - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+ZA=+—H 6,316,792 157,920 125,392
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LR AE AR BRI E
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled FIRMKE - WRAR R
to one vote per share at the meetings of the Company. All RRELrZEEBR—ZFRE
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bo-RMARRNMFKREEM
Company's residual assets. T AL BAR=ZARSH
fiz ©

PERAREEARATY —T-HFFH @
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Shares issuance

On 23 February 2015, 87,115,959 ordinary shares were
issued to GIC Special Investments Pte Ltd. at a price of
RMB5.57 (HKD7.12) per share. After deduction of
transaction costs, the issued share capital and share
premium of the Company were increased by
RMB6,886,000 and RMB478,185,000 respectively.

On 29 October 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued to Mr. Gu Yaokun at a price of RMB2.1 (HKD2.575)
per share. After deduction of transaction costs, the issued
share capital and share premium of the Company were
increased by RMB4,103,000 and RMB418,161,000
respectively.

Share subdivision
It represented the effects of adjustments made to the
number of shares as a result of the share subdivision.

Shares held under Share Award Scheme

On 12 November 2015,
Company approved the adoption of a share award scheme

the board of directors of the

(the “Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of the
Company may be awarded to selected employees [the
“Selected Employees”] in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Award Scheme.

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions by the Selected Employees
and provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for the continual operation and development of the Group
and attract suitable personnel for the further

development of the Group.

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015

2L BEXR - FEEKRE @
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B 19 24T
RZE—RF_A=+=
B AARILFEKRARES57
TL(7.127870) FIGICH R & &
B R A A% 1787115959 f% &
AR MBRRXHKAE S &K
NABEBEITRARBKGHE
3 Bl 3 I A R #6,886,000 7T &
AR 478,185,000 7T °

RZZE—ARAF+A=ZT AN
H &8 Kk ARB22IT
(2.57578 70) K (B 1% ) & #2 15
% 4 B 77 200,000,000 0% & &
e IBRIEAE KA
AIEBITRARKG HESD
A 00 A R % 4,103,0007T K&
ABR#418,161,0007C °

R 12 4 48
H & R B 7% 48 i 3 B i &
BIELBENTE -

RERMDRBTE T
B2k’

RZE—RF+—HA+=H
KAREZEFECOLERERM
A& 1 82 B 5T & (AR 17 42 B &1
2 Eutt - RIBERGD EEE
o3 R NN SR
BrEERERa(EEREE) -

P& fn s B AT B 5 £ R AT R
BEZERMMIPAHRRHER
A #E AN £ [ A 5 4 8 A AN
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continuea) 24 B - HE R K E @

(a) Share capital (Continued) (a) MR (@)
(v) Shares held under Share Award Scheme (Continued) v RERODRBTETE
B2RG @)
Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme RIER D ZE AT 2 P B 19
are set out below: ZEIBWMT
Average
purchase No. of
price shares held Value of shares
BE
FBE KRB E REEE
HKD ‘000 HKD'000 RMB'000
B T % FERT ARETFT
At 31 December 2014 MR- —MF
+ZA=+—H = — _
Shares purchased during  F R &% EE
the year 2.67 3,827 10,205 8,411
At 31 December 2015 N-ZZE—hEF
+=—A=+—H 3,827 10,205 8,411
During the year ended 31 December 2015, no shares were BHE_Z-—REF+_A=+
awarded to Selected Employees under the Share Award —BIEEE REBERG EEE
Scheme. 2 -BERHERHTEL -

PERREBARAA —Z-HFFR @
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(b)

2L EXR - FEERRE @

Movements in components of equity (b) EZARFMHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEBZEER SEKIBD F A
each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in RERZEEHNEESINEE
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the R R A DB REZAKI
changes in the Company's individual components of equity DEVNNFRZEEHOEBEH
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out IO -
below:
Shares
held under
the Share
Share Share Award Capital Translation Accumulated
capital  premium Scheme reserve reserve losses Total
R4 % B
B i
BRE  RGEE BERD EXRE ELRE RitER @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTE ARETT ARBTI ARETRT AR®TT ARETT
At 1 January 2014 [Restated) R-ZZ-MmE—-R—H
(g=5) 109,629 285,241 - 171,998 (20,002) (7.410) 539,456
Loss for the year (Restated) FNEBEET) = = = = - (7.175) (7,175)
Other comprehensive income 1 2 E K= (L E5))

(Restated) = = - - (339) = (339
Total comprehensive income 2 EINHZE (KE5)

(Restated) = = - - (339) (7.175) (7,514)
Shares issuance (Restated) R 1h 817 (SR E ) 4774 276,439 = = = = 281,213
Dividends (Restated) RE(EE5) - (32,915) = = = = (32,915)
At 31 December 2014 (Restated) R=Z—MNF+=A

and 1 January 2015 =+-B(&BEIEK

—Z2-5%-H—-H 114,403 528,765 — 171,998 (20,341) (14,585) 780,240
Loss for the year FNER - - - - - (11,551) (11,551)
Other comprehensive income  H 12 E I & - - - - 81,386 - 81,386
Total comprehensiveincome 2 E W H 44 - - = = 81,386 (11,551) 69,835
Shares issuance PR 1 8 17 (B 25 24(a) i)

[note 24(a)liii)) 10,989 896,346 - - — — 907,335
Share purchased under Share &) BE:t BT A

Award Scheme R (Bi 5 24(a)v)

[note 24(a)(v)) - — (8,411 - - = (8.411)
Dividends KE = (91,781) = = - — (91,781)
At 31 December 2015 R=Z-5F

+=ZA=+-H 125,392 1,333,330 (8,411) 171,998 61,045 [26,136) 1,657,218
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(b)

Movements in components of equity (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the Company’'s share premium account are
distributable to the equity shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

PRC statutory reserves

According to the current PRC Company Law, the Group’s
entities in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their
profit after taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the
surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. For the purpose of calculating the transfer to
reserve, the profit after taxation shall be the amount
determined based on the statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards.
The transfer to this reserve has to be made before
distribution of dividend by these entities.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and for capitalisation issue
provided that the balance after such issue is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the respective entities.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside mainland China which
are dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in note 1(w).
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(b) Movements in components of equity (Continued)

(iv)] Capital reserve
The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between (a) the nominal value of share capital of a
subsidiary acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation of the Group on 31 May 2011.

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess
of the consolidated net assets represented by the shares
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation.

(c) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company,
was RMB1,531,826,000 (2014: RMB665,837,000), which
comprises of share premium, shares held under Share Award
Scheme, accumulated losses, translation reserve and capital

reserve of the Company.
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(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continued)

(d) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)
Company attributable to the year

2L EXR  REEERE @
d BRE

FRESERQIATERRK
ReBRE:

2015 2014
Z2-AF —E-MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
(Restated)
(K& &:5)
Interim dividend declared and paid of & 1 #F 40 18 5 R 1 B AR B
HKDO.005 per ordinary share after share [ LA & & 3@ §%0.005 7 7T
subdivision (2014: Nil) X (ZF-—EmF:F) 25,161 -
Final dividend of HKD0.0073 per ordinary 73k 2 B K 12 ik 2 & %
share and a special dividend of L @mA%0.007378 T 2
HKDO0.0101 per ordinary share proposed R Hif% & & &% T %
after the end of the reporting period (2014:  0.0101 78 JT 2 4% Bl A% &
final dividend of HKDO0.03 per ordinary —E—ME RERE
share and a special dividend of T AR A2 37 48 A & 1% i AR
HKDO0.025 per ordinary share before 0.03/8 Tk Bk E @A
share subdivision) 0.025% T 2 AR B) 88,477 66,620
113,638 66,620

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (ii)
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

RAEAFEHMER M L
— U BRFERNALQF
BERRZEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
(Restated)
(&E5)
Final dividend in respect of the previous ¥R 4 B R 1% ¥R 2 5%
financial year of HKD0.03 and a special L0037 T2
dividend of HKD0.025 per ordinary share R EFAZ B & & % T @ A%
(2014: final dividend of HKDO0.03 per 0.0257& 7T 2 %5 Bl B B
ordinary share before share subdivision) ZE—MF  RHKRE
TR A7 3T 48 A & IR iR AR
0.03% ) 66,620 32,915

FERREBEAERA A

—E-AEEH @
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24 Capital, Reserves and Dividends (continuea) 24 B ~ HE R K E @

(e) Capital management (e)

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for the shareholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-equity ratios. Adjusted net debt is
calculated as total bank loans less deposits with a bank with
original maturity over three months and cash and cash
equivalents. The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31
December 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

EXER
AEEEREANEIZERR/R
EASEFELENEN  UEE
ESRRFEREDE ks x
EEREBIREE AR -

AEERACAEFER DL
REERH BRI - IS AR FER
LRBRITERRESRREEE
METHRREBITRAZHE LR
“EARAZEHFESLE KT —
AFRZETE—WOF+ZA=+—
BERABFEBERNLEQNT ¢

The Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-HEF —TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Bank loans [note 21) RITE R (P E21) 2,009,566 1,041,134
Less: B
Cash and cash equivalents [note 19) RekBLZEM (ME19) 382,500 116,593
Deposits with a bank with original maturity ~ FHRRRITRIBEE A
date over three months i =18 A2 7% 5,626 =
Adjusted net debt KREFE 1,621,440 924,541
Total equity DB 2,896,555 1,494,629
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio KRB FEBERL X 0.56 0.62

As disclosed in note 21 no further external financing could be
obtained by certain subsidiaries prior to the lenders approval.
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25 Acquisition of Non-Controlling Interests

On 9 June 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 5% equity interests
in Yinglong for RMB28,000,000. Yinglong became a wholly-owned
subsidiary upon completion of the acquisition. The carrying amount of
Yinglong's net assets on the date of the acquisition was
RMB448,269,000. The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interests of RMB22,413,000 and a decrease in retained earnings of
RMB5,587,000.

On 22 July 2015, the Group acquired the remaining 1% equity interests
in Guangzhou Haitao for RMB800,000. Guangzhou Haitao became a
wholly-owned subsidiary upon completion of the acquisition. The
carrying amount of Guangzhou Haitao’s net assets on the date of the
acquisition was RMB276,704,000. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of RMB2,767,000 and an increase in retained
earnings of RMB1,967,000.
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25 WiRFFERER

RZZE—RAFEXNALA AEEURAR
#% 28,000,000 7T 42 i & B2 £ 5% A% 7S 4
moRUKBERE BRKA—REE
MEBEAR BEAKBENFEERE
B 5 AR 448,269,00007T ° AN £ B #ER
FEREZRRBEFNDARDARE
22,413,000 7T & A R #5,587,000 7T °

RZB—RFE+A-F+ B AEEN
A R #800,0007T Y & E N B E &R T 1%
B AR - RURBEEAK % - BB TE AKX
B—RXE2EMB AR BMEENIKE
AMFEERMEAEARARE276704,000
e AEERRBIEERBEZRDAR
#52,767,0007C & 1R B & F 1€ 0 A R &

1,967,000 7T °
Guangzhou
Yinglong Haitao Total
BIE &N E L
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR T T ARBET T
Carrying amount of NCI acquired Wk I IR 2 2 BRTE (B 22,413 2,767 25,180
Consideration paid to NCI B FEERERKE 28,000 800 28,800
A decrease/lincrease) in equity AEBEE AEAGRAE

attributable to owners of the group Bt 4> /(3% A1) 5,587 (1,967) 3,620
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values of Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks
arises in normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and gross amounts due from customers for
contract work. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are
more than 12 months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual

customers.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values of Financial Instruments (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, trade and other receivables and gross
amounts due from customers for contract work of the Group
amounted to RMB1,337,217,000 (2014: RMB1,051,183,000
(Restated]), of which RMB142,468,000 (2014: RMB136,504,000
(Restated]] was due from the largest customer and
RMB337,494,000 (2014: RMB267,375,000 (Restated]) was due
from the five largest customers in aggregate of the Group. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Since the parties to BOT arrangements are
local government authorities in the PRC, the Group considers
the credit risk is low.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk as at 31
December 2015.

Further quantities disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” as well as “Trade and other
receivables” are set out in notes 16 and 18, respectively.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values of Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible

for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

TRRRASERIH BRASA
BRZEHREREEERUREN
BEHReFR HUEEBEET
BEREKE AI/BEARRES
SZHETAEE - REBZEREK
EEMEERBESHTRET
BERGE BRAEEEFTHND
BeE AR EHEHEER
BRANAZEERE UENH
AR ERHRBESTRK -

TRIINTAKEENFTLESHEA
BERZHRERROFEEA QD
B -ENRBEAOAURASTE
(B &M A& 5 R e B E A R 5
HOMBRE) RAEEBNRD
REAHFESH

31 December 2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

CE-IFTZAST-HANARMRRERMY

More than  More than
Within  1yearbut 2years but
1year or less than lessthan  More than Carrying
on demand 2years 5years 5years Total amount
—-FRy BB-F HBWF
RER BLRAWME BOHREFE RBEHUL At BRE &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTI ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT AR%®TR
Bank loans RITER 706,591 468,203 814,618 208,435 2,197,847 2,009,566
Trade and other B 5 RE M EN
payables RIE 321,551 - - - 321,551 321,551
Total @t 1,028,142 468,203 814,618 208,435 2,519,398 2,331,117
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(b)
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair 26 cREREEREMT
Values of Financial Instruments (continued) BENAFE®
Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FRENE SR K@
31 December 2014 (Restated)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
“E-MET A=+ -HAORBERS AL (BREF)
More than ~ More than
Within 1yearbut  2yearsbut
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
—FAYE  HB—F HEMF
BER BORME BLREF  RENLE #st fRE(E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TI AR®TI ARKTR
Bank loans RITEHK 353,389 212,416 420,925 230,352 1,217,082 1,041,134
Trade and other B REMER
payables A 221,942 - - — 221,942 221,942
Total FaE 575,331 212,416 420,925 230,352 1,439,024 1,263,076
Interest rate risk (c) RIEME

(c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from variable
rates bank loans, which expose the Group to cash flow interest

rate risk.

As at 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax for the year by approximately
RMB17,565,000 (2014: RMB9,128,000),
higher/lower finance costs on bank loans. The impact on the

mainly as a result of

Group's profit after tax is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2014.

FERREBEAERA A

AR B R R R AR E B R RT
BAEBRLNRITER  FA5E
MHERIR € R A KRB -

R-F—AF+-_A=t—8"
ERMAEMAIERRXERTEN

BT - i R =R 3 0,8 4 100 1@
EH AEERFAZKB &SR
Mg s Blm D EMHARE
17,565,0007C(—ZF— W& : AR
9,128,0007t) - T Z H R WITE K

BMERKEN R AEH
BRERENAX X ESRER

MEEHUFEFNNEIHZEE
At ZE—WMFZ2H W IHIRER
HERIT o

—B-HETH
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values of Financial Instruments (continued)

(d)

(e

Foreign currency risk

Individual companies within the Group has limited foreign
currency risk as most of the transactions are denominated in
the same currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. However, as the Company and other
investment holding subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, British Virgin Islands and Hong Kong have their
functional currencies in HKD, therefore any appreciation or
depreciation of RMB against HKD will affect the Group’'s
financial position and result of operations.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2015 and 2014.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values of Financial Instruments (continued)

(f)

Estimation of fair value

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions

used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments.

(i)

(ii)

Gross amounts due from customers for contract
work

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts. Fair value is calculated
based on the present value of future principal and interest
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the end of the reporting period.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management'’s
best estimates and the discount rate is a market related
rate for a similar instrument at the end of the reporting
period.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair 26 SRiEBEERESMT

Values of Financial Instruments (continued

(f) Estimation of fair value (Continued) (fl AFEMEE @
liii) Bank loans lii) S|RITER
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future AFEHEFARRREESRS
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates MIRE ZEUeE T AN
for similar financial instruments. WATH IS N EALR -
liv) Property, plant and equipment liv)] W% -BENRRKE
The fair value of property, plant and equipment AEBAEHMEROME
recognised as a result of a business combination is based BB RBZENRDTE T
on market values. The market value of property is the MEAEE - YWETEIIE
estimated amount for which a property could be FREERMEBEREBEEM
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing LHER ETEABRA
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction BEHBEAT  REEBER
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each ITRXRGHEEMENGHTE
acted knowledgeably and willingly. The fair value of items BHeoWE - R&iE BTEREL
of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on the EENAFTEDBEMSE
market approach and cost approaches using quoted Mk AGE HABMUEE®
market prices for similar items when available and MHE®RE(ME) REEK K
replacement cost when appropriate. (i@ ) mETE °
27 Commitments 27 BARERE
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015 not (al RZZE—RFEF+=—A=+—H8 ¥

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

ABERAYERMBEREREMBH
BARKBEDT

2015 2014
—E-EfF —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREF T
(Restated)
(eE5)

Property, plant and equipment M BB REH
— Contracted for —BEA 83,068 103,937
— Authorised but not contracted for —BERERRETAD 2,017,547 560,000
2,100,615 663,937
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27 Commitments (continued) 27 BREE @
(b) At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments b) RZZE—RAF+-_A=+—H R
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: BAAMELLHERMN 2 RRK

REESMREENOT

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(FE5)
Within 1 year —F R 4,958 3,014
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 16,160 12,592
After 5 years hF & 45,616 33,997
66,734 49,603
Operating leases mainly represent a land use right leasing KEHEFZRBEHRIEF
arrangement with a leasing period of 16 years. B b AR & B o
28 Material Related Party Transactions 28 EXBHBAERS
The directors are of the view that related parties of the Group include EERREAEENEBIBEEATA
the following individuals/companies: /N
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
BT £ SEAREENER
Mr. Tsui Cham To Controlling Shareholder
REE L PERRAR R
Mr. Xu Juwen Executive Director
RIEX L BITES
Mr. Gu Yaokun (i) A minority shareholder of the Company/Executive Director
o 5T A () ERADVBRE ITES
Mr. Gu Jiatao Close family member of Mr. Gu Yaokun
EREAL HRMELEZRKEKE
Ms. Liang Yanxia Close family member of Mr. Gu Yaokun
RUEE L+ R EEZREKE
Mr. Lu Zhiji A former minority shareholder of Yinglong

EEEEE Al &2 D BURR
PERREBARAA —Z-HFFR
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28 EXEBERZ w

28 Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

Name of related party

BB &

Relationship with the Group
B 7K 55 B Y B AR

Guangzhou To Kee (i)
ENEREXEZREBAR AR

Guangzhou Tian Tian Cleaning and Washing
Company Limited ("Tian Tian")) (i)
BEIMRRRZEHAER QA (TRKD ()

Longmen Yagang Copper Company Limited
("Longmen Copper”) (i)
REFIRMME AR AR ([REPTHHZED ()

Guangyuan Zhongtao Textile Company Limited
("Guangyuan Zhongtao”) (i)
BFESHEER AR ([ETHED

Guangyuan Haitao Textile Company Limited
(“Guangyuan Haitao”] (i)
BragEmseR A e ([ETEFED I

Guangyuan To Kee Textile Company Limited
(“Guangyuan To Kee”) (i)
BroEmmsEeRAa ([ETERZD

Haigin Tiancheng (i)
JEE M 78 20 2R BB B il Az 0 AR 7% B BR X B (1)

Zhuhai Yingrun Chemical Technology Company Limited

("Zhuhai Yingrun”) (i)
wEMABLCEMRBERAR ([FERED )
Xinfeng Lvzhi (i)(iii)

L SR AR S TR RE Y B R B A BR A A )i

Guangzhou Lvyou (il{iii)
FE& N 4% ey T3 B 32 W [ W R 3B 78 PR 2 &) (i) i)

Guangdong Lvyou Environmental Equipment
Company Limited ("Lvyou Equipment”) (i)(iii)
BREZBRERRBAR LA (T BRMED (i)

Guangdong Longtao (i)(iii)
BERBEE AR E R R B R A A (i)
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Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder
MIERBRRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

mMIERRRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HIERRRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

MIERERERER

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

mMIERRRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

RMIERRRERES

Joint Venture of the Group
REBBAKE

Effectively owned by the minority Shareholder

mAOBERRRERES

Mr. Xu Shubiao is a member of key management personnel of

the entity
HREREEERZERNIZEREKRKEZ —

Former effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

SRR EEERER

Former effectively owned by Mr. Gu Yaokun

TR LR ERER

Former effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

LR AERERERER



28 Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

Notes:

(

) The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these companies are in Chinese.

(ii) Mr. Gu Yaokun subscribed 60,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and became a minority shareholder on 7 August 2014. Mr. Gu Yaokun
further subscribed 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in
August 2015.

(i) The Group acquired 100% equity shares of Xinfeng Lvzhi, Guangzhou
Lvyou and Guangdong Longtao during the year ended 31 December
2015. Xinfeng Lvzhi, Guangzhou Lvyou, Guangdong Longtao and Lvyou
Equipment, the subsidiary of Guangzhou Lvyou, were no longer related
parties and became subsidiaries of the Company upon completion of the
acquisition. The following disclosure of the related party transactions
related to the above companies is for the period prior to the completion
of acquisition.

(a) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:
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28 EXEBERZ w

(ii)

(i)

(a)

RXRHEEHREREHRZE - ZER
AIMENBRRTXHEHE -

HRHAER-_F-WFENALAR
§E 75 2 560,000,000 % % 38 A% - 3 K B
PERE - XR_Z-—RF\ARBEAE
/X 7] 200,000,000 % % 3B A%

BE_ZT-—AF+-A=+—HLF
B AREBWEH SRS BEMNE&AM
ERBEE100%EERD - TEKE &
Mikm BEREBRGHRE(HBE
Migme K BAR) AHEAMEB T X
KU BT R R B R RIMKTE AR -
it R AR TR KB AR AR
BARHZEBEMT

TEEEBAEMS
IEERBEAEMS B

2015 2014

—E-1F —T—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARBT T

(Restated)

(re&E75)

Salaries and other benefits FekHEMmEF 8,903 4,210
Retirement scheme of defined contribution 55t FGR (KT 21 109 66
9,012 4,276

PERREEERAT —E-—EEFH @
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28 Material Related Party Transactions (continves 28 E KEBHE HF X B @)

(b) Recurring transactions (b) BEMRS
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and HE-_Z-—HFEK_T-—NF+
the above related parties during the year ended 31 December A=+ HIEFE AEHHLE
2015 and 2014 are as follows: BRAB I METHNEARSFHE
LU
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
(Restated)
(&)
Provision of wastewater processing services to [ A 2 A1 455 7K 5 12 IR %5
Tian Tian (note) KRR (HHEE) 5,462 4,761
Provision of sludge treatment services to M AT 2 R 45 R B 38 AR 75
Guangzhou Lvyou E I &% A 23,533 14,745
Provision of vehicle renting services to M TR AR EEEE RS
Zhuhai Yingrun g &EE 104 =
Receive of technical testing services from PSRNV =0k R0 ¥
Haigin Tiancheng 1,150 -
Note: The related party transaction constitutes continuing connected M ZBAM AR SHEKR EmHRAE
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The VUAZFTAENHFEBRER S -
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are FHRAEUAERMBAENRE
provided in the paragraph headed “Continuing connected EIERFRIETGREIEL
transactions” of the section headed "Report of the Directors” of WIHBEHEZZIA -

this annual report.

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015



28 Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c)
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28 EXEBERZ w

Non-recurring transactions (c) REMRS
2015 2014
—E-FF —ET—MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(& &E5)
Acquisition of a joint venture from MIATRE W —FEE &%
Guangzhou To Kee &N & = 1,500
Acquisition of equity interests in Lvjie from MM~ A LWL R E S
Mr. Gu Yaokun o R O A — 1,400
Acquisition deposit of Guangzhou Lvyou paid [ JA T~ A £ 2+ U B8 B M 4% R
to Mr. Gu Yaokun b
h R L A - 100,000
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou from A LA A o R BB N 4% B i
Mr. Gu Yaokun R ik 307,062 -
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou from A DA T A = e B B N A R A
Mr. Gu Jiatao EEBEE 150,822 -
Acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou from A LA A o W BB N 4% B i
Ms. Liang Yanxia RUE L+ 80,829 —
Acquisition of Guangdong Longtao from MR TRARMEEREEER
Guangzhou To Kee BEIMNE R 10,000 =
Entrusted operation revenue from KEBMGZBANETEERE
Guangzhou Lvyou 66,800 —
Purchase of equipments from: REBEXRE
— Lvyou Equipment — i EBRE 6,208 38,986
— Guangzhou Lvyou — EM4 B 1,235 233
7,443 39,219
FERREEERAT —ZEZ—HFFER
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28 Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c) Non-recurring transactions (Continued)

28 EXEBERZ w

(c) FBEMERS @

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—mOF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
(Restated)
(&)

Advances to: AT &7 EE BB
— Guangzhou To Kee — BEMER 19,912 89,616
— Longmen Copper —REPTHR 2 = 1,013
— Mr. Tsui Cham To —HREESRAE - 929
— Mr. Gu Yaokun — R LA 19,960 139,816
— Guangyuan Haitao —ETEE — 1,100
— Guangzhou Lvyou — EM& | 12,200 260,104
— Xinfeng Lvzhi —Hess — 1,000
— Guangdong Longtao —EREH 4,800 42,544
— Haigin Tiancheng — I RH 1,634 -
58,506 536,122
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28 Material Related Party Transactions (continves 28 E KB HF X B @)

(d) Balances with related parties (d) EER@EE L B4 &k
(i)  Amounts due from related parties (i) FEWRFE: S RE
2015 2014
—Z-AF —ZT—QF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBFT
(Restated)
(rr&E7))
Non-current JEENHA
Mr. Gu Yaokun — prepayment for R R S A — WS B N A% B
acquisition of Guangzhou Lvyou PACENE N - 100,000
Current Bl H#A
Trade receivables from: EUWATEHE S 5KIAE :
— Tian Tian — KX 500 1,362
— Guangzhou Lvyou — B M4 B = 1.774
— Zhuhai Yingrun —KERE 20 -
Sub-total INE 520 3,136
Other receivables from: oty U LA N & 5 FRIE ¢
— Guangzhou To Kee —BMER 621 210
— Guangdong Longtao —BR#EH - 38,191
— Guangzhou Lvyou — EM# B — 19,999
— Mr. Lu Zhiji —EEEELE - 11,921
— Mr. Gu Yaokun — hREAE 224,450 63,646
— Lvyou Equipment —fBRRE = 33
— Xinfeng Lvzhi —FresE —_ 1,000
— Haiqin Tiancheng — R 2,038 -
Sub-total NE 227,109 135,000
Total B 227,629 138,136

PERREBARAA —Z-HFFR @
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28 Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(d) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(ii)

WS BERERIN)

Amounts due to related parties

28 EXRBEBERZ @
(d) E2EBEE S BV 45 &k m)

(i) FEATBIRE 5 7RO

2015 2014
—E-RF TN
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
(Restated)
(e &:5)
Trade payables to Guangzhou Lvyou R EMGZHZE S
FE A 5R0R — 17
Trade payables to Haigin Tiancheng RO RHEZE S
FE& S 5R0R 700 -
Other payables to: H b BT AT % 75 UIA
— Mr. Tsui Cham To —HREESRAE 409 2,344
— Guangzhou Lvyou — E M4 B — 37,795
— Lvyou Equipment — REBRE = 32,401
— Guangyuan To Kee —BrER 300 =
— Haiqin Tiancheng — N RH 270 -
— Guangzhou To Kee —BMER 3,039 =
4,718 72,557
The balances with these related parties are unsecured, BMZEEBMINERAEERR . 2
interest free and have no fixed repayment terms. BHEETEEEHAR-
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29 Company-Level Statement of Financial 29 ATEEEZ BB E

Position
[Expressed in Renminbi] (UAR#Z3)
2015 2014 2013
— —E-MmEF —E—=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B = ARET ARBT T ARBT T
(Restated)* (Restated)*
(EEF)* (#=E7)*
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIERE 812,700 765,277 155,379
812,700 765,277 155,379
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b JE YL FR IR 1,245,270 40,262 346,914
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEEY 11,970 5,774 37,245
Deposits with banks with FRRIRITIRBEEAR
original maturity date over Bl =18 Az Fx
three months 3,076 — —
1,260,316 46,036 384,159
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A & 5 KB 917 503 82
Bank loan RITE X 185,425 30,570 =
186,342 31,073 82
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,073,974 14,963 384,077
Total assets less current HEERRBER
liabilities 1,886,674 780,240 539,456
Non-current liability FRBEE
Bank loans RITER 229,456 = —
229,456 — —
Net assets EERE 1,657,218 780,240 539,456

PERREBARAA —Z-HFFR
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29 Company-Level Statement of Financial 29 ARIEHE 2 M BEMRRF
Position (continued) ()
[Expressed in Renminbi] (UAR#Z3)
2015 2014 2013
ZE-AF —E-MEF —F—=
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®BT T ARETT ARET T
(Restated)* (Restated)*
(feE5)* (fE )~
Equity = 24
Share capital AR A 125,392 114,403 109,629
Reserves Bt 1,531,826 665,837 429,827
Total equity ERmE 1,657,218 780,240 539,456

* See Note 1(c](i).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2016.

Mr. Tsui Cham To

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Lu Yili
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

30 Immediate and Ultimate Controlling
Parties

The directors consider the immediate controlling party as at 31
December 2015 to be Keen Vast Holding Limited (K2 i% & IR A A,
while the ultimate controlling party of the Company as at 31
December 2015 to be Mr. Tsui Cham To.
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31 Significant Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the key

sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into BOT arrangements in wastewater
treatment. The Group concluded that the BOT arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HKI(IFRIC] 12,
because the local government controls and regulates the
services that the Group must provide with the infrastructure at
a pre-determined service charge. In addition, upon expiry of
concession right agreement, the infrastructure has to be
transferred to the local government at nil consideration.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group reviews
periodically the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimation.

Impairment

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for these assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgment relating to
items such as level of turnover and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed and
provided based on the management’s regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgment is exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. An increase or decrease in the above impairment
losses would affect the profit or loss in future periods.
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31 EXEE b5t K ¥

EERBASBESTBRE - Bt THE
HEREZRIREET :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

PEHRRKEEERQF

AR 3% 45 7 B = Bk

RE B E )5 /KR IEIE B 5] ZBOT
ZH - AKERSEMBOTRHEE
(BER(BERPBEHREREZRS

BRE)ENRETHRBHIFER
AR BTENLEE AR
R MAKRELARBEREE
REEWRER - MO ERFLE
BBEIMEK FHERERIEE
B8 5530 77 U ©

e

M BB KRB G ERF
HALFEEFRNGEERRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - S BEREBRIN)

32 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 32
Standards and Interpretations Issued But

—+H
I

s
%'%;l 1

Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended 31 1€ 71
December 2015 ARZENIREEE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has HEAGBKRENNERE FE S
issued a few amendments, and a new standard which are not yet NEEBEMZETEBI LT ED - 2ZFE
effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have not B R ENREBEE=FSE—RF+=
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the A=+—BLFERRER HEHHK
following which may be relevant to the Group. WMERNDERAZEREETRFER - A

TRARERASEMEBNEREL -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTBE#gZ2#%
RN EHBEER
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
BEMBEREGER —F——FE_F—MFHPZFRNE —E-RF-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between 1 January 2016
an investor and its associate or joint venture
HEEUVBREERNE105 LEE G ERE 285 —T-RF¥—-HA—H
[REZHABEHEETLEZHNEELEHBLX | 2 1EFT
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 January 2016
ERMBRERNE1NRLEE ERBE BB G 75 Z1ER] —T—-RE—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BEBGERE 1R FEHS 2 IEFT —E-RFE—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods 1 January 2016
of depreciation and amortisation
BB G ERE R R BB ST LRI L8 FHTE KA A £ X )% | 2 1BFT —ET-RF¥—HA—H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
ERUBREENFEISREL AWz —Z—+F¥—-A—H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
ERMBREENFEIR/2H LA/ —E-N\¥—HF—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REBEENEZSEESERERS
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial HEHEENTZ - Al AEERA
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is RMZFEET  FENRZED KA
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of HAEBENKEXEBERUIBRAELS
operations and financial position. R 2 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(AARBIIR - ERBZERERIN

33 Non-Adjusting Events After the Reporting 33 $R&EHI B EFAREIF

Period

(i) According to the announcement of the Company dated 4 i) RWREAXRAAINVR-_Z—XR"F—AMNX
January 2016, on 1 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Group BzRAE R_ZTE—X"F—A—
entered into an asset operation agreement with Guangdong H AEBETZ2FRAHEERN
Xinxi Environmental Protection Engineering Company Limited zﬁi&ﬁlk'ﬁ RARI([BRFH]D
(ER#FAHRRIEBMR A A ("Guangdong Xinxi”), pursuant RV T —HhEELEHE Bk
to which, Guangdong Xinxi agreed to engage the Group to ERFHAREZAAEEBE -
operate and upgrade its wastewater treatment facility for a —NF—A—BRR EEFTLE
concession period commencing from 1 January 2016. B R = R E R BT A A5 K

Pt i

(i)  On 22 March 2016, the Company entered into a facility i) RZFT—R"F=A=+=H X2
agreement with Asian Development Bank (*ADB"). The amount &1 B2 T M A B SR 17 ([ 2 M B & 4R
of loan granted to the Company pursuant to the facility TNHEEREHDZ RERERS
agreement shall be applied towards the financing of the BITARABIZEREBERRESRH
construction, acquisition or operation of industrial wastewater B W B TS KRSE
and sludge treatment facilities in the PRC. According to the BRIBRM - BIERE B IR
terms of the facility agreement, the amount of the facility B2 pﬁﬁﬁ’]@%ﬁ’j?ﬁﬂﬁimﬁ’]—r@
consists of ordinary loans equivalent to USD100 million and LTRERRISEETHSZSERA
supplemental loan equivalent to USD150 million. BEX-

PEHREREEBRAT —E-—AFFR @



Financial Summary

g3 E

The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and TERBAAREBRRBET+-_A=+—HILHA
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December: BEENGZREEE BERAE:
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—®-Hf —T-—NmMF —ET—= —T—=—F Z—ZZT——F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETRT ARETIT AREBTRT AR%®T:R
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
€7D C=27) € =27) (B E75)
Results E
Turnover B 1,434,959 818,116 386,827 312,266 382,697
Profit before taxation B B2 B & A 670,575 373,858 218,531 173,695 168,620
Income tax FriS 69,323 34,542 39,186 29,404 31,304
Profit attributable to equity AN &) #E 25
holders of the Company BAEAEBEER 598,916 336,478 179,050 144,193 136,690
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERMENE E 4,258,442 2,214,636 897,761 685,137 536,821
Current assets mEEE 1,246,351 637,318 589,425 240,392 179,980
Total assets BEBTE 5,504,793 2,851,954 1,487,186 925,529 716,801
Liabilities BfE
Non-current liabilities FRBE R 1,621,769 817,417 436,798 448,855 363,557
Current liabilities mMEBAE 986,469 539,908 163,285 158,899 171,653
Total liabilities BEEE 2,608,238 1,357,325 600,083 607,754 535,210
Total equity e k] 2,896,555 1,494,629 887,103 317,775 181,591
Total equity of attributable AN A #E =
to equity holders of BE AN
the Company gk 2,882,692 1,471,395 884,968 316,537 173,962

@ CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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